TEXMO

PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
AN 1S0 : 9001 CERT FIED COMPANY

Texmo/Sec/2022-23/34 September 07, 2022

To, To,

Manager (Listing) The Corporate Relationship Department
National Stock Exchange of India BSE Ltd,

Exchange Plaza,5" Floor 1°' Floor,New Trading Ring,

Bandra kulra Complex, Bandra (E) P.J.Tower, Dalal Street,

Mumbai 400051 Mumbai 400001

Sub: Submission of 14" Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22

Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015, we are enclosing herewith 14™ Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

This is for the information of the Exchange and the members thereof.
Thanking You
Yours Faithfully

For Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

Ajay Shrivastava

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Encl: As above.

CIN L25200MP2008PLC020852 Registered Office :- 98, Bahadarpur Road, BURHANPUR - 450 331 (M.P.)
Tel. : 255122, 252353, 251210, 253833 Fax : (91)7325 - 253273 E-mail : texmopipe@texmopipe.com, Website : https://texmopipe.com



ATEXNO

SOLID & LEAK PROOF

'ANNUAL
REPORT

F‘Y 2021 227

H |

| VAL

g1, WIDE RANGE OF
& PIPES & FITTINGS

SHMITARY | AGRICULTURE | MICRD IRRIGATION SYSTE M | COLUMN

Toll free no. 1800 270 0190 € & © /texmopipesandproductsitd | Website : https://texmopipe.com



(__ 14" Annual Report 2021-2022

Board of Directors

Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal Chairperson and Whole Time Direclor

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Managing Director

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu Whole Time Director cum Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Amber Chaurasia Non Executive Independent Director

Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Executive Independent Director

Dr. Smita Hajari Non Executive Independent Direclor

Committees of Directors

Audit Committee Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Amber Chaurasia — Chairperson Dr. Smita Hajari - Chairperson

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu - Member Mr. Amber Chaurasia - Member

Dr. Parvez Anjum - Member Dr. Parvez Anjum - Member

Dr. Smita Hajari -Member

Treasury Committee Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal - Chairperson  Dr. Parvez Anjum - Chairperson

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu - Member Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal - Member

Mr. Amber Chaurasia - Member Mr. Amber Chaurasia - Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Dr. Smita Hajari - Chairperson

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal - Member

Dr. Parvez Anjum - Member

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Mohit Agrawal

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mr. Ajay Shrivastava

Statutory Auditors Secretarial Auditor

M/s. Anil Kamal Garg & Company Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta

Chartered Accountants, Indore Practicing Company Secretary, Indore
Bankers Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

State Bank of India KFin Technologies Limited

Bank of Baroda Karvy Selenium Tower B

Punjab National Bank Plot 31-32, Financial District

Central Bank of India Nanakramguda, Hyderabad- 500032
Registered Office Corporate Identification Number

98, Bahadarpur Road, L25200MP2008PLC020852

Burhanpur (M.P.) — 450331




TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (

.

CONTENTS

Particulars

Chairperson's Message

Notice of AGM

Board's Report

Corporate Governance Report
Management Discussion and Analysis
Standalone Financial Statements
Auditors Report

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Cash Flow Statement

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Financial Statement
Consolidated Financial Statements
Auditors Report

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Cash Flow Statement

Significant Accounting Policies

Motes to Financial Statement

14" Annual Report 2021-2022

Page No.

16
40

63

81

85
a7
87

137
145
147
150
152

152

-

i)




RTINS UMY (14" Annual Report 20212022 )

CHAIRPERSON'S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to share with you the 14" Annual Report of your Company for FY 2021-22 and present
with you the key highlights and the financials of your Company and the roadmap going forward. We have
always sirived o surpass our performance as a Company by continually gqualily production and
expanding our producls and strengthening capabililies with making it unique one. Since beginning, our
motive and vision is always focused on hard work, open communication and a strong focus and efforts
on team work and a high level of responsibility, accountability and commitment. We here alt Texmo Pipes
and Products Limited believe that Sustainable development is always a key o success and we have
aligned ourselves to this vision. Your Company Texmo Pipes and Products Limited is one of the most
strongly trusted Company engaged in defining and offering higher levels of customer salisfaclion and
faster adoption of latest available and enhanced technology with optimum utilization of resources.

In the FY 2021-22, we have made significanl performance and your Company has progressed well in
terms of revenue and tumover. Your Company is continuously increasing ils operations year on year and
is being continuously committed towards the same growth in order to expand business operations and
continuous growth and progress. Your Company is always focused on lo increase the value of
stakeholders and to maintain a wide market as a leader. We are always focused on innovations and
developments so as to maintain a diversified and strong portfolio and maintain our strength and strong
presence in the market.

Your Company Texmo Pipes and Products Limited achieved yet another mile stone as a step to expand
its operaltions and has enlered the market of "Waler Tank™ and launched its mos!t presligious new product
'Roto Moulded Water Storage Tank' in the start of this calendar year 2022.

Your Company and all our associates is working hard enough with their tireless efforts to accelerate our
growth and bring innovation and development in our portfolio and reach a wider scenario in the markeb.

As a token of appreciation, | would like to extend my sincere thanks and gralitude to our managemenl
team, stafl, bankers and business associates for their commitment and contribution towards your
Company Texmo Pipes and Products Limited. Further, | would like to show my appreciation for my fellow
Directors and colleagues for providing guidance amidst the tough operating environment. Last but not
least, | would like to extend my sincerest gratitude to our employees, cuslomers, pariners, business
associates and all our esteemed stakeholders for their undying faith and support. Each one has been a
parl of our exciting and enriching conlinuous journey. We continue to seek value creation for our
stakeholders and persevere in building a sustainable business. Always hoping for a brighter and
prosperous fulure together ahead in coming years.

With Best Wishes,
Rashmi Agrawal
Chairperson & Whole Time Director
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NOTICE

MNOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Members of TEXMO PIPES AND
PRODUCTS LIMITED (CIN: L25200MP2008PLC020852) will be held through Video Conference (“"VCT)
{ Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") on Thursday, 29th September, 2022, at 12 .30 PM. to transact with
or without modification(s), as may be permissible, the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 31" March, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Smi. Rashmi Agrawal (DIN: 00316248) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

3. REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR. FOR THE YEAR 2022-23.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant lo the provisions of Seclion 148 and all other applicable provisions
of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modificalion(s) or re-enactment thereol, for the time being enforce), the
remuneration of Rs. 80,000/- {Rupees Eighty thousand only) plus applicable taxes to be paid to
M/s Saurabh Parikh & Associates (Firm Registration No.101495), CostAuditors of the Company
to conduct the Audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31,
2023, as approved by the Board of Directors ofthe Company, be and is hereby ralified.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized lo do all acts and take all such sleps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

4. TO APPROVE THE REVISION IN THRESHOLD OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH
“SHREEVASUDEQ INDUSTRIES™.

To consider and, ifthought fil, to pass, the following Resolulion as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Seclion 188 (as amended or re-enacled from
time to time) and all other provisions applicable, il any, of the Companies Act 2013, read with
Rule 15 of the Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 read with
Regulation 23{4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and other applicable provisions, if any, consent of the members of the Company be and is
here by accorded to the Board of Directors to revise the tentative threshold of the related party
transaction with respect lo sale, purchase and supply of goods, material and services etc. with
“Shree Vasudeo Indusltries” in ordinary course ol business on prevailing market price on such
terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon between the Company and the related
partly for an amount upto Rs.150 Crores (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crores only) in each
financial year.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof
or any person authorized by the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things with regard to the said transaction with the related party, and to finalize the
terms and conditions as may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and execute such
agreements, documents and writings, as may be required and to make such filings as may be
necessary or desirable, in order to give effect to this Resolutionin the interest of the Company.™

BY ORDER OF THE BEOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Ajay Shrivastava
Place: Burhanpur Company Secretary
Date: August 10, 2022 Membership No.: ACS 41817
L N
I L 4 ) |
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NOTES:-

1. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of
the special business as set out above isannexed hereto.

2 Pursuant to the General Circular numbers 14/2020, 17/2020, 2072020 and 02/2022 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, May
5,2022 and Clarification Circular dated January 13, 2021 and Circular number SEBI
HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11
dated January 15, 2021 and Circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May
13%, 2022 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as "the Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold AGM through VC/OAVM, without
the physical presence of members al a common venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars,
the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM for the calendar year 2022 and the
registered office of the Company i.e. 88, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur, MP will be the deemed
venue of the AGM. In accordance with the said Circulars, hard copies of the AGM MNotlice and
Annual Report are not circulated lo the members.

3. Since the AGM is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC, the facility for
appointmenl of proxies o atlend and cast vote on behalf of the members is not available.

4. Participation of members through VC/OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of guorum for the
AGM as per Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”).

5. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend
and vote al the AGM through VC/OAVM. Corporate members intending to authorize their
representatives to participale and vote at the AGM are requested to send a cerlified copy of the
Board resolution / authorization letter to the Company or upload on the VC portal / e-voting
portal.

6. In compliance wilh applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh aforesaid MCA
circulars the 14" Annual General Meeting of the Company being conducted through Video
Conferencing (VC) herein afler called as "e-AGM".

T e-AGM: The Company has appointed M/s KFin Technologies Limited, Registrars and Transfer
Agents, to provide Video Conferencing facility for the Annual General Meeting and the attendant
enablers for conducting of the e-AGM.

8. The Members can join the e-AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arangements in which the
directors are inlerested, mainlained under Section 189 of the Acl, will be available electronically
for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also
be available for electronic inspeclion without any fee by the members from the date of circulation
of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. September 29, 2022 and Members seeking to inspect
such documents and ask any information perlaining to the above can send an email o
complaints@texmopipe.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

10. Members whose shareholding is in electronic mode are requested to direcl notifications about
change of address, mobile number and email IDs lo their respective depository participants(s)
(DP)and also to quote Folio Number/Client ID/DP 1D, in all their correspondence with the
Company/DF.

11. Members seeking any information with regard fo the accounts are requested to write lo the
Company at an early dale, so as to enable the management to keep the information ready at the
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meeling.

12. The Share Transfer Book and Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 23"
September, 2022 to 29" September, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

13 In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, the corresponding Rules made thereunder and
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("the Listing Regulations™) and in lerms of SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, the Company has provided a facility to its members to
exercise their voles electronically lhrough the electronic voling (“remote e-voling™) facility
provided by the KFin Technologies Limited (KFin), the Registrar & Share Transfer Agenls
("RTA") of the Company.

14. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voling prior to the AGM may participate in the
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their voles again. The instructions for remote e-voling by
members holding shares in dematerialized mode and for members who have not registered their
email address is provided in the e-voling section which forms part of this Notice.

15. The Board of Directors have appointed CS Dinesh Kumar Gupla, Company Secretary in
Practice (FCS - 5396 and CP No. - 4715), as the Scrutinizer to scrulinize the remote e-volting as
well as the e-voting at the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.

16. Members holding shares as on cul-off date, i.e., Thursday, September 22, 2022, may cast their
voles electronically. A member will not be allowed lo vote again on any resolution on which his
vole has already been casl The voting rights of members shall be proportionale to their share of
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. as on September 22,
2022. A person who is not a member as on the cul-off dale is requested lo treat this Notice for
information purposes only.

ir. The remote e-voling period commences on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 9:00 am (IST) and
ends on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at 5:00 pm (IST). During this period, members holding
shares either in physical or dematerialized form, as on cul-off date, i.e. as on Thursday,
Seplember 22, 2022, may cast their votes electronically. The remote e-voling module will be
disabled by the RTA for voting thereafter. A member will nol be allowed to vole again on any
resolulion on which vote has already been cast through remote e-voling.

18. Once the vole on a Resolution is cast by the shareholder either through remote e-voling or at the
AGM, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

19. In pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of Companies
{(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Shri Ajay Shrivastava, Company Secretary is
authorized and responsible to address the grievances connected with the electronic voting and
contacl details of him is as under: E-mail: cs@texmopipe.com. Tel: 07325-255122, Address:
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited, 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur - 450 331, MP.

20. The facility for e-voting al the e-AGM will also be made available. Members presentin the e-AGM
through VC/OAVM and who have not casl their vole on the resolulions through remote e-volting
and are otherwise nol barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting system
during the e-AGM.

21. The results of the remole e-voting and poll in the e-AGM shall be declared within 2 (Two ) working
days of conclusion of the e-AGM and will be published on the website of the Company and also
intimated to the Stock Exchanges.

22, In compliance with the Circulars, the Annual Report for 2021-22, the Notice of the 14™ AGM and
the instructions for remote e-voting along with other relevant information are being sent only
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through electronic mode to those members whose email address is registered with the
Company / depaository participant(s).

23 We urge members to support our commitment to environmental protection by choosing to
receive the Company's communication through email. Members holding shares in demat mode,
who have not registered their email addresses are requested to register their email addresses as
per the instructions provided by your respective depository participants or RTA.

24, Members may also note that the Notice of the 14" AGM and the Annual Report for 2021-22 will
also be made available on the Company's website, hitps://lexmopipe.com, websites of the Stock
Exchanges, i.e. BSE Limited and Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited, at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of RTA,
https:Hlevoting kfintech.com.

25. Members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of nolice and beflore the cul-off date may
approach the Company/RTA for issuance of User |ID and Password for exercising their votes by
electronic means.

26. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Mumber (FAN) by every
participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore
requested to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s). Members holding shares in
physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the RTA.

27, SEB! vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd
Movember 2021 and clarification on the same dated 14th December 2021, on Common and
Simplified Norms for processing Investor's Service Request by RTAs, has mandated the
furnishing of PAN, Address with PIN code, Email address , Mobile No., Bank Accounl details ,
Specimen Signature & Nomination by holders of physical securities and thal "From 1st January
2022, RTAs shall nol process any service reguesis or complaints received from the
holder{s)/claimant({s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination documenis/ details are received

PROCEDURE AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND ATTENDING THE AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

i In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and in terms of SEBI vide circular no. SEBVYHO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/20207242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-Voting Facility Provided by Listed
Entities, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vole electronically, through the e-
Voling services provided by KFintech, on all the resolutions set forth in this Motice. The
instructions for e-Voting are given herein below.

ii. However, in pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/Pr2020/242 dated
December 9,2020 on “e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voling process has
been enabled lo all the individual demal account holders, by way of single login credential,
through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order o increase the efficiency
of the voling process.

iii. Individual demat accountholders would be able to cast their vote withoul having to register again
with thee-Voling service provider (ESP) thereby nol only facilitating seamless authentication but
also ease and convenience of parlicipating in e-Voling process. Shareholders are advised o
update their mobile number and e-mail 1D with their DPs to access e-Voling facility.

iv. The remote e-\Voling perod commences on Monday, September 26, 2022 at9:00am (1ST) and
ends on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at 5:00 pm (IST). The e-voling module will be
disabled by KFin thereafter.




TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (

vi.

wii.

14" Annual Report 2021-2022

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires
shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Motice and
holding shares as of the cul-off dale, may oblain the login 1D and password by sending a request
at evoling@Kiintech.com. However, if he / she is already registered with KFintech for remote e-
Voling then he /she can use his/ her existing User D and password for casting the vote.

In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires shares of
the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding
shares as of the cut-off dale may foliow steps mentioned below under "Login method for remote
e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode.”

The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained herein
below:

Step1 : Access lo Depositories e-Voling system in case of individual shareholders holding
shares in demat mode.

Slep 2 Access lo KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
and non-individual shareholders indemal mode.

step3 :Access lojoinvirlual meetings(e-AGM) of the Company on KFin system lo parlicipate e-
AGM and vote at the AGM.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

1)

Login method for remote e-Volting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Type of | Login Method
shareholders
. 1. User already registered for IDeAS facility:
Individual I.  Visit URL: https:/feservices nsdl.com
Shareholders Il.  Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under 'IDeAS’ section.
hoiding l.  On the new page, enter User 1D and Password. Post successful
securities in authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting”
demat mode | v Click on company name or e-Voting service provider and you will be re-
with NSDL directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting the vote during the

remote e-\Voting period.

2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services
To register click on link : hitps:/leservices.nsdl.com
[I_ Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click
athitps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp
I, Proceed with completing the required fields.
IV.  Follow steps given in points 1

3. Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL
l. Open URL: hitps://www evoting.nsdl.com/
Il.  Click on the icon “Login” which is available under "Shareholder/Member’
section.

.  Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixtean
digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a
\erification Code as shown on the screen.

IV.  Post successful authentication, you will requested to select the name of the
company and the e-Voting Service Provider name, i.e KFintech.

V.  On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-Voting page for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

-

i)
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= 1. Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest
Individual I Visit URL; htps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
Shareholders URL: www.cdslindia.com
holding ll.  Click on New System Myeasi
securiies in ll.  Login with your registered user id and password.
demat mode V.  The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e.
with CDSL KFintech e-Voting portal.
V. Click on e-\oting service provider name to cast your vote.
2. User not registered for Easi/Easiest
I.  Option to register is available at
hitps:/iweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Regisiration/EasiRegistration
Il. Proceed with completing the required fields.
.  Follow the steps given in point 1
3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL
. Visit URL: www cdslindia.com
1. Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No.
lll.  System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the demat Account.
IV.  After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESF, i.e. KFintech where the e- Voting is in progress.
L You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Individual through your DP registered with NSDL /CDSL for e-Voting facility.
Shareholder 1. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on
login through e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site
their demat after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Vioting feature.
accounts Ml Click on options available against company name ore -\Voting service
Website of provider —Kfintech and you willbe  redirected to e -Voting website of
DEPPE_“GW KFintech for casting your vote during the remote & -Voling period without
Faficipant any further authentication.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised lo use
Forgotuser ID and Forgot Password option available al respective websites.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demal mode for any technical issues
related lo login through Depository i.e. NSDLand CDSL.

_Login type

NSDL

Securities held with Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor

Helpdesk details

call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

CDSL

Securities held with Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-
23058542-43

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

1] Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual's shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

{A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (s),
will receive an email from KFintech which will include details of E-Voting Event Number
{EVEN), USER ID and password. They will have to follow the following process:

-

)
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l. Launchintermet browser by typing the URL:hitps://evoting kfintech.com/

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID will be
EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) oo, followed by folio number. In case of Demat account, User
ID will be your DP ID and Client 1D. However, if you are already registered with KFintech for e-
voiing, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

fii. After entering these details appropriately, click on "LOGIN".

iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required lo mandatorily change
your password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at leasl one
upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-3) and a special character (@ #.5,
etc., ). The system will prompt you to change your password and update your contact details like
mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You may also enter a secrel question and answer of
your choice lo retrieve your password in case you forgel it. It is strongly recommended that you
do nol share your password with any olher person and that you take utmost care to keep your

password confidential.
V. You need to login again with the new credentials.
vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you lo select the "EVEN" L.e., "'TEXMO PIPES AND

PRODUCTS LIMITED-AGM" and click on "Submit”

vil. On the voling page, enter the number of shares (which represents lhe number of voles)as on the
Cul-off Date under "FOR/AGAINST™ or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in
*FOR" and partially "AGAINST" but the total numberin "FOR/AGAINST laken together shall not
exceed your total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also choose the option
ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicate either "FOR" or "AGAINST" it will be treated as
“ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be counted under either head.

viii. Members holding mulliple folios/demal accounts shall choose the voling process separately for
each folio/ demat accounts.

ix. Voting has lo be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do nol desire to cast
your vole on any specificitem, it will be treated as abstained.

X You may then casl your volte by selecting an appropriale option and click on "Submit”.

xi. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK” lo confirm else "CANCEL" to modify. Once you

have voled on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting
period, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

il Corporate/Institutional Members (i_e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI elc.) are also required lo
send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter elc.,
authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and o castils
vole through remote e-voling. Together with atlested specimen signature(s) of the duly
authorised representative(s), o the Scrutinizer al email id esdineshgupta@gmail.com with a
copy marked lo evoting@kfintech.com. The scanned image of the above-mentioned
documents should be in the naming format “Corporate MName_EvenNo.”

(B) Members whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository
Participants(s), and consequently the Annual Report, Notice of AGM and e-voting
instructions cannot be serviced, will have to follow the following process:

I Members who have not registered their email address and in consequence the Annual Report,
Motice of AGM and e-voting instructions cannot be serviced, may temporarily get their email
address and mobile number provided with KFintech, by accessing the
link:hitps://ris. kfintech.com/clientservices/mobilereg/mobileemailreg. aspx. Members are

F "
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requested to follow the process as guided lo capture the email address and mobile number for
sending the soft copy of the nolice and e-voling instructions along with the User ID and
Password. In case of any queries, member may write to einward.risi@kfintech.com.

along with scanned copy of the signed copy of the request letter providing the email address,
mobile number, self-attested PAN copy and Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and
copy of share certificate in case of physical folio for sending the Annual report, Notice of AGM
and the e-voting instructions.

fii. After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all steps above to casl your vote by
electronic means.

iv. Shareholders may also visit the website of the Company https:/ftexmopipe.com or the websilte
of the RTAevoting.kfintech.com for downloading the Annual Report and Notice of the AGM.

Details on Step 3 are mentioned below:

1) Instructions for all the shareholders, including Individual, other than Individual and
Physical, for attending the AGM of the Company through VC/OAVM and e-Voting during
the meeting.

I Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM platform provided
by KFinltech. Members may access the same at hittps://femeetings.kfintech.com/ by using the e-
voling login credentials provided in the email received from the Company/KFintech. After
logging in, click on the Video Conference lab and select the EVEN of the Company. Click on the
video symbol and accept the meeling eliquettes lo join the meeting. Please nole that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voling or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remole e-Voling instructions mentioned
above.

ii. Facility for joining AGM though VC/ OAVM shall open atleast 15 minutes before the
commencement of the Meeling.

iii. Members are encouraged lo join the Meeting through Laptops/ Desklops with Google Chrome
{preferred browser), Safari, Intermet Explorer, Microsofl Edge, Mozilla Firefox22.

iv. Members will be required to granl access lo the webcam to enable VC / OAVM. Further,
Members connecling from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connectling via Mobile
Holspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Conneclion to miligate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

V. As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of
the AGM, Members are encouraged to express their views / send their queries in advance
mentioning their name, demat account number / folic number, email id, mobile number at
csi@texmopipe.com. Questions /queries received by the Company till 5:00 PM. on Monday,
Seplember 26, 2022 shall only be considered and responded during the AGM.

vi. The Members who have not casl their vote through remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their
vole through e-voling system available during the AGM. E-voling during the AGM is integrated
with the VC / OAVM platform. The Members may click on the voling icon displayed on the screen
lo casttheir votes.

vil. A Member can opt for only single mode of voling i.e., through Remote e-voling or voling al the
AGM. If a Member casts voles by both modes, then voling done through Remote e-voling shall
prevail and vote al the AGM shall be treated as invalid.
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wiii. Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be available for atleast 2000 members on
first come first served basis.

i Institutional Members are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through VC / OAVIM.
OTHER INSTRUCTIONS

L Speaker Registration: The Members who wish to speak during the meeling may register
themselves as speakers for the AGM lo express lheir views. They can visil
htips://emeetings kfintech.com and login through the user id and password provided in the mail
received from Kfintech. On successful login, select 'Speaker Registration' which will opened
from Saturday, September 24, 2022 v Monday, Seplember 26, 2022. Members shall be
provided a 'queue number’ before the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the
speakers al the AGM to only those Members who have registered themselves, depending on the
availability of ime for the AGM.

Il Post your Question: The members who wish to post their questions prior to the meeling cando
the same by visiting https:J/femeetings kfintech.com. Please login through the user id and
password provided in the mail received from Kfintech. On successiul login, select 'Post Your
Question’ option which will opened from Saturday, September 24, 2022 to Monday, September
26,2022

1. In case of any query and/or grievance, in respecl of voling by eleclronic means, Members may
refer to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual available at
the download section of hitps://evoling.kfintech.com(KFintech Website) or contact at

il LSl

clarifications

. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on
Thursday, September 22, 2022, being the cul-off date, are enlitled to vole on the Resolutions set
forth in this Notice. A person who is nol a Member as on the cul-off date should treal this Notice
for information purposes only. Once the vote on a resolution(s) is cast by the Member, the
Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispaltch of AGM Naotice buton or
before the cut-off dale for E-voling, he/she may obtain the User ID and Password in the manner
as mentioned below:

L If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./ DP ID Client ID, the
member may send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voling Event Number+Folio No. or DP
ID Client ID to 85212993399

Example for NSDL:

MYEPWD <SPACE= IN12345612345678

Example for CDSL:

MYEPWD <SPACE= 1402345612345673

Example for Physical:

MYEPWD <SPACE= XXXX1234567890

U o

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio Mo. /DP ID
Client ID, then on the home page of hitps.//evoting kfintech.com/, the member may click
“Forgol Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN lo generate a
password.

iii. Members who may require any technical assistance or support before or during the
AGM are requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-308-4001 or write to
them at evoting@kfintech.com.
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VL The Results shall be declared forthwith by the Chairman or a person authorized by Board in
writing and the Resolulions will be deemed lo be passed on the AGM date subjecl to the requisite
number of voles caslin favor of the Resolution(s).

VI The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's
website hitps:/ftexmopipe.com and on the websile of RTA http:/fevoting.kfintech.com within 2
{Two) working days from the conclusion of the e-AGM and shall also be communicated to the
Stock Exchanges where the Company's shares are listed and also displayed in the Notice Board
at the Registered Office of the Company.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANMNUAL
GENERALMEETING

{Pursuantto Regulalion 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015}

MName T[late of Date of Qualification Mature of Relations | Directors |MembershipNumber of
| Birth appointment his / her hip hip in of ares
experiise between | other Commitiees held in the
in specific | directors | listed of other ompany
functional inter-se entities, listed entitie
areas and
listed
entities
from
which the
person
has
resigned
in the
past
three
—_— . | years. —_—
Smit. |27.05.1967 | 13.08.2013 B.A Business Wife of il Ml 47 00,092
Rashmi | Managemeni Mr.
Agrawal Sanjay
(DM Kumar
00316248) Agrawal
BRIEF RESUME:-

Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal is an Arts graduate from Nagpur University, and having more than 24 years of rich
experence in the field of forming the policies relating to Marketing and Human Resource Development
and relevant field.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The following Statemenl sets oul all material facts relating to the Business mentioned in the
accompanying Nolice:

ITEMNO3

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointmenl and
remuneration of the Cosl Auditor M/s Saurabh Parikh & Associates, Cost Accountants to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2023, the remuneration
will be Rs. 80,000/- (Rupees Eighty Thousand only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has lo be ratified by the Shareholders of the
Company.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in lterm No. 3 of this Notice for your approval.

Mone of the Direcltors!/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives is, in any way,

g
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concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution sel out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice.
ITEMNO4

In light of Section 188(1) of the companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and on the
recommendation of the Audit committee, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26.05.2022 has
approved the proposed revision in threshold of the relaled party transaction with respecl to sale,
purchase and supply of goods, material and services etc. with "Shree Vasudeo Industries” from Rs. 110
Crores only/- (Rupees One Hundred and Ten Crores only) o Rs. 150 Crores only/- (Rupees One
Hundred and Fifty Crores only).

All disclosure prescribed under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meeting
of Board and ils Powers) Rules 2014, and pursuant to the SEBI Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI
(LODR)} Regulations 2015 and other applicable provisions, if any, are appended below.

A summary of the information provided by the management of the Company to the audit committee is
appended below.

1 Name of the Party Shree Vasudeo Industries

2 Its relationship with the listed entity or | Director's relative is partner.
its subsidiary, including nature of its
concern or interest (financial or

otherwise).
3 Mature and particulars of the Sale, Purchase and supply of goods, materal and
transaction. services etc.
4 Tentative amount of the Proposed Rs. 1,50,00,00,000/- {(Rupees one hundred
transaction. and Fifty Crores only).
5 Tenure of the proposed transaction From financial year 2022-23 on annual basis.
and material terms. The said transaction is an ongoing business
transaction in ordinary course of business and on
arm's length basis at prevailing market price,
subject to review and approval by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors in every
financial year.
6 If the transaction relates to any Mot applicable.

loans, inter -corporate deposits,
advances or investments made or
given by the listed entity or its
subsidiary

7 Manner of determining the Price. At prevailing market price.

8 The percentage of the listed entity's | The tentative amount of the proposed RPT is
annual consolidated turnover, for the | 26.58 % of the annual consolidated turnover for the
immediately preceding financial year, | immediately preceding financial year of the

that is represented by the value of the | Company.

proposed transaction.

9 Justification as to why the RPT is in The above RPT with Shree Vasudeo Industries is
the interest of the listed entity. to cater the business prospect of the Company and
as delivery from near to our factory area, resulting

in saving of transportation and other related cost.

N

-
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The above proposed transaclion doesn't relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the Company (Texmo Pipes and Products LId.) or its subsidiary.

The above transaction with the related party is to cater the business prospect of the Company and as
delivery from near to our factory area, resulting in saving of transportation and other related and
associated cosl.

As per the aforementioned provisions, transactions of sale, purchase or supply of any goods or material
amounting lo ten percent or more of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company or Rupees One
Thousand Crore, whichever is lower, require prior approval of shareholders by way of a Special
Resolution.

The Audit Commitlee and Board of Directors of your Company have approved this item in their Meetings
held on 26 May, 2022. The Audit Committee and Board of Directors are of the opinion that the
transactions are on arm length basis and are in the ordinary course of business and recommends the
resolulion as set out in the accompanying Notice for the approval of members of the Company as a
Special Resolution.

Shri Mohit Agrawal, Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal and Smi. Rashmi Agrawal are inlerested in the
Resolution. Excepl that none of the Directors or Key Managenal Personnel of the Company or their
relatives directly or indirectly concerned orinterested in the passing of the above resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as setout in llem No. 4 of this Notice for your approval.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place: Burhanpur

Date: August 10, 2022 Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS 41817
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BOARD'S REPORT
To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 14" Annual Report on the business and operations of
your Company together with the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor's Report for the year
ended 31%March, 2022.

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company (Standalone and
Consolidated)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
I8 202122 [ 202021 202122 | 202021
Turmover 56,441 53 *42 694 49 56,441 .53 *42 594 490
Profit before Inlerest, Depreciation and 3,357 .42 258204 331961 2,543.28
Tax
tﬂsﬁ g*lﬂfe‘s! i 569.29 516.47 569.29 516.47
i 81929 | 62568 81930 | 62568
Frofit before tax 1,968_84 1,440.79 1.931.02 140113
Less Provision for lax
Currenl lax 525.00 370.00 R25.00 370.00
Deferrad lax {34.81) (18.60) (34.81) (18.60)
Excess provision for earlier year 17.74 (33.69) 17.74 {33.69)
Profit after tax 1,460.91 1,123.08 142309 1,083.42
Prior year adjustment - - - -
Profit after tax & prior year adjustments 1,460.91 1,123.08 142309 1,083.42
Profil afler adjustmenl of discontinued 1,460.91 1,123.08 142300 1,083 42
operalions )
Balance of profit brought forward from 683.18 {447 _32) 3.799.41 2.680.18
_earlier years L 3 : e
Transferred from Revaluation Resermve 11.38 4 52 11.38 452
Adjustment relating to Fixed Assels (netl - - - -
of Deferred Tax)
Unamortized cosl written off on (33.79) (31.28) (2-70) (2.90)
discounting of loans lo subsidiary
Unamorlized Interest Expenses on (086} - (0.86) -
Loans from related parties wrillen off
Other comprehensive income 11.67 3418 11.67 3418
Exchange difference on  translation of - - 2661.12 242915
financial stalements of Toreign
operations
Profit available for 213250 683.18 524198 3,799.41
Appropriations:
- Appropriations I
Transfer lo General Reserves
Proposed dividend:
Equity - - - -
- Preference
Profit carried lo Balance Sheel 213250 68318 524198 379941

*Includes Income from Sale of Services i.e. Freight and Logistics Income.
"
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During the year under review, the Company recorded lotal revenue of Rs 56,441.53 Lakhs as compared
to Rs. 42,694.49 Lakhs in the previous year which is increase by 32.20% The Company has earned a net
profil of Rs.1,460.91 Lakhs as against profit of Rs. 1,123.8 Lakhs in the previous year which is increase
by 30.08%. Your Directors are hopeful that the Company may continue showing better performance in
coming year.

2, Change in nature of Business
During the year under review, lthere has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company.

3: Dividend

Your Directors do not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and the
available surplus be retained to strength the net worth of the company.

4. Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not proposed any amount to be transferred to the Reserves for the year ended
J1st March, 2022.

5. Details of Subsidiary  Associate Companies

The Company had one subsidiary namely Tapti Pipes & Products Limited FZE (Overseas
Subsidiary).

The consolidated financial statements of your Company for the financial year 2021-22, are
prepared in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013, Accounting
Standards and SEBI (LODR) Regulalions, 2015. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis of audiled financial statemenis of the Company, its subsidiaries, as
approved by their respeclive Board of Direclors.

A separate statement in Form AOC-1 containing the salient features of linancial statements of
subsidiaries of your Company forms part of consolidated financial slatements in compliance with
Section 129 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Acl, 2013.

6. Commission received by Directors from Subsidiary.

During the year under review none of the directors of the Company are in receipt of the
commission or remuneration from subsidiary of the Company, as provided under section 187
(14) of the Companies Act, 2013.

T. Details relating to remuneration of Director, KMPs and employees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act 2013 read with rule 5 (1) and 5{2) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in Annexure - A.
8. Particulars of Employees

The statement of employees who receives remuneration exceeding the limits specified under
Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
also provided in Annexure—Ato this repori.

9. Particulars of loans, guarantees, investments outstanding during the financial year

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securilies provided along
with the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the
recipienl are provided in the standalone financial statement (Please refer to Nole 7 and 8 to the
standalone financial statement).

10. Annual Return

As required under Seclion 82(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 read
with rule 12 of the Companies (Managemenl and Administration) Rules, 2014 including

F "
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amendments thereunder, the Annual Relumn filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) for
the Financial Year 2020-21 is available on the web-ink of the Company at https:/texmopipe.com
and the Annual Return for Financial Year 2021-22 will be made available on the website of the
Company once ilis filed with the MCA.

1. Deposits

Your Company has not invited/accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, during the year under review.

12. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

A statement giving details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earmnings and out-go, in accordance with the requirement of the Section 134(3}{m) of the
Companies Acl, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 forms part of this
Board's Report and is annexed as Annexure - B.

13. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

All confracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. During
the year, the Company had entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related
parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on
matenality of related party transactions. The particulars of contracts or amangements with
related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year
2021-22 in the prescribed format, AOC 2 has been enclosed with the report as Annexure - C.

The Policy on maleriality of related party transactions and manner of dealing with related party
transaclions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company's website at the link:
https://texmopipe.com

14. Auditors:
A Statutory Auditors:

The Statutory Auditors M/s Anil Kamal Garg & Company, Chartered Accountants, Indore (Firm
Registration No. 004186C) was appointed in 10™ Annual General Meeting to hold office from the
conclusion of the 10™ Annual General Meeting for a term of five consecutive years till conclusion
of 15" Annual General Meeting (subject to ratification of the appointment by the members at
every Annual General Meeting). The requiremenl of seeking ralification of the members for the
continuous of their appointment has been withdrawn consequenl upon the changes made by the
Companies (Amendment) Acl, 20117 with effect from May 07, 2018.

The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the effect thal they are eligible lo continue

with their appointment and that they have not been disqualified in any manner from continuing as
Slalutory Auditors.

B. Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to provisions of Secltion 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed CS Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary in Practice, Indore (M.P.), to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.

C: Cost Auditors:

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed M/s. Saurabh Parikh and Associates,
Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 101495) as Cost Auditor of the Company, for the
financial year ending 31st March 2023, on a remuneration as mentioned in the Motice convening
the 14" Annual General Meeting for conducting the audit of the cost records maintained by the

F "
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Company.

A Cerificate from M's. Saurabh Parikh and Associates, Cost Accountants has been received to
the effect thal their appointment as Cosl Auditor of the Company, if made, would be in
accordance with the limits specified under Section 141 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.

A resolulion seeking Members' approval for remuneration payable to Cos!t Auditor forms part of
the Motice of the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company and same is recommended for
your consideralion.

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, the Company has made and maintained such accounts and records.
15. AUDITOR'S REPORTS
A Statutory Auditor's Report:

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

B. Secretarial Auditor's Report :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointiment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014, the
Company has oblained a Secretarial Audil Report in the prescribed Form MR-3, from CS Dinesh
Kumar Gupta, Company Secrelary in praclice, Indore (M.P.). The Company has also laken
Secretarial Compliance Report during the year lrom Secretarial Auditor as per SEBI (Listing
Obligalions and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 requiremenl. The Secretarial
Auditor’ Reporl dated is annexed herewith as Annexure - D. The Secretarial Auditor has

observed gualifications as above in the reportasunder

a) The company has filed Form MGT-14 for Board Resolutions dated 14.02.2022 afler the
closure of financial year on 13.06.2022 with additional fees.

b) The Company received a Show Cause Notice ref. SEBI/HO/EAD-8/KS/NC/17934/2019
dated 16.07.20219 from the Office of Adjudicating Officer, SEBI pertaining to GDR issue
of the Company. The company has filed a reply against the said notice on 08.03.2021.

Accordingly, a hearing before the Ld. Adjudicating Officer has been held on 18.05.2022.
The Adjudicating Officer of SEBI passed an ORDER NO. OrderVVINK/2022-23/17383-
17389 on 28.06.2022 imposed penalty under Section 15HA of SEBI Act of Rs. 10.00
Crore on the company and Rs. 87_00 Lacs on Directors/others and under Section 23E of
SCRAof Rs. 25.00 Lacs on the company.

However, as per explanation given by the company, it has filed appeal with Hon'ble
Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said order.

The comments of the Board on the above are as under:

a) The Company has filed the form on the said date due lo inadvertence and owing to gap in
internal office information.

b) The Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in consullation with the
Counsel with their due advice and legal opinion has filed an appeal before the Hon'ble
Securities Appellate Tribunal {SAT ) and challenged the said order.

16. Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors other than those which are reportable to
the Central Government

The Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors or Secretarial Auditors of the Company have not reported
any frauds to the Audit Commitiee or o lhe Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the

"
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CompaniesAct, 2013, including rules made there under.
17. Share Capital

During the Financial Year 2021-22, there has been no change in the Authorized Share Capilal of
the Company & there has been no change and increase in issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Company.

Ason 31.03.2022, the Company has authorized share capital of Rs. 36,00,00,000/- divided into
3,60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each & issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
standsat Rs. 29,19,50,000/-divided into 2,91,95,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each.

18. Disclosure regarding issue of employee stock options

The Company has not issued any shares under employee’s stock options scheme pursuant to
provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

19. Disclosure regarding issue of sweat equity shares

The Company has not issued sweat equity shares pursuant to provisions of Section 54 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year.

20. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Smit. Rashmi Agrawal
{DIN:00316248), retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeling and being eligible
offers herself for re-appointment. Smt Rashmi Agrawal has given declaration in terms ol Section
164(2) of the Companies Acl, 2013 o the effect thal she is not disqualified from being
reappointed as a Direclor of the Company.

During the year under review, there has been no change taken place in Directors or KMPs of the
Company.

21. Declaration given by Independent Director(s) and reappointment.

In compliance with Section 149(7) of the Act, all Independent Directors have given declaration
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1 }{b) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015.

The Company in its 13" Annual General Meeting passed a Special Resolution to re-appoint Mr.
Amber Chaurasia (DIN- 07729278) as Non-Executive Independenl Director for a second term of
five consecutive years with effect from 10 February, 2022.

The Board of Directors also stated that the re-appointment of Independent Director done was in
consideration and regard to his Integrity, Expertise and Experience (including the proficiency).

Other than the above, there are no other appointment / re-appointment of Independent Directors
of the Company in the Financial Year 2021-22.

22. Internal Financial Controls

The Company believes that inlernal conirol is necessary principle of prudenlt business
governance that freedom of managemenl should be exercised within a framework of
appropriale checks and balances. The Company remains committed to ensuring an effective
internal control environment that inter alia provides assurance on ordery and efficient conduct of
operations, security of assets, prevention and detection of frauds/errors, accuracy and
completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company's independent and Internal Audit processes, both al the Business and Corporate
levels, provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, compliance
with operaling systems, internal policies and regulatory requirements.

The Financial Statemenis of the Company are prepared on the basis of the Significant

"
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Accounting Policies thal are carefully selected by management and approved by the Board.
These, in lurn are supported by a sel of divisional Delegation Manual & Standard Operating
Procedures (SOPs) that have been established for individual units/ areas of operalions.

The Company uses SAP Syslems as a business enabler and also lo maintain its Books of
Accounl. The SOPs in tandem with transactional controls built into the SAP Systems ensure
appropriate segregation of duties, liered approval mechanisms and maintenance of supporting
records. The systems, SOPs and controls are reviewed by Senior management and audited by
Internal Auditor whose findings and recommendations are reviewed by the Audil Commitlee of
Board of Directors and tracked through to implementation.

The Company has in place adequate intemnal financial controls with reference to lhe Financial
Statements. Such controls have been tested during the year and no reporlable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed. Nonetheless the Company recognizes thal
any internal financial control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations
and accordingly, regular audit and review processes ensure that such syslems are reinforced on
an ongoing basis.

23. Number of meetings of Board of Directors and committees

The details of Board and Committee meetings are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

24, Committees of the Board

The details with respecl to the composilions, powers, roles and terms of reference elc. of
relevant Committees of the Board of Direcltors are also given in the Corporate Governance
Reporl which forms a part of this Annual Reporl. All recommendations made by the Audil
Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

20

25. Familiarization Programme

The Company has conducted the programme through its Managing Director, Whole-lime
Director, Company Secretary and other Senior Managerial Personnel to familiarize the
Independent Directors with Company in following areas:-

- Familiarization with the Company;

- Independent directors’ roles, righls and responsibilities;
- Board dynamics & functions;

- Mature of the Industry in which the Company operates;
- Business Model of the Company;

- Compliance management.

The Policy on Familiarization Programme may be accessed on the Company’s website at the
link: https://texmopipe.com
26. Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable to the Company,
accordingly the Company has developed and implemented Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives. The Board in its meeling held on Oclober 28, 2020 adopted Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the composition of the CSR. Committee is as
under:

1) Dr. Smita Hajar, Chairperson
2) Mr. Sanjay KumarAgrawal, Member
3) Mr. Parvez Anjum, Member.
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In addition to the above the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company has
recommended for incorporation of a Section 8 Company for undertaking CSR activities in the
future. The same was considered and approved by the Board ol Directors of the Company. The
details of the Secltion 8 Company incorporated by the Company is appended below as

hereunder.
(S.no.[ ___ Title ___ Details
1| Name of the Section 8 Company _Texmo Pipes Foundation
2 Corporale ldentificaion Number Ua5300MP2022NPLOG1022
(CIN)
3 Date of Incorporation 24™ May, 2022
4 Registered Address 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur, Madhya Pradesh - 450 331

The Reporton CSR activities is annexed herewith as Annexure - E.
27. BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant lo provisions of the section 134(3)(p), 149(8) and Schedule IV of the Companies Acl,
2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations, annual performance evaluation of
Directors as well as of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Board has been carried out.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried oul by the entire Board
and the Performance Evaluation of Chairman and Mon-Independent Directors was carried out
by the Independent Directors.

The manner in which the evalualion has been carried oul has been provided in the Corporate
Governance Report

28. Corporate Governance

The Company continue to imbibe and emulate the best corporate governance practices aimed
al building trust among all stakeholders - shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and
others. The Company believes that fairness, transparency, responsibility and accountability are
the four key elements of corporate governance. The Corporate Governance Report presented in
a separale section forms an integral part of this Annual Report as Annexure -F.

29. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees

The Vigil Mechamsm of the Company, which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of
the Listing Regulations, includes an Elhics & Compliance Task Force comprising senior
executives of the Company. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through an
e-mail, or dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Task Force or {o the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy may be accessed on the
Company's website at https://ftexmopipe.com. During the year under review no complaint was
received in vigil mechanism.

30. Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company framed a policy for Nomination and Remuneration of all Directors & KMPs elc in
accordance with provisions of section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to harmonize the aspiralions of human
resources consistenl with the goals of the Company. Board of Direclors of the Company
approved and updated the said policyas and when required. The same may be accessed on the

Company's website at: hitps://texmopipe.com

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee works with the entire Board to determine the
appropriate characteristics, skills and experience required for the Board as a whole and for
individual members. Members are expecled to possess the required qualifications,
integrity, expertise and experience for the position. They should also possess the deep expertise
and insights in seclors/ areas relevant to the Company and ability to contribute to the Company's
growth.
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31. Risk Management Policy

The Company, like any other enlerprise, is exposed fo business risk which can be an internal
risks as well as external risks. One of the key risks faced by the Company in today's scenario is
the wide and frequent fluctuations in the prices of its raw malerial. Any further increase in prices
of raw materials could create a sirain on the operating margins of the Company. Inflationary
tendencies in the economy and deterioration of macroeconomic indicators can impact lthe
spending power of lhe consumer because of which down trading from branded products to non-
branded can occur which can affect the operating performance of the Company.

Any unexpecled changes in regulatory framework pertaining lo fiscal benefils and other related
issue can affecl our operations and profitability.

However the Company is well aware of the above risks and as part of business sirategy has pul
in mechanism to ensure that they are mitigated with timely action. The Company has a robust
Business Risk Management (BRM) framework to identify, evaluate business risks and
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the
business objectives and enhance the Company's competitive advantage.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, none of the aforementioned risks affect and/or threaten
the existence of the Company.

32. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund

During the year under review the Company has no liability lo transfer to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

33. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis, as required under Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule V of said Regulalions, forms part of this Board's repori as
Annexure - G.

34. Directors' Responsibility Statement

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Acl, 2013, the Board of Directors
Confirm that-

(1) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2021-22, lhe applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(i) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimales thal are reasonable and prudent so as lo give a tfrue and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for thal period;

{iii} The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregulanties;

(iv) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v} The directors, had laid down internal financial controls lo be followed by the company
and thal such internal financial controls are adequate and were operaling effectively;
and

(vi) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

35. Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, there are no proceedings initiated against the Company under the
Insolvency and Bankrupley Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

T
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41.
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Details of difference between Amount of the valuation done at the time of One Time
Settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons thereof

During the year under review, there were no instances where the Company required the
valuation for one time settlement or while taking the loan from the Banks or Financial institutions.

Secretarial Standards

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards i.e. 55-1 and 55-2, relating to
'Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and '"General Meelings', respectively as specified by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Revision of Annual Financial Statements
There was no case of revision in financial staterment during the year.
Voting Rights of Employees

There were no voting rights exercised by any employee of the Company pursuant to the section
67(3) read with the Rule 16 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company.

There have been no materal changes and commitments affecting financial position of the
Company that have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of this reporL

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal

There were no significant and material orders passed by lthe regulalors or courls or tribunal
impacling the going concern stalus and Company's operalions in fulure.

However, the Company was in receipt of show cause notice from SEBI dated 16.07.2019 from
the Ofiice of Adjudicating Officer pertaining lo GDR issue of the Company. Accordingly, the
Company has filed a reply against the said nolice on 08.03.2021. Also, a hearing before the Ld.
Adjudicating Officer has been held on 18.05.2022 However, the Adjudicating Officer of SEBI
passed an order on 28.06.2022 imposed a penalty of Rs. 10.25 Cr. on the Company. The
Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in consultation with the Counsel with
their due advice and legal opinion signified that the order has been passed on inaccurate
assessment of facts and on disproportionate grounds.and accordingly filed an appeal before the
Hon'ble Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said order.

Code of Conduct

The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for members of the Board and Senior Management
personnel of the Company. The Code lays down, in details, the standards of business conduct,
ethics and governance. The compliance of the same has been affirmed and a declaration
signed by the Managing Director to this effect is given below. Code of Conduct has also been
posted on the Company’s Website. hitps://texmopipe.com

Declaration

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company hereby confirms that it has oblained from all the Members of the Board and senior
management personnel, affirmations thal they have complied with the code of conduct in
respeclof inancial year ended on March 31, 2022.

Anti-sexual harassment policy

The Company has in place an Anli-Sexual Harassmenl Policy in line with the requiremenis of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibiion and Redressal) Act
2013. An Internal Commitlee has been sel up to redress the complaints received regarding
sexual harassment at workplace. All employees including frainees are covered under this policy.

"
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The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during
the current financial year.

MNumber of Complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year: Nil
MNumber of Complaints received during the financial year: Nil
MNumber of Complaints disposed off during the financial year: Nil
Mumber of Complaints pending at the end of financial year: Nil

44, Acknowledgement

Your Directors would like to gratefully acknowledge and place on record their sincere
appreciation for the cooperation and assislance received from its stakeholders, advisors, valued
customers, suppliers, banks, consultants, financial institutions, govermmenl authorities and
stock exchanges. The Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation of the
devoted and dedicated services rendered by all Executives, Staff Members and Workmen of the

ey

Company.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu

Place:- Burhanpur Managing Director Whole Time Director cum CFO

Date: 10.08.2022 (DIN 00316249) {DIN D2066748)

S
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'"ANNEXURE — A’

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR AS REQUIRED UNDER
SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL),
RULES, 2014.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Direclor, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during financial year 2021-22, ratio of the remuneralion of each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for financial year 2021-22.

'S. Name of Director/KMP | Remuneration of | %lincrease In Ratio of Remuneration |
Mo. and Designation Directors | KMPs For | Remuneration In | of Each DirectoriTo
Financial Year 2021- | The Financial Median of
2022 (in Rs.) Year 2021-2022 | Remunerationof
Employees
1 Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal, 78,00,000 64.21% 54.16
Chairperson and Whole-ime
Director
2 | Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 2.40,00,000 T7.78% 166.67
Managing Director
3 | Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu 10,459,898 - 9.27
Whole-lime Director cum CFO
4 | Mr. Mohil Agrawal 43,80,000 180.77% 30.42
Chiel Executive Officer
| 5 | Mr. Ajay Shrivaslava 7,32,397 13.07% 5.09
Company Secrelary

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entiled for sitling fee which is as per the
statutory provisions and within the limits approved by lhe shareholders. The details of
remuneration of Non-Execulive Direclors are provided in the Corporate Governance Reportand
govermned by the Differential Remuneration Policy, as detailed in the said report. The ralio of
remuneration and percentage increase for Non-Executive Directors Remuneration is therefore
not considered for the purpose above.

The median remuneration of employees of the company during the financial 2021-2022 was Rs.
1,44 ,000/-

In the financial year, there was increase of 13.21 % in the median remuneration of employees;
There were 420 permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31" March, 2022;

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in financial year 2021-2022 was-14.15 %.

The key paramelers for the variable components of remuneration availed by the board of
directors based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee as
per remuneration policy for directors and senior management personnel.

There was one employee in the form of Managing Director who received remuneralion higher
than the limil as provided in Rule 5(2) of Companies {(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the delails ol the same has been mentioned in this Reporl
as followed.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year ended 31" March 2022 is as per
remuneration policy ofthe Company.
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THE STATEMENT OF NAMES OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO RULE 5(2) OF
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MAMAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014 ISAS UNDER:

Name | Designation| Remuneration | Nature of | Qualification(s) | Date of | Details of |
of the received Employment |, (Experience) | Commence Previous
Employ {Rs.) ment of employment
ee and employment

(Age)

Employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration aggregaling nol less than Rs.
1,02,00,000/- for the year.

Mr. Managing 24000, 000~ | General B.Com, LLB. 03.07.2008 | Business
Sanjay Director Conlrol of the | and MBA (34) alfairs
Kumar Business and
Agrawal Operalions
(58) and

Managemenl

of the

Company -

Permanent

Employed for a part of the year and in receipl of remuneration aggregating not les s than Rs. 8,50,000/- |
per month — MIL

If the employe d throughout the financial year or parl thereof was in receipl of remuneration in thal year
which , in the aggregale, or as lhe case may be, al a rale which, in the aggregale is in excess of the
drawn by the Managing Director or Whole Time Direclor or Mana ger and holds by himsell or along with
his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2 % of the equity shares of the Company- NIL

Total remuneration includes Salary, House Renl Allowance, Medical Allowance, Conveyance
Allowance, Uniform Allowance and Other Allowance and Children Education Allowance etc.

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director is related to Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal, Chairperson
and Whole-Time Direclor, being spouse.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

Sd/- Sdl/-
Place:- Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Date: August 10, 2022 Managing Director Whole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN 00316249) (DIN D2066748)
"
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'ANNEXURE - B’

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO, IN THE MANNER AS PRESCRIBED IN RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
i) a) Steps taken for conservation of energy

- Installation of online PVC Pipe Socketing Machines in place of manual socketing with
advance technology ol heating sections wilh auto on-off systems.

- Instaltation of PVC Casing Pipe CNC Threading Machines in place of conventional lathe
machine completely PLC base that increases the productivity.

- Installation of PVC Coupler Threading Machines in place of conventional lathe machine
completely PLC base that increase the productivity.

- Installed latest technology drip machines for low wall thickness pipe with the line speed
of 200 meter per minule.

- Installed grooving and riveting machine for sprinkler coupler that reduce our outsourcing
of coupler.

- Installation of Laser Marking machine in place of inkjet printer for our CPVC Pipe that
reduce the cost of consumable like ink, make up and cleaning solutions.

- Construction of CC roads in place of Paver blocks for mobilization of our FG products
from plant to stock yard that reduce the break down of our vehicle as well as save time.

- Increasing ground water level by doing rain water harvesting.

- Covered the heating zones of offline socket machine heaters chamber with insulated
material

- Transparent sheets have been put on which amounts to power saving during day shift.
- Installations of mixers for drying HDPE granules.

- Replace few machines Vaccum tank with the new S5 tanks & fix 2 vaccum pump of 3 & 2
HP in place of one 7 HP

- Usage of SSR (Solid State Relay) in place of contactor.
- Replacement of Induction Motor to Servo Molor.

- Make the mixers for HDPE & Master Balch mixings its resulls we save the manpower &
homogenous mixing of the machine soreduces the load variations.

- Gradually replacing the shade rooflight from CFL 36W to 18W Led lights.
- Gradually implanting VFD (Variable frequency drive) at mixers in place of slar deita.

- Installation of Pholosensitive device LDR Sensors which auto cutoff the open field light
at moming light.

- Gradually replacing the Hot embossing marking machine having heater of 750W by
Lazer marking machine of 30W.

b) Impact of Conservation of Energy

- Increase of productivity by installation of CNC threading machines in place of
conventional lathe machine.

- Reduction of cost of consumable like ink, make up and cleaning solutions by installation
of grooving and riveting machine.

"
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- Reduce the break down of vehicle as well as save time in mobilizing FG products by
constructing CC roads in place of Paver blocks

- Maintain the internal healing of healer chamber & the less work lo healer so less power
consume.

- Less chance of healer shol, Life of the panel increases, now the sudden ampere shoot
become less soless power consume.

- Optimum utilization of production capacity by energy saving and conseguently reduction
in the cost of production.
- Unnecessary waslage of power is saved by implanting LDR Sensors

- By using lazer marking power consumption is reduce by almost 7 times with better
printing quality.
i) Steps faken by the Company fertilization of alternate source of energy -

The Company has launch renewable energy by way of installing solar plant in its factory premises to
generate solar power. By installation of solar power plant the Company has reduced its dependency on
traditional source of energy because solar power provides energy independence, energy security and
energy reliability. This will also helps in diminution of expulsion of CO2 and other green house gas
emissions and has been proved 1o be an eco friendly.

i) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: - Rs. 250 lakhs approx.
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
{i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

- Instaltation of online PVC Pipes Sockeling Machines in place of manual sockeling with
advance technology ol healing sections with auto on-off systems.

- Installed latest technology drip machines for low wall thickness pipe with the line speed
of 200 meter per minute.

- Laser printing on LLDPE Pipes.

- Install Pad Printing machines for the PVYC Column Coupler & fabricated coupler
marking, replacing lhe same with manual basis, so it decreases operation cosl

- Usage of chiller waler for cooling the pipe in HDPE Extruder its help us to achieve us the
max capacity of the plant with less quality defects.

- Replace few machines Vaccum tank with the new S5 tanks & fix 2 vaccum pump of 3 & 2
HP in place of one 7 HP.

- Works on the drip machine at their insertion & perforation part & it results the output of
the machine at the same power consumptions.

- Make the mixers for HDPE & Master Batch mixings its results in saving the manpower &
homogenous mixing of the machine loreduces the load variations

- Replacement of hand sealing machine by aulomalic conveying sealing machine.

- EOT Crain has been installed in PVC Pipe Plant for unloading of raw material jumbo
bags.

- Replacemenlt of single head by double head fussing machine so thal two operations of
jointing on sprinkler pipes could be done simultaneously.

(i) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
imports substitutions:

By introducing the above mechanism the process has become simplified which resulling in

"
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improvement in the quality of products and cost efficienl also.

{iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) — All technologies used are indigenous.

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Approx. Rs. 8 lakhs.
C.FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO:-
(i) Foreign Exchange Outgo:-

Particulars Amount
Pipe Tesling Expenses 0.87
ii) Foreign Exchange Earning:-
Particulars Amount
Mil Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

Sdi- Sdl-
Place:- Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Date: August 10, 2022 Managing Director Whole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN DD316249) (DIN D2066748)
F "
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ANNEXURE -C
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
{Accounts)Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at arm’s length basis:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f
(g)
(h)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relaltionship: NotApplicable
Nature of contracis/arrangements/fransaclions: Not Applicable
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/iransactions: Not Applicable

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or lransaclions including the value, if
any: Not Applicable

Justification for entering into such conlracts or arrangements or transaclions: Not
Applicable

Date(s) of approval by the Board: Mot Applicable
Amountl paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeling as required
under first proviso to section 188: Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions atarm’s length basis
Sr. | Name of | Nature of | Nature of Duration of | Salient terms of the
Mo | Related Party | Relationship | transaction | transaction | confracts or arrangements
or transactions including
the value, if any
1. | Mrs. Rashmi Whole Time | Leasing of On- going In normal course of business
Agrawal Director property and at prevailing market
prices.
. Rent paid Rs. 85.02 Lakhs.
2. | Mr. Sanjay Managing Leasing of On- going In normal course of business
Kumar Agrawal | Director property and at prevailing market
prices.
Rent paid Rs. 115.56 Lakhs.
| Sales or | On-going In normmal course of business
supply of any | business and at prevailing market
goods and prices.
| materials Rs. 1.31 Lakh.

-
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3. | Shree Vasudeo | Relatives of | Purchase or | On- going In normal course of business
Industries Directors are | supply of any and at prevailing market
Pariners in goods and prices.

Concern materials Rs. 10,007.69 Lakhs.
Logistic On- going In normal course of business
Income and at prevailing market
prices.
Rs. 22.19 Lakhs.
Turnover On- going In normal course of business
Discount and at prevailing market
Received prices.
| Rs. 9507 Lakhs.
Sales or | On- going In business and at prevailing
supply of any market prices.
goods and Rs.40.12 Lakhs.
materials
4. | Shree Whole-Time | Leasing of On- going In normal course of business
Padmavati Director i.e. property and at prevailing market
Imigations LLP | Chairperson prices.
and Leasing of property Rs. 0.24
Managing Lakh.
Director are
Designated
Partners
5. | Shree | Whole-Time | Leasing of On- going In normal course of business
Venkatesh Director i.e. | property and at prevailing market
Industries Pvt. | Chairperson prices.
Lid. is Director Rent received for leasing of
property Rs.3.60 Lakh.

6 | Mangal Murti Relatives of | Leasing of On- going In normal course of business
Minerals Directors are | property and at prevailing market
Partners in prices.

Concern Rent received for leasing of
property Rs. 9.60 Lakh.

Mote: Appropriate approval have been taken for related party ransactions in Board Meeting held on
04" February, 2021. No advances have been paid or received against the fransactions mentioned

above.

Place:- Burhanpur

Date: August 10, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

i)

Sdi- Sdl-
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Managing Director Whole Time Director cum CFO
(DIN DD316249) (DIN D2066748)
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ANNEXURE - 'D’
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to seclion 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appoiniment and Remuneration of Manageral Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
88, Bahadarpur Road,
Burhanpur (M.P. 450331

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable slatutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
(CIN: L25200MP2008PLC020852) (hereinafter called the company). Secrelarial Audit was conducted
in a manner thal provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducls/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013({the Acl) and the rules made there under;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ("SCRA')and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed lhere under;

. Foreign Exchange Management Acl,1999and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direcl Investment and External Commercial
Bormrowings;

. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
ofindia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Acl'):--

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period);

b. The Secwurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

C. The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Reguiremenis)Regulations, 2009 / The Securilies and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2018 (Not applicable to
the Company during the audit period);

d. The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

E. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debl
Securities) Regulalions, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period);

"
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. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 {Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); and
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

(Mot applicable to the Company during the audit period).

i Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018;

vi. As per informaltion provided by the managementl, there is no law applicable specifically to the
Company vis-a-vis the industry to which the Company belongs.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/Regulations of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeling of Board of Director (55-1) and General
Meetings (55-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

vii. During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:

a) The company has filed Form MGT-14 for Beard Resolutions dated 14.02.2022 after the
closure of financial year on 13.06.2022 with additional fees.

b) The Company received a Show Cause Notice ref. SEBIYHO/EAD-8/KS/NC/17934/2019
dated 16.07.20219 from the Office of Adjudicating Officer, SEBI pertaining to GDR issue
of the Company. The company has filed a reply against the said nolice on 08.03.2021.

Accordingly, a hearing before the Ld. Adjudicating Officer has been held on 18.05.2022. The
Adjudicating Officer of SEBI passed an ORDER NO. OrderVVINK/2022-23/17383-17389 on
28.06.2022 imposed penalty under Seclion 15HA of SEBI Act of Rs. 10.00 Crore on the company and
Rs.87.00 Lacs on Directors/others and under Section 23E of SCRAof Rs. 25.00 Lacs on the company.

However, as per explanation given by the company, it has filed appeal with Hon'ble Securities Appellate
Tribunal (SAT) against the said order.

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, Securities and Exchange Board of India has given relaxation by extending
time-limit for filing of compliance under various regulations for the financial year 2021-2022.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
MNon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were camied out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate nolice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and the committee meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were senl at least seven days in advance and the consent was
taken where reguired for meetings held on shorter notice, if required and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarificalions on the agenda ilems before lhe meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenling members' views are caplured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adeqguate syslems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.
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| further report that during the audil period, the Company had following events/aclions which had major
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,

standards etc:-

T. Approval of revision in Remuneralion of Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal (DIN 00316249), Managing
Director of the Company w.e.f. 1st October, 2021 to 31st August, 2023 in Annual General
Meeling held on 29.09.2021.

2 Approval of revision in Remuneration of Smt Rashmi DeviAgrawal (DIN 00316248), Whole Time

Director of the company w.e.f. 1st October, 2021 o 31st August, 2023 in Annual General Meeting
held on 29.09.2021.

3. Approval of revision in Remuneration of Shri Mohit Agrawal, Chiel Executive Officer of the
company w.e.[. 1st October, 2021 in Annual General Meeting held on 29.09.2021.
4. Approval of revision in Pay Scale of Smt. Apama Mohit Agrawal, Chiefl Design Officer of the

company w.e.f. 1st October, 2021 in Annual General Meeting held on 29.09.2021.

Note: This report is fo be read with our fetter of even dale which is annexed as "Appendix-I" and Forms
an integral part of this repori.

Date: 10.08.2022 Dinesh Kumar Gupta

Place: Indore Practicing Company Secretary
(FCS No.5396 CPNo.4715)
UDIN: FO05396D000771084
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Appendix - |

(To the Secretarial Audit Report to the Members of Texmo Pipes and Products Limited for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2022)

To,
The Members,
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

My Secrelarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 of even date is to be read along
with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audil.

2 | have followed the audil praclices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contenls of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on lesl basis lo ensure that correct facts reflected on secretarial records. | believe that the
processes and practices | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have nol verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.
4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation aboult the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of evenls efc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and
standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

B. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the fulure viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Date: 10.08.2022 Dinesh Kumar Gupta

Place: Indore Practicing Company Secretary
(FCSNo.53%6 CPMNo.4715)
UDIN: FO05396D000771084
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ANNEXURE -E

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for Financial Year 2021-22
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 inciuding
amendments thereof and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 read
with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021]

A brief oulline of the company’s CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be underiaken and a re ference to
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or

programs.

The Company has adopted the Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) policy which is
in lines with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment
Rules, 2021. Eligible funds for CSR
aclivities will be expended in the areas of
Education, Health and Hygiene,
Environment, Disaster Management and
Rural Development etc. through one or
more trusts or directly. These CSR
aclivities will be carried out through various
programs, confributions  or projects
specified in the CSR policy.

The Composition of the CSR Commitlee Dr.

Mr.

MNumber of meetings of CSR Committes held
and attended during the year

1. Dr. Smita Hajari — Chairperson
(Non-Execulive Independent Director)

2_ Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal — Member
{Managing Director)

3. Dr. Parvez Anjum — Member
{Non-Executive Independent Director)

There were 4 meetings held during the
year and atte nded duly by all members of
the Commities.

Provide the web ink where Composilion of
CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are  disclosed on the
website of the Company

The same has been available atl
https:/ftexmopipe_com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of
CSR projects carmied out in pursuance of sub -
rule {3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 if
applicable:

Mot Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in
pursuance of sub -rule {3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporale Social responsibility
Paolicy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any

S No. | Financial | Amounl Amounl
Year available required
for set-off | to be
from sel-off
preceding | for the
financial financial
years (in year, if
Rs) any (in
Rs)
1 FY2020- 37,319 37,319
21
S
L 37 ]
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6. Average net profit of the Company for last Rs. 8,14 74 495/
three financial year
[ a. Two percent of average net profitof | Rs. 16,29 480/-
the Company as per section 135(5).
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR Mot applicable

projects or programmes or activities of
the previous financial years.
c. Amount required to be set off for the Rs. 37.319/-
financial year if any.
d. Total CSR obligation for the financial | Rs. 15,92,171/-
year (7a+7b-Tc)
8. Details of CSR amount spent during the Rs. 18.51,554/-
financial year-

(a) Total Amount to be spent for the Rs. 15,92,171/-
financial year
(b} Amount unspent, if any; Mot applicable

{c) Total Amount transferred to Unspent | Not applicable
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

(d) Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VIl as per Mot applicable
second proviso to Section 135(5).

1. {a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

' Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified

Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as under Schedule Vil as per second proviso

Financial Year. per Section 135 (6). to Section 135 (5).

(in Rs.) |
Amount. Date of | Name of the | Amount. Date of
transfer. | Fund | transfer.

18,51,554/- NA | NA

2. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nol
applicable.

3. Details of C5R amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year is
detailed below:

S.no. | Name of the | ltem from Local Area Amount Mode of | Mode of
project or the list of (YesiNo.) and | spent for impleme | implementation
activity activities in | Location of the project | ntation - | - Through

Schedule the project (Rs.) Direct implementing
Vil to the i.e. State and (Yes/No) @ agency (With
Act. District Name and CSR
. registration
number)

1 Promoting Clause (i) of | Yes 7,961/~ Yes MNA.

Health Care Schedule VIl | (Burhanpur,

and promoting MP)

Sanitation- health care

i.e. Blood

donation

drive.

L
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2 Promotion of | Clause {i)of | No 16,00,000/~ | No High On Life
Health Care Schedule VIl | (Ahmedabad Foundation
i.e. Donation. | promoting Gujarat) C5R registration
health care Mo.
CSR00010542
3 Promotion of | Clause(i}of | Yes 51,000/ Yes MA
Health Care | Schedule VIl | (Burhanpur,
i.e. Donation MF)
4 COVID-19 Clause (i) of | Yes 1,72,000 Yes MA.
relief related | Schedule VIl | (Burhanpur,
activities i.e. Promoting MP)
Payment of health care
medical
EXPENses.
5 Promotion of | Clause (i) of | Yes 20,553 Yes MNAL
Health Care | Schedule VIl | (Burhanpur,
ie. Promofing MP)
Distribution of | health care
furnitures and
| fixtures.
Total 18,51,554
{a) Amount spentin Administrative Overheads: Rs. Nil.
(b) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, ifapplicable: Nil
i. Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Rs.18,51,554/-
o Excess amount for setoff, ifany: Rs. 2,58,383/-
Sr. no. | Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
(i} Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) | 16,29,490/-
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 18,51,554/-
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii}-(i)] 2,22,064/
{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or acfivities of | Not applicable
| the previous financial years, if any
(v} | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii}{iv)] *2,59 383/~

*Includes amount eligible and set-off for relevant financial yeari.e. Rs. 37,319/-
(d) Details of Unspent amount for preceding 3 Financial years: Not applicable

{e) Delails of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s): Not applicable

(R In case of crealion or acquisition of capilal assel, furnish the delails relating lo the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spentin the financial year: Not applicable

(g) Specify the reason(s), if the company has [ailed to spend two per cent of the average net profitas
per section 135(5). Not applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd}' Sd}l
Place:- Burhanpur Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Smita Hajari
Date: August 10, 2022 Managing Director Chairperson C5R Committee

(DIN 00316249) (DIN 08763920)
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ANNEXURE -F
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. COMPANY"S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance in simple words means the way a corporation is governed. Corporate
governance refers o mechanisms, processes and relations by which corporations are controlled and
directed. Corporate Governance is a systematic process driven by the ethical conduct of the business
and affairs of an organization aimed at promoting sustainable business and enhancing shareholders
value in long term. The essence of Corporate Governance lies in promoling and maintaining integrity,
transparency and accountability across all business practices. Corporate governance essenfially
involves balancing the interests of a Company's stakeholders, such as shareholders, management,
customers, suppliers, financiers, government and the community. We believe that Corporate
Governance is a continuous journey for sustainable value creation for all the stakeholders driven by our
values of Integrity, Commitment, Passion, Seamlessness and Speed.

Your Company has complied with the requirements of Corporatle Govemance as laid down under
Regulation 27 and other applicable Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations 2015.

2. COMPOSITION OF BOARD

At Texmo Pipes and Products Limited (TPPL), it is our belief that an enlightened Board deliberalely
creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance.. As on March 31, 2022, the Board consists of 3 Executive Directors and 3 Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The Company has an Executive Chairperson. In compliance of provisions of
Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Company is also having One
Woman Director in form of Executive Chairperson as on March 31, 2022 and also One Woman Director
as Independent Director.

Mo Director of the Company is related lo any other Director of the Company, excepl thal Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Agrawal and Mrs. RashmiAgrawal are spouse.

The Company is having an appropriate size of the Board for real strategic discussion and avails the
benefits of diverse experience and viewpoints.

3. BOARD INDEPENDENCE

We al Texmo Pipes and Products Limited adhere to the definition of independence of Directlors is derived
from section 149 (6) of Companies Acl, 2013. All Directors are individuals of integrity and courage, with
relevant skills and experience to bring independent judgement on the business of the Company.

4. MECHANISM FOR EVALUATING BOARD MEMBERS

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The
Board works with Nomination and Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the
performance of executive/non-executive/ independent Directors through a peer-evaluation exciuding
the Director being evaluated through a Board effectiveness survey. The Questionnaire of the survey is a
key part of the process of reviewing the functioning and effectiveness of the Board and for identifying
possible paths or improvement. Each Board Member is requested to evaluale the effecliveness of the
Board dynamics and relationship, information flow, decision-making of the Directors, relationship to
stakeholders, Company performance, Company strategy, and the effectiveness of the whole Board and
its various committees on a scale of one (o five. Feedback on each director is encouraged to be provided
asa parl of the survey.

Independent directors have three key roles- governance, control and guidance. Some of the

F "
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performance indicators based on which the independent directors are evaluated include -

. Ability to contribute to and monitor our corporate governance practices

- Ability lo contribute by introducing international besl practices o address top-management
issues

- Active participation in long-lerm strategic planning

- Commitment to the fulfilment of a Director's obligations and fiduciary responsibilities; these
include participation in board and commitlee meetings.

5. DIRECTOR INDUCTION, FAMILIARIZATION AND TRAINING

As per Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Company has entered into a Listing
agreement with Stock Exchange. The Company provides suilable training to independent director to
familiarize them with the Company, their role, nature of the industry in which the Company operaltes,
business model of lhe Company etc. the details of such training are also required to be disclosed in the
Annual ReporL

The Company acknowledged the importance of continuous education and training of the Direclors to
enable the effective discharge of their responsibility. The Company has been organizing visit of the
Director to its PVC Plant with a view o enable them familiarize with the nature of industry, operations,
process and interact with management personnel and staff.

Directors are regularly briefed about the industry specific to enable them to understand the business
environment in which the Company operates. To enhance their skills and knowledge the directors are
regularly updated on the change in the policy, laws and regulation, development in the business
environment etc.

Efiorls are also made lo familiarize the Directors about their roles, responsibility in the Company, its
business model and the environment in which the Company operates. Same is available on the

Company's website al https://texmopipe.com
6. REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Managing Director & the Whole Time Direclor is recommended by the
Momination and Remuneration Commiltee to the Board of Directors based on criteria such as industry
Benchmarks, the Company's performance vis-a-vis the industry, performance track record of the
Managing Director & Whole-Time Director.

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal is lhe Managing Direclor of the Company. The Salary and allowance paid to
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal during the year 2021-22 were Rs. 240.00 Lakhs, Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal is the
Whole Time Direclor cum Chairperson of the Company and the Salary and allowance paid o Mrs.
Rashmi Agrawal during the year 2021-22 were Rs. 78 Lakhs and Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu is the Whole
Time Director cum Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Salary and allowance paid to Mr. Vijay
Prasad Pappuduring the year 2021-22 were Rs. 10.50 Lakhs.

7. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' COMPENSATION AND DISCLOSURES

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitling fee for attending the Board/Commitlee Meetings. A
sitting fee of Rs. 15,000/ for attending each meeling of the Board and Audilt Commitlee and of Rs.
2,500/- for attending each of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Rs. 2,500/~ for atlending
each of the Nomination & Remuneralion Committee Meelings was paid to the Non-Executive Directors
during the year under review.

The Siilting fees paid to the Non-Executive Direclors are within the limits prescribed under the
Companies Acl, 2013. No stock oplions were granted to Non-Executive Directors during the year under
review.
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The Board considered the performance of the Non-Execulive Direclors based on their attendance and
contribution at the Board and Commitlee Meelings. The Company also reimburses the oul-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Direclors for allending the Meetings.

The Non-Executive Independent Directors did not have any material pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company during the year 2021-22.

The details of Sitting Fees paid lo the Non-Execulive Direclors during the year 2021-22:

S Name of Non-Executive Directors Sitting fees
No. (Rs.)
¥ Mr. Amber Chaurasia 1,40,000
3. Mr. Parvez Anjum 1,40,000
4. Dr. Smita Hajan 1,30,000
8. BOARD MEETINGS
i) Scheduling and Selection of agenda items for Board Meetings.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decides on Company / business policy and strategy
apart from other Board business. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative
annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to
facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in
case of a special and urgent business need, the Board's approval is taken by passing resolutions by
circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board meeting.

The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance 1o all the Directors. Usually, meetings of the Board
are held at registered office in Burhanpur. The Agenda of the Board / Commiltee meelings is set by the
Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairperson of the Company. The Agenda is circulaled a
week prior to the date of the meeting. The Agenda for the Board and Commiltee meetings includes
detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeling lo enable the Directors lo take an informed
decision.

During the year 2021-22, Six meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 01" April 2021, 25" June
2021, 13" August 2021, 11" November, 2021, 08" December, 2021 and 14" February 2022. The
maximum fime gap belween any two consecutive meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty
days. The necessary quorum was present for all meetings. The draft minutes of each Board / Committee
meelings are circulated to all Directors for their comments within 15 days of the meeling. The Company
Secretary, after incorporating comments, received if any, from the Directors, records the minutes of each
Board / Committee meeting within 30 days from conclusion of the meeting. The important decisions
taken at the Board / Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned depariments promptly.

None of the Directors on the Board are Members in more than ten Committees or Chairman in more than
five Committees across all the companies in which they are Direclors. Necessary disclosures regarding
Committee paositions in other public companies as on 31”March, 2022 have been made by the Directors.

The delails of attendance of Directors for the year 2021-22 at the Board Meetings and in AGM are given

below:

Name of Director Category Board " Board Enarrd Attendance in
Meetings | Meetings ings |previous
held entitle to Attended AGM

attend

Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal Executive 6 6 6 Yes

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal | Execulive 6 6 i Yes

| Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu | Execulive 5 6 B | ves

Mr. Amber Chaurasia Mon Execulive Independenl | 6 6 L] Yes

Dr. Parvez Anjum | Mon Execulive Independent | 6 6 6 Yes

Dr. Smila Hajari | Mon Execulive Independent | 6 6 5 Yes

.
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ii) Information placed before the Board of Directors

The information placed before the Board of Directors is as follows:
a) Annual operating plans and budgets, revisions and updates.
b) Capital budgets with revisions and updates.

c) Quarterly (including periodic) results of the Company and its operating divisions! business
segments.

d) Minutes of the meetings of Board of Directors, Audit and other committees of the Board and
meetings of Subsidiary Company.

e) The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers below the board level,
including appointment or cessation of office by CFO and Company Secretary.

f) Show cause, demand and prosecution notices which are materially important.
g) Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.

h) Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

1) Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property.
)] Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the step taken by management lo limit the

risks of adverse exchange rate movemenlt, if material.

k) Industrial relationship issues of material nature and proposed remedial aclions. All significant
development in Human Resources/ industrial relalions.

1) Transactions of material nature of buying and selling of investments, or undertaking/ assets,
which are not in normal course of business.

m) Stalus on compliance with all regulatory, statutory and material contract requirements.
n) Details of delegation of authorities to executives and power of attorney.
Criteria for performance evaluation:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of
Directors. The annual evaluation of Directors is made on the following criteria:

|. Atlendance for the meetings, participalion and independence during the meetings;
ii. Interaction with Management;

iii. Role and accountability of the Board and

iv. Knowledge and proficiency

Meeting of Independent Directors

Pursuant lo provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under, the
Independent Directors of the Company shall hold al least one meeting in a year, without attendance of
non- independent directors and members of the management The meeting of Independent Directors
was held on 14th February, 2022 to discuss, inter-alia:

l. the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
ii. the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive

"
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Director and Mon-Executive Directors;

iii. the quality, guantity and timeliness of flow of information belween the management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

The table below summarizes core skills | expertise / competencies identified by the Board of
Directors as required and available with the Board in the context of business of the Company for
its effective functioning is as follows:

Sr. |Core Skills | Expertise Mr. Sanjay [Mr. Vijay Mrs. Rashm|Dr. Parvez [Mr. Amber [Dr. Smita
No. [Competencies grawal [Prasad Agrawal AN jum IChaurasia Hajari
Pappu
& Technical
1. |Finance « v v o o
2. Management o v v v o o
3.  |Sales and Marketing ¥ ¥ v
4. Manufacturing and o «
Operalions
5.  [Research and Development ¥
6. |Human Resource ¥ v ¥ v v
7. [Information Technology
B. [Industry
1. |Knowledge about Economy v ¥ 4 o o
2. Industry Experience ¥
3. [Knowledge of Business v ¥ v v o v
sector
C. |Governance
1. Compliance Management v ¥ v ¥
2.  |Knowledge aboul Statutory /| v v v v v
Regulatory Law
3. |Experience in developing and v v
implementing Risk
Management
4. |Strategic Planning o L v ¥ ¥ v
D. |[Others
1.  [Communication and ¥ ¥ v v v v
interpersonal skill
2.  |Public Retations ¥ ¥ v v v
3. [Corporate Restructuring v ¥ o v

9, BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has four committees Audil Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee constituted in pursuance of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is instrumental in overseeing the financial reporting besides
reviewing the guarterly, half yearly, annual financial resulls of the Company, it reviews Company's
financial and risk management policies and the internal control systems, internal audit systems, efc.
through discussions with intemal and external auditors and the following matters:-

= Overseeing the Company's financial reporling process and the disclosure of ils financial

N
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information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

= Recommending to lhe Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the replacement
or removal of the statulory auditor and the fixalion of audit fees.

= Approval of payment lo statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the slatutory
auditors.

= Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration ofinternal auditors.

= Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission lo the
Board for approval, with particular reference lo:
1. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included

in the Board's report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013;
Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting enfries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;
4. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements ansing out of audit findings;
5. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to the financial statlements;
B. Disclosure of any related party transaclions;
7. Qualifications in the draft audit report.
= Reviewing, with the Managemenl, the quarierly financial stalements before submission to the
Board for approval.
= Monitoring the use of the proceeds of the proposed initial public offering of the Company.
= Reviewing, with the managemenl, performance of slatutory and inlernal auditors, and adequacy

of the inlernal control systems.

= Reviewing the adequacy of inlernal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit depariment, staffing and senionty of the official heading the department, reporting
structure, coverage and frequency ofinternal audit.

= Discussions with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon.

= Reviewing internal audit reports and adequacy of the internal control systems.

= Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investiments.

= Reviewing management letters/letters of internal confrol weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors

= Reviewing the findings of any intemal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter {o the Board.

= Discussion with statulory auditors belore the audit commences, aboul the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion lo ascertain any area of concern.

= To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenlure
holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

= To review the functioning of the whislle blower mechanism, when the same is adopled by the
Company and is exisling.

= Carrying oul any other funclion as may be slatutorily required to be carried out by the Audit
Committee.

Composition of Audit Committee, its Meetings and Attendance
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The Chairperson of the Audil Committee al present is Mr. Amber Chaurasia. During the year 2021-22,
five Audit Committee Meelings were held on 017 April, 2021, 25" June, 2021, 13" August, 2021, 11th
MNovember, 2021 and 14" February 2022, the necessary quorum was present for all meetings.
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The compaosilion of the Audit Committee and number of meefings altended by the Members are given

below:-
Name of Director Category No. of Meetings No. of
Meeting entitle to Meetings
held attend attended
Mr. Amber Chaurasia Mon Executive Independent 5 L3 b
Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu Executive 5 L] 5
Dr. Parvez Anjum Mon Executive Independent 5 b 5
Dr. Smita Hajari Mon Executive Independent 5 5 5

Company Secrelary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Committee Meelings are also attended on invitation by Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor of the
Company.

The Internal and Statutory Auditors of the Company discuss their audit findings and update the Audit
Committee and submit their views directly to the Committee to conduct detailed reviews of the processes
and internal controls in the Company.

ii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Committee is sel up in accordance with Regulalion 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 read
with seclion 178 of Companies Act, 2013. The Commitiee has been set up to oversee the performance of
the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents with respectto redressal of Shareholders grievances elc.

The process of share transfer as well as review of redressal of investors / shareholders grievances is
underiaken expeditiously and usually reply is senl within a period of 07 days of receipl, excepl in the
cases that are constrained by disputes or legal impediments.

Composition of the Committee, its Meetings and Aftendance

The Chairperson of the Stakeholders' Relationship Commitiee at present is Dr. Parvez Anjum. During
the year 2021-22, four meetings of the committee were held on 25" June, 2021, 13" August, 2021, 11th
MNovember, 2021 and 14" February, 2022, the necessary quorum was present for all meetings.

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and number of meetings attended by the
Members are given below:-

Mame of Director Category No of Meetings No. of
Meeting | entitle to Meetings
held attend attended
Dr. Parvez Anjum MNon Execulive Independent 4 = <
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Executive 4 4 4
| Mr. Amber Chaurasia - Non Execuive Independent 4 4 4

During the financial year 2021-22 the Company / RTA has nol received any complaints through SEBI
SCORES platform, however, Shareholders have raised no complaints and requests during the year
under review.

Company Secretary and Compliance officer acts as the Secrelary lo the commitiee.
iii) Nomination And Remuneration Committee

The Committee is set up in accordance with Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The
Committee is sel up to oversee the performance of the Executive Direclors and recommends

"
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remuneration, promotions, increments elc. for the Managing Direclor and Executive Director to the
Board for approval.

Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, its Meetings and Attendance

Presenftly, Dr. Smita Hajari is the Chairperson of the Commitiee. All directors of the Nomination and
remuneration commitiee shall be non-execulive directors. During the year 2021-22, Four Meetings of
the committee were held on 25" June, 2021, 13" August, 2021, 11"November, 2021 and 14" February,
2022

The compaosition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and number of meetings attended by
the Members are given below:

Name of Director Category Mo. of Board MNo. of
Meeting Meetings meetings
held entitle to attended
Dr. Smita Hajari Non Executive Independent 4 4 4
Mr. Amber Chaurasia MNon Executive Independent | 4 4 4
Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Execulive Independent | 4 4 4

iv) Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Our CSR Committee ("the Committee"’) comprised two Independent Directors and Managing Director.
The Composition of the Commitlee is as under:

. Dr. Smita Hajari, Chairperson
. Mr. Parvez Anjum, Member
- Mr.Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Member

The purpose of the Commitlee is to formulate and to monitor the CSR policy of the Company. The CSR
Committee has adopted a policy thatintends lo:

. Strive for economic development that positively impact society at large with minimal resource
footprinl.
- Be responsible for lhe Corporate Aclions and encourage a positive impact through ils activities

on the environmenl, communities and stakeholders.

The Committee will be overseeing the activilies/functioning of the Company’s foundation and identify the
areas of CSR activities, programmes and execution of initiatives as per predefined guidelines. The
Committee will also be assisled by the Company's foundation in reporting the progress of deployed
initiatives, and making appropriate disclosures (inlernal/external ) on periodic basis.

In view of criteria provided under Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the
same is applicable to the Company for FY 2021-22 and Company has duly adopted CSR Policy of the
Company. Du rinqﬁthe year 2021-22, four meetings of the committee were held on 25" June, 2021, 13"
August, 2021, 11" November, 2021 and 14" February, 2022. The composition of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and number of meetings atlended by the Members are given below:

Name of Director Category No. of Board No. of
Meeting Meetings meetings
held entitle to attended
attend
Dr. Smita Hajari Mon Executive Independent 4 4 4
Mr. Snajay Kumar Agrawal Execufive B 4 4
| Dr. Parvez Anjum Non Executive Independent 4 4 4

v) Treasury Committee

The Board of Directors has constituled a Non- mandatory Sub Committee of Board styled as Treasury
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Committee with Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal as Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu and
Mr. Amber Chaurasia as members of the Commiltee. The Board of Direclors has delegaled ceriain
powers to Treasury Committee to deal wilh the day to day business affairs of the Company and to take
the beneficial decisions for the Company and pass various resolulions on behalf of the Board except
those which are lo be passed necessarily by the Board.

Composition of Treasury Committee, its Meetings and Attendance

During the year 2021-22, Six Treasury Committee Meelings were held on 01% July, 2021, 25" August,
2021, 22" October, 2021, 29" December, 2021, 27" January, 2022 and 17" February, 2022. The
necessary guorum was present for all meetings.

Number of meelings attended by the Membersis given below:-

Name of Director Mo of Meeting held No. of Meetings No of Meetings
entitled to attend attended

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal | 6 6 G

Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu 6 B 6

Mr. Amber Chaurasia 6 6 5]

Company Secrelary and Compliance Officer act as the Secretary to the Treasury Committee.
10. CODE OF CONDUCT FORINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per the Section 149(8) Companies Acl, 2013, the Company and independent directors shall abide by
the provisions specified in schedule IV. Further Schedule IV lays down a code for independent directors
of the Company. Pursuant to said provision of the Companies Acl 2013, the Company has adopted a
code for the independent directors of the Company.

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All delails on the financial and commercial transaclion, where Directors may have a polential interest are
provided to the Audil Commitlee as well as the Board of Direclors. The Interested Direclors neither
participate in discussion, nor vole on such matters. In lerms of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015 the Company has adopted a policy on the subject and the same is available on the
Company's website at https://texmopipe.com.

Details of significant related party transaction i.e. the transaclion of the Company of material nature with
its Promoters, the Directors or the Management or their relatives are presented under note no. 42 on
notes forming part of the accounts.

12. DETAILS OF SHARES HELD IN SUSPENSEACCOUNT
The disclosure under Schedule V (Clause F) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is as under:

Sr Particulars No. of Mo. of
Mao. shareholder shares
1 Aaggregate number of shareholders and the uutétand'lng shares in the 2 150
suspense account lying at the beginning of the year 01.04.2021.
2 | Number of s hareholders who approached the C ompany for transfer of | Nil Nil
share from suspense account during the year.
3 Mumber of shareholders to whom shares were transfermed from Mil il
suspense account during the year.
4 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 2 150
suspense accounl lying al the end of the year 31.03 2022,
5 The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the
shares.
13 NAME AND DESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Ajay Shrivastava

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Phone; - 07325-255122

Ty
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Texmo Pipes and Products Limited Fax  ;-07325-253273
98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.) - 450331, Email- cs@lexmopipe.com

In addition o the above e-mail ID of the Compliance Officer, the Inveslors/Shareholders can also lodge
their complaints, ifany, at complaints@texmopipe_ com.

The Company Secrelary has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company in line with the
requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

14, RECORDING OF MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Company Secretary records the Minutes of the proceedings of each Board and Commitiee Meeting.
Draft Minutes are circulated to all the members of the Board/Commitiee for their comments. The inputs /
corrections in the draft Minutes as suggested by Directors are incorporated in the final minutes therealter
signed copy of Minutes are also circulated to all Directors. This is also in compliance with Secretarial
Standard 55-1 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

15. DETAILS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Details with particulars of their Directorships and Chairpersonship/Membership of Board Commitlees in
other Public Companies, in which they are Directors showing the position as on 31 March, 2022 are

given below -
ar. MName of Directors. Directorship in Committee positions held
No. other Public
Companies Chairpersonship Membership
1 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 0 0 0
"2 | Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal 0 0 0
'3 Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu 0 0 0
4. Mr. Amber Chaurasia o 0 0
5. Dr. Parvez Anjum 0 0 0
6. Dr. Smila Hajari o ] 0

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges,
Memberships/ Chairpersonships of only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee of all Public Limited Companies whelher listed or not (excluding those of the company) have
been considerad.

The Company has received Declarations of independence as prescribed in section 149 (7) of
Companies Act, 2013 from Independent Direclors.

16. CODEOF CONDUCT

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has framed and adopted a code of conduct and ethics. The Code is applicable to the
members of the Board, Senior Management of the Company. The Code is available on our website

https://texmopipe.com

The Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel have affirmed the compliance with the
Code applicable to them during the year ended 31" March, 2022. The Annual Report of the Company
contains a Cerlificate by the Managing Director & CFO in terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

17. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code for prevention of Insider Trading in accordance with the
requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiation, 2015. The Code for prevention of
Insider Trading lays down guideline and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while
dealing with shares of the Company as well as consequences of violation. The Code has been
formulated lo regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest
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ethical standards of dealing in Company Securities. The objective of the Code is to prevent purchase
and / or sale of shares ol the Company by an insider on the basis of unpublished price sensilive
informalion. Under this Code, Designated persons (Directors, Officers and other concerned employees /
persons) are prevented from dealing in the Company's shares during the closure of Trading Window.
The Compliance Officer is responsible for setting forth policies, procedures, monitoring adherence to the
rules for pre-clearance of Trade etc. Direclors and designated employees who buy and sell shares of the
Company are prohibited from entering into an opposite lransaction i.e. sell or buy any shares of the
Company during the next six months following the prior lransactions. The aforesaid Code is available al
the website of the Company https://texmopipe.com.

18. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

There is no material non listed Indian Subsidiary Company requiring appointment of Independent
Director of lhe Company on the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Companies. The requirements of
Regulation 24 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 with regard to subsidiary companies have been
complied with. The Company has adopted a policy for determining "Malerial Subsidiaries” and the same
is available on the Company's website at https://texmopi

19. DISCLOSUSRE
I Material Significant Related Party Transaction

There are no materially significant related party transactions of the Company which have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company allarge.

i) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and structures imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any malter
related lo capital markets, during the last three years:

There were no instances of non-compliances by the Company during the year under
review.

However, the Adjudicating Officer of SEBI passed an Order on 28.06.2022 imposed
penalty under Section 15HA of SEBI Act of Rs. 10.00 Crore and under Section 23E of
SCRAofRs. 25.00 Lacs on the Company.

The Company after perusal and analysis of the said order and in consullation with the
Counsel with their due advice and legal opinion has filed an appeal before lhe Hon'ble
Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) challenged the said order as the order has been
passed on aninaccurate assessment of facts and on disproportionate grounds.

i) The Company has complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital
markets and no penalties / strictures have been imposed against it in the last three
years.

There were no instances of non-compliances by the Company during the year under review.
Il Vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

In Compliance with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 Company has framed a vigil mechanism /whistle
blower policy and lhe same has been placed on the Company's Websile.

Mone of the employees of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Commitlee.
. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management discussion and analysis reporl is prepared in accordance with the
requirement of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and shall form parl
of the Annual Report lo the shareholders.

20. COMMUNICATIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. The
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Company regularly interacts with the Shareholder through the multiple channels of communication such
as publication of Resulls, Annual Reporis, Press Release and the Company's Website. The Quarterly,
Hall yearly and the Annual Financial resulis submitled lo the Stock Exchange al Mumbai in the
prescribed format within 30 minutes of the conclusion of the Board Meeting at which the resull are taken
on record. The quarterly financial Results and the Annual Results of the Company are also published in
prominent daily news papers such as Free Press (English) and Choutha Sansar (Hindi). The Company
has also sent Annual Reporl through email to those Shareholders who have registered their email ids
with Depositary Parlicipant

Annual Report, Corporate Governance Report, Audited Results and the quarterly Financial Resulls are
also available on the website of the Company https://texmopipe.com under investor's information
section.

21. PLEDGE OF EQUITY SHARES

Mo Pledge has been created over the Equity Shares held by the Promoters andior Promoter Group
Shareholders as on 31 March 2022.

22, PROMOTERS'SHAREHOLDING

The aggregate Shareholding of the Promoters and Persons belonging to the Promoters Group ason 317
March 2022 comprised of 12914955 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each representing 44.24% of the total
paid up Share Capital of the Company.

23. DISCLOSURE OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE COMPANY DURING THE PREVIOUS
YEAR.

There were no instances of non compliance or penalty, structures imposed on the company by the Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital markets during the

pPrevious year..

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of corporate governance Regulation 27 of
the SEBI{LODR) Regulation, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.

24. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
i) General Body Meeting

The Company convenes the Annual General Meeting (AGM) within Six Months from the
closure of the financial year. The details of the AGM held in previous three Years are
given as below:-

Financial Date and time Venue Special Resolution passed
year |
2018-19 24th September, 98, Bahadarpur il
2019 at 12.30 PM | Road, Burhanpur
(M.P.)-450331
2019-20 14th October, 2020 | 98, Bahadarpur 1) Issuance of Equity Shares on Preferential
at1230 PM Road, Burhanpur basis to the Promoters.
(M.P.)-450331 2) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Shri
Through VG/OAVM | Sanjay Kumar Agrawal (DIN: D0316249) as a
Managing Director of the Company.
3) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Sml
Rashmi Devi Agrawal (DIN: 00316248) as Whole
Time Director of the Company.
2020-21 29" Seplember 98, Bahadarpur 1) Re -Appointment of Shri Amber Chaurasia
2021 at 12,30 PM. | Road, Burhanpur (DIM: O7729278) as a Non - Execulive
(M.P.)-450321 Independent Direclor.
Through VCIOAVM | 2) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Shri
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 00316249) as a
Managing Director of the Company.
3) To Approve Revision in Remuneration of Smi.
Rashmi Devi Agrawal (DIN: 00316248) as Whole
’,_,,]"lme Director of the Company.
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Details of Special Resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting in last
Three years.

Financial Date and time Venue Special Resolution passed
year .
201819 14™ March, 2019 | 98, Bahadarpur 1) Issuance of Equity Share on Preferential basis
at 11.30 AM. Road, Burhanpur to the Promoter Group of the Company.
(M_P.)-450331 2) To approve to enter in to Related Party
Transaction by the Company.
201920 19" December, 98, Bahadarpur To approve Appointment of Shri Sunil Kumar
2019 at 11.00 AM. | Road, Burhanpur Maheshwari as Director.
{(M.P.)-450331
Through VCIOAVM
iii) Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot
During the year, no resolution was passed through the Postal Ballot by the
Shareholders. At present there is no proposal for passing resolution through postal
ballot.
iv) General Meeting for the financial year 2021-22
Date & Day 29th, September, 2022, Thursday
 Mode | Through “Video Conference” or “Other Audio Visual Means”
Time 12.30 P.M.
Book closure date From 23 to 29 September, 2022. (Both days inclusive)
v} Tentative Calendar for financial year ending 31"March, 2022

Quarterly Financial Results

Date of Board Meeting

1* Quarterly results

First half of August 2022

2™ Quarterly results

First half of November 2022

-l

Quarterly resulls

First half of February 2023

vi)

4™ Quarterly results

Second half of May 2023

Listing Details

Al present, the Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

The Annual Listing fees for the financial year 2022-23 have been paid to the Stock
Exchanges.

The Company has paid Annual Cuslodial Fees for the year 2022-23 the National
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services Limited on the basis of
beneficial accounts maintained by them as on 31 March 2022.

Equity Shares

BSE Limited

16" Floor, P.J. Tower, Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400001

S e s g g
Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor, Bandra- Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East),Mumbai 400051
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vii) Stock Codes
Name of the stock Exchange | Stock Code
BSE Limited 533164
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) TEXMOPIPES
" ISIN of Equity Shares INE141K01013

viii) Share Price Data

The details of High, Low Prices of shares of the company at BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for the year ended 31* March, 2022 are as

under:-
Period - from 01" April, 2021 to 31" March, 2022.
Months BSE NSE
High (Rs.) Low(Rs.) High (Rs.) Low(Rs.)
April 2021 30.00 2450 30.15 2315
May 2021 65.85 2710 65_80 2740
June 2021 56.55 45.20 56.00 45.15
July 2021 58.25 49,60 5815 49 55
August2021 56.50 43.50 56.70 43.70
| September 2021 54.70 45.30 54.80 4540
Oclober 2021 56.40 47.00 56.45 47.15
November 2021 63.50 48.00 63.00 4750
December 2021 79.55 56 60 79.45 56.15
January 2022 100.90 68.25 100.90 68.05
February 2022 98.90 §9.30 9895 69.30
March 2022 84 90 §9.45 83.65 69.40
ix) Stock Performance in comparison to Broad Based indices;
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x) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31" March, 2022

Category Shareholders MNo. of Equity Equity Shares held
{Amount) Shares held
MNo. of % of total Amount % amount
shareholders Shareholders
1- 5000 50612 91.48 4331652 43316520 14.84
5001 — 10000 2529 457 2073588 20735880 7.10
10001 — 20000 1166 21 1780966 17809660 6.10
20001 - 30000 356 : 0.64 919334 9193340 315
30001 - 40000 136 | 0.25 492082 4920820 1.69
40001 - 50000 148 | 027 703412 7034120 241
50001 - 100000 219 | 0.40 1603551 16035510 549
100001 & Above 160 0.29 17290415 172904150 59.22
Total 55326 | 100.00 29195000 291950000 100.00
xi) Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2022
Category No. of No. of share | % of
shareholders held equity
Promoters and Promoter Group L] 1,29,14,955 44 24%
Public shareholdings
Clearing member 50 1,12,063 0.38 %
Financial Institutions / Banks 1 1291 0.00%
Bodies Corporate 92 4 53678 1.55%
MNon Resident Indians 286 3,552,963 1.21%
Mon Resident Indians - Non Repatriable 99 1,700,557 0.58%
Resident Individuals 53602 1.41,19.817 48.36%
" Foreign Portfolio - Corp 2 3,13,478 1.07%
HUF 459 7,566,198 2.59%
‘Total | 54600 $2,91,95,000 | 100%
xii) Director's Shareholding as on 31" March, 2022
'S.No. | Name of Director No.ofShareHeld | % of Holding |
1. Mrs. Rashmi Agrawal 4700092 16.10%
2 Mr_Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 5448974 18.66%
3. Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu 1200 0.001%
4. Mr. Amber Chaurasia Nil Mil
5. | Dr. Parvez Anjum Nil Nil
B. Dr. Smita Hajari Nil Nil
Total 1,01,50,266 34.7T6%

xiii} Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

2.,91,94,884 Equity Shares representing 89.99% of the total equity share capital of the company is held
in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited as on 31" March, 2022.

The bifurcation of shares held in Physical & Demat form as on 317 March 2022, is given below:

Category No. of shareholders | No. of share % of equity
held
Physical 4 116 0.00%
Demat Segment NSDL 14351 92,49 437 31.68%
_ CDSL 40971 19945447 [ 68.32% |
Total 55326 2,91,95,000 1 100.00% |
S
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xiv) Mo Outstanding GDRs

The Company had issued Global Depository Receipts on 11" April 2011, and the underlying shares against
each of the GDRs were issued in the name of the Bank of New York Mellon DR, the depository. As on 31
March 2022, there were no GDRs outstanding.

The Company has been delisted from the Luxemburg Stock Exchange on 26" September, 2014.
xv) Investor Grievances Redressal System

KFin Technologies Limited, Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company has confirmed that, no
Complaints were received during the FY 2021-22 from the Shareholders. However, no complaints were
received during the year through SEB| Scores portal. To redress investor grievances, the Company has a
dedicated e-mail id complaints@texmopipe.com fo which investors may send complaints.

xwi) Share Transfer System

The Company's shares are covered under the compulsory dematerialisation list and are transferable through
the depository system. Shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered and returned within a period of
fifteen days from the date of receipt of the documents, provided the documents are valid and complete in all
respects.

xvii) Registrarand Transfer Agents
Share transfer, dividend payment and all other shareholders' comespondence are attended to and processed
by our Registrar and Transfer Agents, i.e. KFin Technologies Limited having their office at-
KFin Technologies Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032
Tel: +91-40-67162222, 33211000
Fax: +91-40-23420814
xviii) PlantLocations
The Company s plant is located at Registered Office, i.e. 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.)450331.
xix)  Corporate ldentity Number
The Corporate ldentity Number (CIM) of the Company is L25200MP2008PLC020852.
xx) Address for Correspondence
Shareholder’'s correspondence: Shareholders may correspond with:
1. Reqgistrar & Transter Agents for all matters relating to transfer / dematerialization of shares, payment
of dividend, |PO refunds / demat credits at:
KFin Technologies Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowdi
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032
Tel: +91 4067162222, 33211000
Fax: +91 4023420814
2 Shareholder may also contact:
Mr. Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.) 450331
Tel. No. 07325-255122
Email id- csitexmopipe.com
i) Reconciliation of Share Capital

As stipulated by SEBI, during the year on quarterly basis the Company had complied with the Regulation 76 of
SEBI (D&P) Regulation 2018 by obtaining from a qualified Practicing Company Secretary a '"Reconciliation of
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Share Capital Audit Report’ to reconcile the total admitted, issued and listed capital with the Mational
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Stock
Exchanges.
xxii) Go-Greenlnitiative

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has undertaken a 'Green Initiative' in the field of Corporate Governance by
permifting the delivery of documents viz. notices of meetings, annual reports etc. to the Shareholders through
electronic mode vide its Circular No.17/2011 dated 21 April 2011. In pursuance of same, we take immense
pleasure in informing you that your company had started this from last three year onwards, initiated this Go-
Green Programme by sending the soft copies of the Annual Report to the Sharsholders who have already
registered their E-mail Ids with the Company and RTA. Further with a view to encourage the same in future we
request the shareholders to kindly register their email address with the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent (With Depository Paricipants in case of shares held in dematerialised form). This paperless
compliance is a part of Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance as introduced by MCA

xxiii} Credit Rating
The Company has obtained Credit Rating from Rating Agency M/s Brickwork Rating India Private Limited and

during the year under review, in November, 2021 M/s Brickwork Rating India Private Limited has revised and
upgraded our Bank loan rating as "BWR BBB +" (Triple B+) from "BWR BBEB" for fund based facilities.

xxiv) Statement of fees paid by the Company to Statutory Auditors:

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Company has paid statutory and other Audit fees amounting to Ris. 12
lakhs to the Statutory Auditors. The details of the same have been already mentioned in notes to the financial
statements.

25) COMPLIANCE

The Company Secretary while preparing the Agenda, Notes on Agenda, Minutes etc. of the meeting(s), is
responsible for and is required to ensure adherence to the applicable laws and regulations including the
Companies Act 2013, FEMA, read with the Rules and Regulations issued there under, Listing Agreement with
the stock exchanges and Rules and Regulations issued by the RBI and the Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

26) MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Company has fully complied with the applicable mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 of the SEBI
{LODR) Regulations, 2015 executed with the Stock Exchanges.

27) ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

Although itis not mandatory, the Board of TPPL has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
However, the same has been applicable from the FY 2021-22, as per the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Details of the Committee have been provided under *Composition of Corporate Social
Responsibility Commitiee”.

28) COMPLIANCE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The guarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance has been submitted to the Stock Exchanges
where the Company's Equity Shares are listed in the requisite format duly signed by the Compliance Officer or
Managing Director as per applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) 2015. Apart from that the Company has also

complied all requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-para (2) to (10) of Schedule V of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

29) AUDITORS QUALIFICATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The Company’s Financial Statement is free from any qualification by the Auditors.
30) CERTIFICATION OF COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

The certificate from Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary in Practice, have been obtained stating
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disgualified from being
appointed or continuing as a directors of the Company by the SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
authority.
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3) AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has obtained a Certificate from its Statutory Auditors testifying to its compliance with the
provision relating to Corporate Governance laid out in Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
executed with the Stock Exchange.

The Ceriificate is annexed to this Report and the same will be forming part of the Annual Report to be filed by
the Company.

32) INFORMATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3}) AND SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LODR)
REGULATIONS, 2015.

Loan and Advances in the nature of loan to Subsidiaries:- Amt.in Lakhs
Mame of the Company Balance as at Maximum outstanding during the
3 March | year
2022
Tapli Pipes & Products Limited FZE 58497 587.68

33) CEOQOICFOCERTIFICATE

As required under Part B of Schedule || of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, Mr.
Mohit Agrawal, Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu, Whole Time Director cum Chief Financial
Officer of the Company have certified to the Board regarding financial statements for the year ended 31°
March, 2022,

The CEQICFO Certification of Financial Statement and Cash Flow Statement for the year are enclosed at the
end of this Report.

34) REPORTON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate section on Corporate Governance forms a part of the Annual Report. This Chapter read together
with the information given in the chapter entitied Management Discussion and Analysis and Shareholders
information, constitute a detailed compliance report on Corporate Governance during 2021-22.

35) DISCLOSURE ABOUT UTILISATION OF FUND RECEIVED FROM PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT
UNDER REGULATION 32 (7A) OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

During the FY 2021-22, the Company has not issued and raised any amount pertaining to allotment of shares
on preferential basis.

36) DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE
VOF THE SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

Asrequired by Clause D of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, this is to confirm that the Company
has adopted a code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the company. The code is
available on the Company's web site i.e. https:/ftexmopipe.com.

|, confirm in respect of the financial year ended 31 March, 2022, that the Company has received from the
senior management team of the company and the members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the
code of conduct as applicable to them.

Faor the purpose of this declaration, senior management team comprises of employees in the Key Managerial
Personnel cadre as on 31" March, 2022 of the Company.

For Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

Date: 10.08.2022 Mohit Agrawal
Place: Burhanpur Chief Executive Officer
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CEOQO/CFO CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD
{(Under Schedule Il of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

The Board of Directors
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

We, Mohit Agrawal, Chief Executive Officer and Vijay Prasad Pappu, Whole Time Director Cum Chiel
Financial Officer, of Texmo Pipes and Products Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge
and belief, hereby certify that:

A,

We have reviewed financial stalements and the cash flow slatement for the year and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

(1) These slatements do nol contain any materially untrue statement or omit any malerial
fact or contain stalements thal might be misleading.

(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and
are in comphance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, lo the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed
entity during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed enlity’s code of
conduclL

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporiing
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systems of the listed entity
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit commiltee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware
and the steps they have taken or propose to lake to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicaled to the auditors and the Audit committee
(1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to lhe financial statements; and

(3) Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvemnent
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed
entity’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Burhanpur Mohit Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu

Date: 26.05.2022 Chief Executive Officer Whole Time Director cum CFO

(DIN: 02066748)




RTINS UMY (14" Annual Report 20212022 )

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited

This certificate contains details of compliance of conditions of corporate governance by THE TEXMO PIPES
AND PRODUCTS LIMITED ('the Company’) for the year ended 31st March 2022, as stipulated in Regulations
17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule \V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing
Regulations’).

Management's Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. This
responsibility includes the designing, implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness of internal
control to ensure compliance with the conditions of corporate govermnance as stipulated in the Listing
Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion of the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company in accordance with the Guidance MNote on Certification of Corporate
Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"), Standards on auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethicsissued by the "'CAl

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control {(SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of the Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion
Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to explanations
given to us and representation made by the Management, in our opinion, we certify that the Company has

complied, in all material respects, with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company northe
efficiency or effectiveness with which the managementhas conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on Use

The certificate is addressed to and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose to enabie
the Company to comply with requirement of aforesaid Regulations and should not be used by any other
person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for
any other purpose or fo any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come
without our prior consentin writing.

For : ANIL KAMAL GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
PLACE : INDORE
DATED : AUGUST 10TH, 2022

(AAYUSH GARG)
PARTNER

M.NO. 434485

FIRM REG. NO. : 004186C

UDIN : 22434485AREOB.J9848
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"ANNEXURE - G
MANAGEMENT DISSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDIAN ECONOMY

The Indian economy displayed speedy and steady growth over the last year on the back of various
Governmenl iniliatives and reforms and challenges faced due to Corona virus (COVID-19) and
lockdown. The growth outlook was oplimistic prior to the unexpected COVID-19) outbreak. The outbreak
of second wave and extension of relief package in various forms has increased the budgel deficil. Owing
to the massive impact of COVID-19, all the major economies of the world have gone through some form
of lockdown or social distancing. But mankind buckled up and pooled the resources together and our
frontline warriors fought hard, and varicus Government vaccination programmes proved to be major
success in fight againsl this unprecedented outbreak. The Central government declared the Gross
Domeslic Product {GDP) for the financial year 2021-22 slands at 8.7 per cent. India's economic growth
in the current year is estimated to be 9.2 per cent, highest among all large economies. For 2022-23, the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has projected India's GDP growth rate to be 7_2 per cent.

The Government has implemented various measures including free vaccination drive other economic
and essential reforms to overcome from the impact of this outbreak and accelerate the growth, These
measures were not limited lo preventive health care and vaccination doses bul also to extend economic
impact such as reduclion in repo rates elc. During the FY 2021-22, Government Announced stimulus
package of Rs. 6.29 lakh crore to boosl all seclors and all classes of society and to increase liquidity,
support and infrastructure which will also help weaker section lo reduce the impacl of economic
slowdown due to the second wave.

OUTLOOK

The Govt. of India has taken various significant monetary and liquidity measures to mitigate the adverse
impact of COVID-19 and in order to mitigate and boost the economic activities. The announcement of
slimulus package expecls to foster long-term employment and opportunities thal will strengthen the
economy further in coming years. After the successful implementation of vaccination drives, the Indian
economy was ready to gel back in the race in short period of time. The Company expectlng an
accelerated growth in business in coming years.

INDIAN PIPING INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The domestic plastic pipes industry size is estimated at Rs. 315 billion; of which the organized players
account for 60% of the market share. Although the pandemic caused most sectors lo evaluate how they
operate, the construction industry landed itself a unigue opportunity to innovate and grow. Organized
players have lopped industry growth as they continue to gain market share from unorganized
manufacturers. The integration in the PVC pipe markel is expecled o accelerate. With limited supply
and rising PVC resin costs, the regional and unorganized players are expected to face significant
sourcing and working capital challenges in the coming years. The major driver leading to growth is
Government infrastructural spending, irrigation sector, replacement of aging pipelines, increasing
constructions and industrial production ameng others. There has been growing adoplion in PVC/CPVC
pipes owing lo its easy installalion, corrosion and flame resislant, environmentally sound and durability.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THE GOVERNMENT IMPETUS

The unorganized players in the plastic pipes industry were already finding it difficult lo gain advantage on
the price and market outreach. After the COVID-19 scenario, the companies with high debt and weak
cash flow are bound to head towards consolidation resulting in leading of market by organized players
with opportunities to acquire regional players at lower valuation.

THE GOVERNMENT IMPETUS

Har Ghar Nal Se Jal: The Government of India covered 8.7 Cr households under this scheme, out of
which 5.5 Cr households were provided lap waler in the last two years. Further, the government plans to
allocate H 60,000 Cr to provide potable water to another 3.8 Cr households in FY 2022-23 under the Har
Ghar Nal 5e Jal programme.

Itis very appreciating and praiseful to know that your Company's registered and place of operations i.e.
Burhanpur in Madhya Pradesh becomes the first "Har Ghar Jal” certified district in the country, reaching
from juslt 37% households of tap water conneclions in Augusl, 2019 to 100% in less than three years

"
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under the collective effort and spirit of work of Govl. of India, MP Govt. and Jal Jeevan Mission.

Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana (PMKSY): The government aims to enhance rural prosperity by
enhancing water availability to all agricultural farms, leading to higher production and productivity.

CHALLENGES
Cost of raw material

The raw matenal prices increases to a greal extent in this financial year also and the production cost of
the players operating in the industry also affected a lol. Moreover, the increase in raw malerial prices
impact the end users and pipe manufacturing players, as the cost is to be passed down fo the
downstream induslry users.

Risk Management

The Company has in place an effeclive risk management framework to primarily control business and
operational risks. The major risk areas are systematlically and periodically reviewed by the senior
management. Al various levels, comprehensive policies and procedures will help to identify, mitigate
and monitor risks. By laking such proactive measures, the Company ensures that strategic business
objectives are achieved seamlessly in a steady and efficient manner. During the financial year under
review, rating for fund based facilities of lhe Company has been upgraded and revised from 'BWR BEB'
to 'BWR BBB+'. Further, your Company has an intricale Risk Managemenl procedure which depicis
business risk and operational risks that are supported by policy framework.

Human Resource

The Human Resource division of the company plays a vital role in hiring, training, managing and
retaning employees to build a group of talented workforces. So that they can reach their full potential and
work diligently towards the growth of the organization. The Company has created a level playing field
space, whereon egual opportunities to all employees is provided. With this belief, it has enhanced
employee morale, boosted productivity and reduced people absenteeism. As of March 31, 2022, the
Company's total work force is 420 employees.

Product Wise Performance

Company's major products are PVC, HDPE, Fittings and Trading. Performance of various producls at a

glance is as under:- (Rs.Inlakhs)
HDPE Pipe 32.913.81 20,680.56

"PVC Pipe 14,518.36 | 12,716.61
CPVE fiting 1.175.80 938.41
Moulding fittings 3,662 B8 3,845.10
Roto Water Tank 59.65 | -
RM Compound Sale T42.18 | 29‘??_4:|_.
Trading Sale 288937 | 1,897.58
Total 55,962.05 42 165.68
Add - Sales of Services 479.47 528.81

Less excise duty -

Add Sell Fit Charges
VAT/CST =subsidy for Industrial promotion

Installation Charges

Total revenue from operation as per audit 56.441.53 | 42.694.49
report |

Note — The Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable with current periods figure.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company considers thal internal control is one of the key supports of governance which provide
freedom to the managemenl within a outline of appropriate checks and balances. Texmo Pipes and

e
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Products Limited have a strong internal control framework, which was instituted considering the size,
nature and risk in the business. The Company's internal control environmenl provide assurance on
efficient conducl of operations, security of Assets, prevention and detection of frauds/errors, accuracy
and completeness of accounting records, timely preparation of authentic financial information and
compliance with applicable laws and regulation. The Company uses SAP - Enterprise Resources
Planning software as its core IT system. The Internal Auditor is a Chartered Accountant has been
entrusted the job to conducl regular internal Audits at all the units/Branches and reporl o the
management the lapses, if any and submitled Reporl on guarterly basis to the Board of Direclors for their
review and comments. To ensure efficient Internal control system, the Company has a well constituted
Audit committee who at its periodical meeting, review the competence of internal control system and
Procedures thereby Suggesting improvementin the system and process as per the changes of Business
dynamics. The system and process are continuously improved by adoptling best in class processes,
automation and implementing latest IT tools.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to operational performance

On a standalone basis your company recorded a turnover of Rs. 56,441 .53 Lakhs for the year ended 31
March, 2022 as against Rs. 42,694 49 Lakhs in the previous year which shows an increase of 32.20 %.

On a standalone basis, the profil before interesl, depreciation and tax for the financial year is Rs.
3,357 .42 Lakhs as against Rs. 2,582 94 Lakhs recorded in the previous year. The profit before tax for the
financial year stood at Rs. 1,968.84 Lakhs compared to Rs. 1,440.79 Lakhs of the previous year. The
profit after tax & exceptional item for the financial year at Rs. 1,460.91 Lakhs compared to Rs. 1,123.08
Lakhs of the previous year.

On a standalone basis your company recorded Production of 38,623.22 MT for the year ended 31
March, 2022 as against 36,115.66 MT in the previous year which shows an increase to 6.94%.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Details of significant changes, i.e., change of 25% or more, as compared to the immediately previous
Financial Year in key financial ratio, along with detailed explanation therefore:

Sr. Particulars Ratio as Ratio as % of Explanationon, if any
i. | Debtors’ Turnover 12.67 9.865 31.25% Due to Increase in Turnover
il. | Inventory Turnover 9.44 6.62 42.69% Due 1o Increase |n Tumover, &
IDecreass in Inventaries
RETURN ON NETWORTH:
Details of change in Return on Net Worth as compared lo the immediately previous Financial Year as
follows:
Sr. Particulars Ratio as Ratio as % of Explanations
MNo. on 31 on 31 Change
March March
2022 in 2021 in
i. | Retumn on Net Worth 12.04% 10.52% 1449%  [Due to Price Fluctuation
of FG & RM.
Due to Increase of
iISales
Cautionary Statement

Some of the statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the company's
objeclives, projections, estimales and expecialions may be 'forward looking stalements’ within the
meaning of applicable Laws and Regulations. Actual results might differ substantially from those
expressed or implied. Imporlant developments thal could affect the Company's operations include
changes in economic conditions affecting demand, supply and price movements in the domestic and
overseas markets in which your company operates changes in the Government regulations, Tax Laws
and other Statutes or other incidental factors. The company assumes no responsibility in respect of
forward-looking statements, which may be amended or modified in fulure.

"
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members,

TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of Texmo Pipes And
Products Limited ("the Company™), which comprises the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
March 31st, 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the éstandalone financial statemenis’).

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31st, 2022, and its Profit and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and
its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditorsi Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statemenis.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Description of Key Audit Matters
S.No. | Key Audit Matters How was the matter addressed in our audit
1 Uncertain tax positions - Direct and Indirect Taxes
The Company has uncertain tax | Our audit procedures included, among others,
matters pending litigations underdirect | the following:
tax and vanous indirect tax laws. The
litigation involves significant judgement | « Obtained details of uncertain tax position and
to determine the possible outcome | gained understanding thereof;

based on which accounting treatment is | » Obtained details of tax assessments and
given to the disputed amount. also

Given the magnitude of potential | demands raised:

outflow of economic resources and | . Along with our internal ta x experts, read and

uncertainty of potential outcome, | analysed relevant communication with the
uncertain tax positions are considered | guthorities:

to be key audit matters. * Evaluated advice obtained by the
[Refer Note 38 fo the standalone | management from legal consuitants on possible
financial statements.] outcome of the litigation;

« Discussed with senior management and
evaluated managementis assumptions
regarding provisions made or reflected as
contingent liabilities;

* Assessed whether the disclosures for
uncertain tax positions are in accordance with
the requirements of Ind AS 36 on iProvisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

Thereon

The Companyis management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Companyis annual report, but
does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditorsi Report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statemenis does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Managementis and Board of Directorsi Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Companyis Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Companyis ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Companyis financial reporting
process.

Auditorsi Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditoris report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures in the
Standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors
use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Companyis ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditoris report to the related disclosures in the Standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditoris report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditorsi report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditoris Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order’), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act ,
we give in the "Annexure-A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Repaort are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31st , 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31st, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

1] With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating

"
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(g)

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in iAnnexure-B";

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditorsi Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note - 38
to the standalone financial statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirecily lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

{v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
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3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditoris Report under Section 197(16)
ofthe Act;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

Place : Indore
Dated : May 26", 2022
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. : 004186C

Devendra Bansal
Partner Membership No. : 078057
ICAI UDIN: 22078057ANITSF6002
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph 1, under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementsi
section of the Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members of Texmo Pipes And
Products Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March
317, 2022, we report that:

(i)(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance
with this programme, cerfain property, plant and equipment were verified during the
year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Mo material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

© According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds ofimmovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) recorded in the books of accounts
of the Company are held in the name of the Company. In respect of Inmovable Property
taken on lease, the lease agreements are in the name of the company.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate in relation to the size of
the Company and the nature of its business. It has been explained to us that the
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discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to books and
records were not more than 10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory and the
variation has been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year. On the examination
of records, it has been observed that the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks or financial institutions are in Agreement with the books of
account of the Company except for the following discrepancies:

[Rs.in Lakhs]
MNature of Quarter ending to Amount | Amount as | Difference Reasons for
Statement which the amount as per per Differences, as
furnished before relates baoks of | Statements informed by
the accounts | fumished the
Banks/Financial fo management
Institutions Bank/F.1.
30" June, 2021 449979 4199.66 300.13 | The difference is
Stock primarily due
Slaternent 30" Seplember, 2021 | 5262.24 4890.15 372.09 tonon
containing 31" December, 2021 | 6321.80 5803.41 518.39 inclusion of
details of Certain Items
Inventories = ofinventory
31" March, 2022 | 6395.40 6010.72 38468 whie
furnishing
the statement
to the
Bank
30" June, 2021 5095.97 50318 6417 Primarily, due to
30" Seplember, 2021 | 555712 0541.95 15.17 non inclusion of
Certain Deblors
Statement 31* December, 2021 | 5603.06 5430.63 172.43 | while furnishing
containing the statement to
details of theBank
Trade Primarily, due
Receivables ~ to non
317 March, 2022 448473 5067 .46 {(582.73) | considerationof
Bad Debls
figures while
furnishing the
statement to the
Bank

(iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or

.

. S
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unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year. The Company has made investments in companies and granted secured and
unsecured loans to companies and other parties in earlier years, in respect of which the
requisite information is as below. The Company has not made any investments in or
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms and limited liability partnership.

{(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has provided loans to its subsidiary
company, as below:

[Rs.inLakhs]
Particular Subsidiar Joint Associat Other
5 ') Venture e s

Agaregate amount of loan Nil Nil Nil Nil
advanced during the year
ended 31 March, 2022

Balance outstanding as at 584 97 Nil il Nil
Balance sheet date i.e. 31*

March, 2022
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit

procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made and the terms
and conditions of the grant of secured and unsecured loans are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the loan has been granted without
any security and without stipulating any schedule of repayment of principal and
interest. As the loan is repayable on Demand along with interest, the question as
to regularity of the repayment or interest receipts does not arise. Further, the
Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the
year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, there being no stipulated schedule
of repayment and the Company having not demanded the repayment of loan, the
loan sogranted has not become overdue.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to




RTINS UMY (14" Annual Report 20212022 )

settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties. Further, the
Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party.

() The company has granted loan to its wholly owned subsidiary, without any
security, which is repayable on demand and which does not specify any terms or
period of repayment, details of which are mentioned below:

[Rs.inLakhs]

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties
{a)Aggregate of total 584.97 - 584 97
loans/advances in  nalure of
loan
(b)Out of ftotal loans and
advances, repayable on 584 97 - 584 97
demand / agreement does nol
specify any terms or period of
repayment
Percentage of loans/advances 100% - 100%
in nature of loan to the totalloans
[bla*100]

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not provided any quarantee
or security as specified under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. In respect of the
investments made and loans given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with
aview to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(viii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is generally
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax ,
provident fund, employeesi state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, with
the appropriate authorities though there has been a marginal delay in a few cases.

L 73 ) |
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount
payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in armears as on March 317, 2022 for a period
more than six months from the date they became payable, except Excise Duly
amounting to Rs. 158.56 L akhs, which is payable due to reversal of CENVAT Credit on
the Lost Goods. It has been informed to us that the outstanding amount of Rs. 158.56
L akhs will be paid by the company as and when the insurance claim against the goods
lost will be received by it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employeesi state insurance, income tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute, except for the following:

[Rs. in Lakhs]
MName of the Mature Amount Amount | Period to | Forum where the
Statute of Deposited| which dispute is
Dues the pending
amount
relates
(F.Y.)
Income Tax Income Tax 32.10 3209 | 2009-10 | Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 Tribunal, Indore
4275 4275| 2010-11 | Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Indore
29.90 6.00 | 2010-11 | Commissioner of Income
Tax Appeals, Indore
151.71 2800 | 201112 | Commissioner of Income
Tax Appeals, Indore
60.31 1210 | 2012-13 | Commissioner of Income
1 _| Tax Appeals, Indore
154.51 31.00| 201314 | Commissioner of Income
Tax Appeals, Indore
198.18 40.00 | 201516 | Commissioner of Income
Tax Appeals, Indore
655.23 133.65| 201617 | Commissioner of
IncomeTax Appeals,
Indore
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[Rs. in Lakhs]
MName of the Mature Amount Amount | Period to | Forum where the
Statute of Deposited| which dispute is
Dues the pending
amount
relates
Madhya Value Added 119.78 599 | 2007-08 | Honible High Court of
Pradesh Tax Tabdflwﬂ Pradesh,
abalpur
¥:L"?.f}g'3d 6.70 Z[ 201112 | M.P. Commercial Tax
: Appellate Board
17.86 7.1 201415 | M.P. Commercial Tax
Appellate Board
24.25 B.06 | 2010-11 | Additional Commissioner
of
Commercial Tax , Indore
13.14 3.29| 201516 | Additional Commissioner
of Commercial Tax ,
Indore
39.94 8999 | 2016-17 | Additional Commissioner
of Commercial Tax ,
Indore
Central Sales | Central Sales 47.32 2.37 | 2007-08 | Honible High Court of |
Tax Act, 1956 | Tax Madhya Pradesh,
Jabalpur
Entry Tax Act, | Entry Tax 38.23 1.91 | 2007-08 | Honible High Court of
1976 Madhya Pradesh,
Jabalpur
21.55 8.62 | 200809 | M.P. Commercial Tax
Appellate Board
17.46 699 | 201415 | M.P. Commercial Tax
Appellate Board

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

(ix)

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the
year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared as Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which
they were obtained.

-

i)
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(d) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
and explanation given to us, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been utilised during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

(x) {a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable tothe Company.

(xiy (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case
by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, a report under
Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the
Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed
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in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures,
in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been
considered by us.

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (&) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

{(b) The GCompany has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance
activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the
Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xvi)@ of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course
of audit, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and Management and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any matenal uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
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date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has during the year spent the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility
as required under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause
has been included in this report.

Place : Indore
Dated : May 26", 2022
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Mo. : 004186C

Devendra Bansal
Partner Membership No. : 078057
ICAI UDIN: 22078057ANITSF6002
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f), under éReport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementsi section of
the Independent Auditorsi Report of even dale to the members of Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31%, 2022, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TEXMO PIPES AND
PRODUCTS LIMITED (ithe Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial slatements of the Company for the year ended on thal date.

Managementis Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Companyis management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporling issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India (€ICAli).
These responsibiliies include lhe design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls thal were operating effectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient conducl of its
business, including adherence to companyis policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the imely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditorsi Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audil. We conducted our audil in accordance with the Guidance Nole on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the iGuidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institule of Charlered Accounlants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate inlermal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemnal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exisis, and lesting and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selecled depend on the auditoris judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for
our audil opinion on the Companyis intemal financial controls system over financial reporting wilh
reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's inlernal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

"
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reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) perlain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary lo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and lhat receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenal misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporling to fulure periods are subject to the risk thal the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on lhe internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Place : Indore
Dated : May 26", 2022
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. : 004186C

Devendra Bansal
Partner Membership No. : 078057
ICAl UDIN: 22078057 ANITSF&002
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

-

i)

[% i Lakhs]
Parficulars Mota No, As at A6 at
31st March, 2022 | 31sl March, 2021
A ASSETS
HNOMN-CURREMNT ASSETS
{a) Properly, Plant and Equipment 2 12.980.04 14.054.12
(b} Right-of-Uss Assets 3 125217 -
{c) Capilal Work-in-Progress 4 6.84 .65
(d} Investment Property 5 38 44 38.44
{a} Intangibie Assets Othar than Goodwill B T11 9.78
{f) Financial Assels
i} Investmenits 7 1,162.13 1.162.13
i) Loans 8 504,97 ST .66
{g) Other Non-Current Asseis 8 511.49 3r0.69
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1) 16,543.19 13,223.48
(2} CURRENT ETS
{a) Inveniories 14 6,305.40 5,561.54
() Financial Assets
[} Trade Racelvatles 11 4. 484,73 4 426,80
i1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 14.39 10.36
iii} Bank Batances othar than cash and cash eguivalents 13 98689 927.23
(£} Other Current Assets 14 2467.72 3A81.45
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2y 14,059.13 14,807 42
TAL ASSETS (1 + 30,602.32 28,030.91
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 2.919.50 2.918.50
(b} Other Equity 16 15,621.60 14,183.67
TOTAL EQUITY 18,241.10 1710347
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 (Contd.......)

N [% in Lakhs]
Particubars MNeta Mo, A5 al As at
FlstMarch, 2032 | 31sl March, 2021
LIABILITIES
(1 |NON-CURRENT LIARILITIES
{a} Financial Liabilities
I} Borrowings 17 174722 550.50
ii) Lease Liabikities 18 1.215.09 -
b} Dalasred Tax Liabllilies (Nat) 19 1,624 88 1,650.60
() Cther Noen-Current Liabilities 20 551.10 43493
TOTAL NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES 11} 5,135.23 2E85.12
(2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} Financial Liakilitias
i} Bormowings 21 T22.61 218060
i) Leass Liahifities 22 a7.09 -
iii) Trade Payables a3
-Tetal outstanding dues of mécro anterprises & small anterprsas, and 843 59 177.64
-Total outstanding dues of creditors othar than micre antarprises &
small enfarprises 374877 4,152.08
i) Cher Financlal Leabilites 24 0.38 .67
(b} Other Currant Liabilitas 25 1.183.01 1,323.92
{c) Provisions 28 22253 27235
{d} Current Tax Lisbdities (Mat) 12495 135.35
TOTAL CURREMNT LIABILITIES 2} 6,822 53 8242 62
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1 + 2] 12,064.22 10,927.74
TOT, ITY AND LIABILITI 30,602.32 28,030.91

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the Standalone Financial Statements

iln tarms of our report of even dale attached
]

\Far Anil Kamal Garg & Company

|Chartered Actountants

]:Ind:nr‘ﬂ- May 26th, 2022

ICAl Firrn Registration No. 0041860

'Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
|Partnar tanaging Directar
Membership Mo, OFB05T DiM - 00316243
JICM UDHM: 2207BOSTAMITSFE002

Mahit Agrawal

Chief Exscutive Officer

Burhanpur, May 26th, 2022

Faor and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Vijay Prasad Pappu

Wihale Time Director cum CFO

DIN : 02086748

Ajay Shrlvaslal.rai

Company Secrelary
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The accompanying nates are an integral pan of the Slandalene Financial Statements

In terms of our repert of even date altached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Charlerad Accountants

|Gl Eirm Registration Mo, 0041860 Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Maraging Directar YWhele Time Director cum CFO

Devendra Bansal DIM - 00316245 DM - B2066745

Partnes

Membership Mo OTBIST .

1G4 UDIN: 2207805 TANITSFE002 Mahit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava

Chief Executive Officer

Indore, May 26th, 2022

Burhanpur, May 26th, 2022
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022
[# in Lakhs]
Particulars Mota Mo, Year ended Year ended
F1st March, 2022 318t March, 2021
I Walue of Sales 69,152.340 50,108,26
Il Less: GET on Value of Sales (1271077} (T.413.77)
1 Revenue from Operations 27 56 441.53 42.694 45
Y Other Income ¥l 135.44 118,53
W TOTAL INCOME [l + IV 56,576.99 42 813.32
il EXPENSES
Cuost of Materials Consumed 20 41,054.82 31.862.93
Furchases of Slock-In-Trade an 3, 268.02 1,723,883
Chanages in Inventories of Finishad Goods, Stock-In-Trade and
Waork-In-FProgress £y {1,248.79) (530, 84)
Employes Benefita Expense 32 1,781.67 1.384.77
Finance Costs 33 6. 60 248,92
Depreciation and Amarization Expense £10.29 62668
Other Expenses 34 d,046 54 5.257.27
ITOTAL EXPENSES (V1) 54,608,15 41,3725
il Prafit before excepticnal items and fax (V-] 1,966 84 144079
Rl Exceptional items - -
X Profit batare tax (VII+VII) 1,968.84 1.440.79
b Tax Expenas;
{1} Current Tax 52500 370.00
{2} Shorti Excass) Tax Provision for sarlier years 17.74 (33.70)
{3) Deferred Tax {34.81} {18.60)
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE (X) 50793 317.70
* |Prafit for the year {IX-X) 1.460.81 1,123.09
xN Other Comprehensive Income 35
A (I} teims that will not be reclassified subsequeantly to profit of lass 11.67 3418
[ii) Income tax relating to itams that will not b reclassified subsaguentty
o profil or loss - g
B. (1] ltems it will be rectassified aubsaeguently to profit or losa u -
(i) Incame tax relating to iterms that will be reclassified subssguantly
e profit or loss - -
|TOTAL QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (XII) 11.67 3418
= TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR [XI+XIl} 147258 1,157.27
X |Earnings Per Equity Share 35
Basic {T) 5.00 4.03
Diluted (T 500 4,03

Far and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Company Sacratany

L
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022

A Esquity Shars Capital

(1) Currant reperting periad 2 Iy Lakhs]
Balancs &= at 191 Apnl, 2001 Changss In Equily Shara Capital | Resiatod halanca as &t { sl apl, 201 Changas in Equity Shars Cagital Badance as at 31st March 2023
dum | priar pericd emors daing Py, 2024.22
291450 - 2,899,560 - 291850
2 Pravious reperting pariad 2 i Lakbe]
Balance as m 151 Apdl, 3020 Changes In Equity Enare Cagkal | Festatod balanca asad 15t Apnl, #ied Changes in Equity Enare Capital Balanoe as al sl March, 2021
dus |o prior perod amors during F.Y 202029
265200 - 2,832.00 2B7.50 231850
A Dithar Equity
[1) Gurrent reporting periad
5 i - . — [% i Lakkes]
Particulpes Euity Campanant | Rawalimtion Total
ol Corrpeind Securilies Retained Surphus
. Premiam | Esrtings . —
Batance at (e heqinning of reporing pamod a2 a1 151 April, 202 8568 8,991.76 | G33.18 G422 83 14,153.67
Cn@anges m Accouring PaliciesPrior Period Eror - . - . "
Rustatod balises tihs buginning of reparting paried &s ol 15 Apsil, 221 | 580 6,979.76 653,19 647251 | 14,183.67
Profi for he finandal year 2321-28 x = 146092 | = 146082
il eomgrehinitaive Pooine for e Tnancial yesr 2029-22 = . 11.66 . 11,66
Transdar from Revalyabon Suplus o Ratainad Eaming: - - 1138 |'I1.3I}IE, -
Unemeartised Cost Portion on Inbarest Fres Losne to Subsidary Witten-of - - {33 ?Bi-: 13373
Unamaised interets Expensss on Loans from related parties woltien al [{I-SE}-: [
- - 1.440.31 (11.38], 1437.93
Balamoo at tho end of roporting pericd as at 3131 March, 2022 BS.59 5891.76 | 2.132.50 41145 | 15.621.60
(2} Pravious reporting period [% ifs Lakbs]
Paniculas Eully Camporsant g a0 5 Rvaliation Toasl
of Comgound Securities FRetaired Surplus
Finanisl et Presmium Earmngs
Batarce at tha beginning of reporing panad as at 95 Agril, 202 &5 &5 &,a7a a3 [T o i 6 427 55 | 12 845 55
Changes in Accounting Paolicias/Prior Pariod Emroms - - - - -
Reaslatai hakanes at the beginalig of reparliag periad as ol 151 Aped, 2070 | 8588 | £,879.61 | 1447 32} B,427.35 | 1294555
Profit for the finandal year 202021 - . 112308 . 112300
(thier comprahensive income for b fnancial year 2020.21 - - Mg - EERE
Transder from Revaluation Surplus 16 Retalmed Eaming: - - 452 452} -
Euity Shares igsimd during the year on prefererntial bass - 112,13 - ' 11213
Wnamariiaed Gost Porton on Inberast Free Loans 5 Subsidary Writen-af - - [ - (318
= 112,13 1,130, 81 [4.52) H.238.12
Balartca ot e wnd of raporting periad 5 a1 13t March, 2021 ! 85,89 | LIRS 68319 642281 14,183.67

Tha accompanying noles are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statemenis
In terms ol our report of even date attached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 004188C Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
banaging Cirector Whale Time Direclor cum CFO

Devendra Bansal DIM : 00316249 DIM @ D20B6T48

Pariner

Mempership Mo, 078027 i

ICAI UDIN; 2207805TANITSFE00Z Mahit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

Indore, May 26th, 2022 Burhampur, May 26th, 2022
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31* March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)
Sno. |Particulars Year snded Year endsd
31st March, 2022 S1st March. 2021
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit befors Tax 1,068,084 1.440.79
Adjustments for -
Depreciation and Amartization Expense A19.2% 625 68
Cher Finance Costs 822.64 245,80
Interest on Leasa Liahilities B3.85 -
Bad Debis 58610 | 14609
Provision for Impairment of Debtors B7.04 {16.09)
Interast Incoma {81.40) (94 58)
Met LossiGainy on Sala of Assols {1.31) 426
Remeasutement of Defined Benafit Plans 11.66 224793 3418 1.648.52
Qperating Profit before Working Capital Changes 4,216,683 3.089.32
Met changa in:
Inventaries {833 BE) 1, 78314
Trade Recearvables {681.08) (135.71)
Olher Financial Assets (B985 (44 84
Orther Current Assals 1,664 29 (1.588.51)
Financial Liabilities 2B | {349.16)
Other Currem Liabilites {16090} 22272
Short Term Provisions {49.82) 131.62 130.20 16.74
Cash genarated from/ {used in) Operations 4,348 45 3.106.05
Diresct Taxes Paid (Mat) (553.15) {210.50)
Net Cash generated from/ (used in] Operating Activities | 3,785.30 2,800,556
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles (2,630.32) {269.10)
Salef Disposals of Properly, Plant and Equiprman] 26,95 10.62
Mavemant in Long Term Advances 2.0 2:50
Movement in Depasits {14080 (26.71)
Interesi Recalved a1.40 84 58
Net Cash generated from! (used inj Investing Activities (2659.08) {188.12)
G. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Preferential Equity Shares - 399.63
(Repayment)/Proceeds of Long-term Borowings 1,155.86 {96.15)
(Repaymant)Proceeds from Shor tarm Barrowings (1,457 08) §2.351.1E;|[
{Repaymanti/Proceeds of Other Non Current Bormawings 116.17 4513
{Repayment)Proceeds of Other Current Financial Liabilities {0.29} 224 60
Payrment of Lease Labiliies including Intarast therean {123.30} -
Finance Cosls (822 &4) {348.88)
Net Cash generated from/ {used in} Financing Activities | (1.132.18} {2.726.54)
| ([ 85 ) |
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2022 (Contd ... }

_ [¥ in Lakhs
3151 Mare 318t March .
MET CHAMGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C] 4403 {19.51)
Gash and cash equivalents-at the beginning of the year 10,36 29.87
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 1439 | 10,36 |
Components of cash and cash equivalents
as al the year end :
Balance with Banks in Current Accounis T2
Cash on Hand 887 10.38
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year f 14.33 10.36
|
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standabone Financial Statements
In ferms of our reporl of evan date allached
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
IEAl Firm Registration Mo, 0041860
Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Partner Managing Director Whaole Time Director cum CFO
Mambarship Mo, 078057 DIM - 00316249 DIN : 02066748
ICAI UDIN; 2207805TAMNITSFE002
Mahit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastaws|
Chiel Execulive Officer Company Secretary|
Indare, May 26th, 2022 Burhanpur, May 26th, 2022
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2022

[¥ in lakhs unless specified otherwise]
NOTE-1A-CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texmo Pipes and Products Limited ("the Company”) was formed as a Partnership Firm by the name
M/s Shree Mohit Industries on 13th May 1999 and was subseqguently converted into Public Limited
Company under Part IX of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name of Texmo Pipes and Products
Limited having Certificate of Incorporation dated 3rd July 2008. Its shares are listed with the National
Stock Exchange [NSE] and Bombay Stock Exchange [BSE]. The Registered Office of the Company
is situated at 98, Bahadarpur Road, Burhanpur (M.P.) 450331. The Company is principally engaged
in manufacturing and frading of PVC, HDPE, SWR, Sprinkler, Drip, CPVC Pipes and Fittings and
Water Tanks.

NOTE-1B-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1B.1  Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Financial Statements which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income) for the year ended 31st March 2022, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022, and accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together hereinafier referred to as 'the Financial Statements’).

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were
authorized forissue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors held on 26th May, 2022.

1B.2 Basisof Measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical
cost convention and on accrual methed of accounting, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fairvalue:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments);
- Defined benefit plans - plan assets; and
1B.3  Functional and Presentation Currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakh, unless
otherwise indicated.

1B.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
1B.4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cost directly aftributable to bringing
the assets o its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate

F "
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asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the itern will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. In the carrying amount of
an item of PPE, the cost of replacing the part of such an item is recognized when that cost is
incurred if the recognition criterias are met. The carrying amount of those paris that are
reptaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition principles.

(c) Expenses incurred in relation to a project, net of income eamed during the project
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as Pre - Operative Expenses
and are disclosed under 'Capital Work - in - Progress’.

(d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Egquipment is provided using sfraight line method,
except on Freehold Land, on which no depreciation is provided. Depreciation provided is
based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 . If,
significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items (major components) of Property,
Plant and Equipment. In respect of the Dies and Moulds, the useful life is estimated at 12
years, which is different from the prescribed life of 8 years under Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013.

(e) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

(f) (Gains of losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assetis derecognized.

(g) Spare parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized and added in the camying amount of such item. The
camrying amount of those spare paris that are replaced is derecognized when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal. Other machinery spares
are treated asistores & spares” forming part of the inventory.

1B.4.2 The Company as alesses

{a) The Companyis lease asset classes consist of leases for land. The Company assesses
whether a confract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contractinvolves the use of an identified asset;

(ii) the Company substantially has all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease; and

(i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

(b) Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a
lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options
to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the
Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to Companyis operations taking into account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in fulure periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After
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considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no
changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

(c) Atf the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right-of-Use (ROU)
asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for short term leases and low value leases. For these short term and low-value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a siraight-
line basis over the term ofthe lease.

(d) The lease arangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

() The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

(f) ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their cammying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

(g) The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments made over the lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured
with a comresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

{h) Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

(a) The Company has not entered into any lease contract during the year in the capacity of
"Lessor".

Adoption of IndAS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (iIMCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases,
and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance
sheetlease accounting model for lessees.

Previously, the Company had entered into short term leases and therefore, it was not recognizing

ROU asseis and corresponding Lease Liabilities. But, during the FY. 2021-22, the Company has

entered into long term lease arangements and accordingly, the Company has now recognized ROU

Assets and comesponding Lease Liabilities during the F.Y. 2021-22 in accordance with Ind AS 116.
1B.4.3 Capital Work-in-Progress

(a) Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost
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under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’. Such costs comprises purchase price of asset including
import duties and non-refundable taxes and costs that are directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

(b) Cost directly aftributable to projects under construction include costs of employee benefits,
expenditure in relation to survey and investigation activities of the projects, cost of site
preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installation and assembly costs,
professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-gradation etc. of common public
facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project, interest during construction
and other costs if atiributable to construction of projects. Such costs are accumulated under
'‘Capital Work-in-Progress' and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over major
assets, other than land and infrasiructure facilities, on commissioning of projects.

(c) Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not have
control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project is
capitalized and carmied under 'Capital Work-in-Progress' and subsequently allocated on
systematic basis over major assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities, on
commissioning of projects, keeping in view the iattributability” and the iUnit of Measure”
concepts in Ind AS 16- iProperty, Plant & Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred
after completion of the project, is charged to Statement of Profitand Loss.

1B.4.4 Investment Property
{a) Recognition and Measurement

The Freehold Land classified as Investment Property is stated at Revalued Cost as on the
date of transition fo Ind-AS.
(b)  Depreciation
Mo depreciation is provided on Freehold Land,considering its infinite useful life.
(c)  Disposal
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of investment property is measured as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assetis derecognised.

{a) Intangible Assets purchased are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade
discount and rebates less accumulated amortization /depletion and impairment loss, if any.
Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to
the intangible assets. Subsequent costs are included in the assetis carrying amount or
recognised as a separate assef, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be
measured reliably.

(b) Amortisation is provided on straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the intangible
assets, which is taken at 5 years for Computer Software. The amortisation period for
intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in
useful lives are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

(c) Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assetis derecognised.

"
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{d) Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dewvelopment costs of products are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a
productis technological and commercial feasibility has been established, in which case such
expenditure is capitalised.

(e) The Company has no intemally generated Intangible Assets.
18.4.6 Impairment of Mon-FinancialAssets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

{a) The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and eguipment and intangible asseis or group of asseis, called Cash
Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to defermine the extent of impairment, if any. Whenit
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

(b) An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, assetis
camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an
assetis fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. \alue in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the
assets.

(] The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

1B.4.¥ Borrowing Costs

(a) Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency bormowings fo
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
costof the asset. A gqualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use.

(b) Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on gqualifying assets is deducted from the bomowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

(c) All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,

1B.4.8 Inventories

{a) ltemns of inventories are measured at lower of costand net realisable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any, except in case of by-products which are valued at net realisable value.
Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cosis
including manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to
their respective present location and condition.

(b) Cost of raw materials, work-in- progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, stores and spares
and packing materials are determined at Cost, with moving average price on First in First Out
[FIFO] basis.

1B.4.9 AsseisHeld For Sale

The assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered
principally through sale rather than through continuing use. The condition for classification of held for
sale is met when the asset is available for immediate sale and the same is highly probable of being
completed within one year from the date of classification under held for sale. The Company, is holding
a Land at Shukhpur Village, as 'Assets held for Sale’, under the head of Other Current Assets, as the

"
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management now anticipates complefion of the sale by March,2023 (Previously, the company was
estimating the completion of sale by March, 2022).

1B.4.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

{a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined based on
management's estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date. When the Company expecis some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a standalone asset only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

(b) if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
afinance cost

(c) Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management's
estimate.

{d) Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1B.4.11 Income Taxes

(a) Income-Tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax (net of Health and
Education Cess only for FY. 2020-21) which has been shown under the head 'Other
Expenses'. Income tax expense is recognied in net profitin the Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case itis
recognized in other comprehensive income.

{b) Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance sheetdate.

(c) Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

(d) Deferred tax liabiliies and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the perod in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.
The camying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period.

1B.4.12 Foreign Currency Transactions and Transiations

(a) Transactions in foreign curmencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumrencies are
translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

(b) Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of
assels.
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(c) Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign curmrency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on franslation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain orloss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI
or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

1B.4.13 Employee Benefits Expense
(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period
when the employees render the services.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company
pays specified contributions fo a separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme. The
Companyis contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognised as an asset to that extent.

(c) Defined Benefits Flans

(i) The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the
present value of such obligation are determined using actuanal valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

(ii) The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of
service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is
paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the provisions of
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

(i} The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed
exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. The gratuity fund has been
approved by the goveming Income-Tax authorities.

{iv) The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated
using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the
benefitis expected to be derived from employeesi services.

(v) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are
charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

(d) Employee Separation Costs
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Compensation to employees who have opted for refirement under the voluntary retirement
scheme of the Company is payable in the year of exercise of option by the employee. The
Company recognises the employee separation cost when the scheme is announced and the
Company is demonstrably committed to it.

1B.4.14 Revenue from Operations

{a) Rewvenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective confrol or
managerial involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

{b) Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance obligation to
render the services are completed as per contractually agreed terms. The revenue derived
by the company from rendering of Logistics services was being netted off against its 'Freight,
Cartage Outward & Other Selling Expenses'till Y. 2020-21.

{c) Revenue from sale of goods & rendering of services is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable after taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding trade discounts, volume rebates and taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the Government such as Goods and Services Tax [GST].

(a) Interest Income

For all Debt Instruments measured either at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through Gther
Comprehensive Income, interestincome is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate [EIR].
ElR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carmrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial iability.
(b)  Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised only when the right to receive the same is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company,
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
1B.4.16 Goods & Services Tax [GST]

The Goods & Services Tax balances, as appearing in the Balance Sheet of the Company, are
subject to the reconciliation at the time of furnishing the annual GST retumns of the company,
under the Goods and Services Tax Enactments, forthe financial year 2021-22.

1B.4.17 Insurance Claims

(a) Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be admitted
io the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

() The Company is expecting the settlement of insurance claims lodged by it, within next twelve
months and therefore, the Company has classified such Insurance Claims Receivables
under the head 'Other Current Assets'in the Balance Sheet.

1B.4.18 Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to
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the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are
recognised using trade date accounting.

(i) Subsequent measurement

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incomea (FVTOCI)

Afinancial assetis measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as
FVTPL.

(iii) Investment in subsidiaries. Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company has elected to measure investment in its wholly owned subsidiary
M/=. Tapti Pipes and Products Lid. FZE, UAE atits FairValue.
{iv) Other Equity Investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments
for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in 'Other
Comprehensive Income’.

(v) Impaimment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss'
{ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those
measured at fairvalue through profitand loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal
toc

. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date); or

- Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies 'simplified approach' which reguires
expected lifeime losses fo be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment
loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical
default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are
analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL o provide for impairment loss
where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in
credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

"
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(b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss as finance cost.

(if) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabiliies are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
For frade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

(iii) Derivative financial instruments and Hedge Accounting

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are also subsequently measured at
fair value. Derivatives are camied as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Statement of Profit
and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast
transaction subseguently resuits in the recognition of a non-financial assets or non-
financial liability.

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:
Cash flow hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial asseis /
lizbiliies as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future
cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash
transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument,
the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the
cash flow hedging reserve being part of other comprehensive income. Any
ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Ifthe hedging relationship no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is disconfinued
prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow
hedging reserve till the periocd the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging
reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is fransferred to the
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If
the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount
accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit
andLoss.

FairValue Hedge
The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets /
liabiliies as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of
hedged item due to movement in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
commodity prices.
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Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the crteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the camying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method is used is amortised to Statement of Profit and Loss over
the perod of maturity.

(iv) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire or it fransfers the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of
a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contractis discharged or cancelled or expires.

1B.4.19 Operating Cycle

{a) The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-
current classification which is based upon the Company’s operating cycle. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Anassetistreated as cummentwhenitis:
(i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle;

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(i} Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

{iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

(c) Aliability istreated as currentwhen :
(i) Itis expected io be settled in normal operating cycie;
(ii} Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(i} Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

{iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

{d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
1B.4.20 Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the peried.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events
of sharesissued during the yearincluding bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1B8.4.21 Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid (including Income-Tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim
dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved
by the shareholders.

1B.4.22 Statement of Cash Flows




RTINS UMY (14" Annual Report 20212022 )

{a) Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, other shori- term, highly liguid investmentis with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(b) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows".

NOTE - 1C - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other faciors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
pericd in which the estimate is revised ifthe revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1C.1  Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment/ intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Companyis historical experience with similar assets and take into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

1C.2 Recoverability of Trade Receivable

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit
rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible
actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

1C.3 Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and guantification of the liability requires the
application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of
changing facts and circumstances.

1C.4  |mpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the assetis recoverable amount. An assetis
recoverable amount is the higher of an assetis or Cash Generating Units (CGUis) fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assetis
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

1C.5  Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impaimment calculation, based on Companyis past history, existing market
conditions aswell as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

1C.6 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-19 on the cammying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues. In developing the assumptions
relating fo the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements has
used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information,
economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and
based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.

NOTE -1D - New and amended Standards adopted by the Company

1D.1  During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has adopted IND AS 116 [Refer
1B.4.2 above]

1D.2 Standards issued But Mot Yet Effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA") notifies new standards / amendments under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March, 2022, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, asbelow :

(a) Ind AS 16— Property, plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale
proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the
profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost ofan
itemn of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after 1stApril, 2022.

(b) Ind AS 37 - Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets — The amendment
specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the écosts that relate directly to the
contracti. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st
April, 2022, although early adoption is permitted.

(c) Ind AS 103 — Business combinations — The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103
for liabilities and contingent liabilities.
(d) Ind AS 109 — Financial instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes

when it applies the "10%' test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of these amendments.
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NOTE - & - NON-CURRENT LOANS
[Unsecured, considerad good)

[T in Lakhs]
Particulars As al : As al
I1sl March, 2022 31=i March, 2021
Loans ta related parties 584 97 GE7GR
TOTAL ' 584,47 587 68

Motes:
e i} The enlire loan has been given in foreign cumency o whaolly owned subsidiary of the company namaly Tapll Pipes & Products Lid_ FZE,

UAE.
iy  Thisboan is being carmed atamorized cost.

i) The koan has boen granted without obtaimng any secunty and without specifying any terms or penod of repayment and is repayble on
Dermand along with inleresl

W) The mamagement, presently, does nol ervisage any dimunition or impaimment in the value of the Loans granted. However, any oss
pocurmed Lo the above named subsidiary company due 1o abnormal dirmunition or impaiment of losses of its assets may consequently
rersLilt o the impairmoent o dimunition in the value of the aforesaid loan granted by tho Comipany.

NOTE-8.1 - ditional Regulatory Information n red by e Companies 2013 as regard to ns or Advances

[¥ im Lakhs
Type-of Barrowar Asat 31st March, 2022 A% al 3180 March, 2021
Amount of Loan or | Parcentage to| Amount of Loan er | Percentage 1o the
Advance inthe  [tha total Leans|  Advance in the todal Loans and
hature of lwan | and Advances|  nature of lsan Advances nihe
outstanding Ir the nature. of olitstanding natise of loans
leans
Promoters - - - -
Diracings - - - -
KNPs . = - .
Related Parlies SH4.97 00,00 587,68 100,00
TOTAL a4 97 00,06 S4TGB 100,60
Enﬂecwed. cohsidersd good) [ irs Lakhs]
Parliculars Az al As al
A1et March, 2022 3121 March, 2021
Sdvances other than Capilal Advances
Security Deposils 326,98 183,34
Tawes Paid Under Protest 185.53 187.35
TOTAL 511.49 aro.es
NOTE =10 = INVENTORIES
[valued at lower of cost and net realizable valus)
[# in Lakhs]
Parficulars Asat Azal
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Raw Materials 1.798.37 221548
Wark-In-Progress 94 .57 a4 gy
Finished Goods 388450 2.5890.78
Stock-In-Trade 44568 490.62
Slores and Spares 107.50 102,30
Facking kateriaks Bd BO &7.73
TOTAL | 6,385.40 5,561.54
i
Moles:

i} Amount of inventaries recognized as an expange have been disclosed in Motes 28,30 and 31.
iy Entire inventories have been hypothecated as securily with banks against working capltal loans, refer Note 27 Tor details,
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NOTE - 11 - CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
[% in Lakhs]
Particulars Asal &g al
3121 March, 2022 3121 March, 2021

Ssecured, considersd good - -
Unsacured, considerad good 4484 73 4. 426.80
Trade Receivables which have significant increass in Credit Risk 124.49 57.45
Less: Allewance for Doubtil Debts (12449} (57 .43}
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -

448475 4 42680

TOTAL

Noles:

i}

Mo lrade or other recenvables are due from direclors or other officers of the Company eilher severally or jointly wilh any other parson. Further, irada

recervables due from enlerprises owver which Key managerial Persons are able lo exercise sigmificant influence amounts Lo T MNil (Previous year 3
0.74 Lakhs) and firms or privale companies in which any direcior is a parlner, a direcior or a member amounts 1o T Nil [Previous year 121 Lakhs)

as alt 31siMarch, 2022

Thee Allowancea Tor Doubtiul Debis has been made on the bashs of expecled credil loss 2s per the judgment ol the managemeni.

Entire Trade Receivables have been hypolhecated wilh Banks againslworking capilal loans, refer Nola 21 lor details

|
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HOTE - 11.1- CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS AT 315T MARCH, 2022

[® in Lakhs)

SHNo

Particutirs

Difstanding for following periods from dua date of Paymen

Lazs than & months |snmmm Hraeu'] 1f0 2 years

210 3 yeam ]

More than 3 years

Tobal

Undisputed Trade raceivablas
= tongicered good

Undspided Trade Recehables
—which hawe significant Increase in
il rigk

Undsmputed Trade Recenvables
= tredil mparad

Disputed Trade Recalvables
- considared good

Digpulad Trade Recoivables
— which hawe slgnificant increasa in
credil rigk

Dispuled Trade Recalvables
= credil mpaiad

Luss: Alcwance for Doubtful Debiz

TOTAL

423188

vy

15,38

om

4267

72

1720z |

22,66

448475

124,50

{124 50)

4.232.00

1540

50.33

128,62

448473

KOTE - 11

2- CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS AT 315T MARCH, 2021

[# in Lakhs]

SHMo

Parlcean

Dutsianding o following periods from dus data of Payment

Lass fhan & manths

& months 1o 1 year

1o 2 yours

2153 years

Mot than 3 years

Total

Unifespistied Trade raceivablas
— considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables
= which hayve significant Increase m
Creddit risk

Urefissputed Trade Recevables
— credit mpairad

Dispuitad Trade Recoivables
- considered good

Disputed Trade Recaivables
= which have significant increase
credit risk

Dispuled Trads Recaivables
— eredit impairad

Less: ASgpwance far Doubtful Debis

TRTAL

335243

T5.24

1002

032

27846

2878

G744

436648

5e.a2

5746

(67.48)

358243

.16

g053

365,68

& 426 80

|
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NOTE - 12 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Ralaling to Interssl Frée Loan to forelgn subsidiary

[% In Lakhs]
Particulars As al As at
Fist March, 2022 19 Mareh, 2021
Balances with Banks 572 -
Cash on Hand 267 1036
TOTAL 1438 10,38
NOTE - 13 - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
[Z in Lakhs]
Farticulars Az at Az al
313t March, 2022 313t March, 2021
Fixed Dreposits - Maturty mere than 3 months and less than 12 montins 995,89 027,23
TOTAL 994,88 B2T.23
MNote: Fixed Deposils are held as margin money against the bank guarantee and lstler of cradil facililies sanctionad by the Banks
OTE - 14 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
f d AZELS [% i Lakhs}
Farticulars As at As al
F1el March, 2023 18t March, 2021
A Capilal Advanceas 49.36 328.98
] 4938 328,98
B. Advances other than Capital Advances
Taxes Pald Under Pratest 457.20 457,20
Advance to refated panies
- Advance fo Suppliers 2471 140090
Cithers
- Advance to Supplisrs T9.78 150.02
- Advance 1o Employess 2B.87 3242
- Advance for Expenses g3z 48.85
(B H58.98 2.088.59
G. Others
Agsats Held for Sale - Freehold Land 196.22 210
Balances with Statutery Authorities 21.13 2248
Prepaid Expensas B1.48 51.70
Insurance Claims Receivable T15.03 715.02
Incentives Receivable from Government 430.02 430.02
Unarmorized Cost” 36.49 3379
[+ 1,459.28 1.463.92
TOTAL [A+E+C) 2,187.72 3,881.48

Metos:

director or a member, 85 al 31sl March, 2022.

been considered necessany.

1 No advances are due from direclors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly wilh any olher person. Further, advanos (o
supplier is due amounting lo T 54.70 Lakhs (Prewvious Year ¥ 1400.01 Lakhs) from frms or privale companies in which any direcior is a pariner, a

2 The entre Insurance Claim is receivable by the Company against the losses ol Property, Planl and Equipment and invenlones oooumed in
earliery years. The Company has received thae parlbal Insurance Claim and the re@mairdng claim is expecled ko be setlled m the Fmancial Year
2022-23. The Management consider the same a5 Good for recovery and hersfore, no provision for impairment of the value of such claim has

e T
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A Authorised and Paid-up Share Capital
[ in Lakhs]
Particulars As af 315t March, 2022 A 8l 3st March, 2021
Mo, o Amoun Mo, of Amount
Shares Shares
AUTHORISED
Equity Shares af ¥ 10y- each 3,60,00,000 3.600.00 3.60,00,000 3,600.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP
Equity Shares of T 10/- sach 2,91,895,000 251950 2,81,85,000 2.919:.50
TOTAL 291,985,000 2,919.50 2,91,95,000 2.919.50
B. Recandliation of the number of shares outstanding a1 the beginning ard at the end of the reporing period
% in Lakhs]
Parficulars As at 318t March, 2022 As al st March, 2021
No, i Amount Mo, of Amount
Shares Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,91,95.000 2.919.50 2,63,20,000 2.632.00
Sharas issusd during the year - = 28,75,000 28750
Sharas boughl back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,891,855 ,000 20950 281,895,000 2.818.50
C. Pefails of shares held by shareholders holding mere than 5% of the agaregate shares in the company
Mams of Shareholder Az al 31st March, 2022 Az al 315 March, 2021
No, of o of No, of Yo of
Shares hetd Holding Shares hald Holding
Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 5448974 18 654 54.48,074 18,664
Smi. Rashmd Devi Agrawal 47 00,092 16.09% 47,00,082 16094
Shree Padmavatl Imigations LLP 26,112,000 5947 26,12,000 #9047
0. Cretails of shares held by Promaoters as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as at 3151 March, 2022 and as at 318t March, 2021
Nama of the Promoter As al 315t March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 " Change during lhe.
Mo, of % of MNo. of %o of yaar
Shares held Tuotal Shares Shares hald Total Shares
Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54 48 974 18.664 54 48 974 12,664
Smib. Rashmi Devt Agrawal 47 00,092 16.099 47 00,082 16.099
Shree Padimavatll lmgabions LLP 26.12,000 0947 25.12.000 B.o47 -
Smt. Rashmi Davi Agrawal & Shrl Sanjay Kumar
Agiranwal on behall of Shiee Venkatesh Industies 143000 (e 143,000 Ba08 i
Shiri Mahan Lal Sohan Lal Shah G089 021 6,089 (021 -
Smil. Ananda Urmale 1,200 0004 1,200 0004 -
Shri Rajesh Babanlal Agrawal 1200 0004 1,200 0.004 -
Shri Vijay Prasad Pappu 1,200 0.004 1,200 0.004 -
Shiri Mahmood Ahmed Khan 1,200 0004 1,200 0,004 -
Toial | 1.29,14,955 44,257 | 1,28,14,855 44,237 .

|
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E Retails of shares held by Prometers as defined in the Companiss Act, 2013 a5 at 31st March, 2021 and as at 31st March, 2020
Name of the Promober Ag &t 3161 March, 2029 As at 318t March, 2020 o Chango during the
ho.of o af No.of Faol yaar
Shares hald Taotal Shares Sharas hald Tolal Ehares

Shri Sanjay Kumar Aagrawal 54 48 974 18 664 38.96,474 14,604 (38.84)
Smt. Rashmi Devi Agrawal 47,000,082 16009 33,771,582 12,633 (39.16)
Shres Padmavati Irigations LLP 26,712,000 8047 26,712,000 9.924 -
Smit, Rashmil Devi Agrawal & Shil Sanjay Kumar -
Agrawal on behall of Shree Venkatesh Industries 1.43 000 0480 1.43.000 [.54%
Shri Maohan Lal Sahan Lal Shah 6,069 021 6.08G 0,023
Smt, Ananda Urmale 1,200 0.0 1,200 0.005
Shri Rajesh Babanlal Agrawal 1.200 004 1,200 0,005
Shri Viiay Prasad Pappu 1.200 004 1.200 0,005
Shrl Mahrnoad Almed Khan 1.200 (004 1.200 0.005

Total 1.29,14 955 | 44237 | 1,00,39,255 38146 {75.993)
F Rights, Preferenices and resfrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has issued only one dass of equily shares hawving lace value ol T 10/ per share. Each sharcholder is eligible Ior one vole per share held, In thae
avanl of iquidation, the equily shareholders are ahigible o receiva the remaining assets ol the Company, aller dislnbubon of all preferantal amounts, n
proporlion lo their shareholding.

G. Allotment of Bonws Shares/Buy Back of shares

Thers are no shares allolled as fully paid up by way of bonws shares or allotled as fully paid up pursuant 1o contract withoul paymeanl being received in cash, or
bought back during the perod of five years immedialely preceding the reporting dale. There are no securifies which are converlible inlo sguily sharas_

NOTE - 16 - OTHER EQUITY
[F in Lakhs]

Parficulars As al As al
315t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Securities Pramiurm 6,991,749 6,091,718
Eetained Earnings 213250 653.19
Revaluation Reserve 641145 6.422 83
Equity Componant of Compaund Financial Instrumanis &5 89 5580

TOTAL 15,621.60 14,183.67

WOTE - 16.1 - Nature and Purpose of Reserves

{a}  Sacurties Premium

The amount received in excess of face value ol the equity shares is mcognized in Securilies Premium. The amount of securifies premium can ba
ulifized only in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 for specified purposes. Dunng the FY. 2020-21, the company had issued
28, 75,000 Equity Shares al lzce value of T 10¥- each as fully paid-up al a Premium of T 3.90 per share. The excess of aggregale considerabion
received over the face value of shams amounling lo ® 112,13 Lakhs was crediled o securnifies premium.

The: dedasils of movement in Securities Premium during the year is as below:

[Z in Lakhs]
Particulars As al As al
~31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021

Cpening Balance 5.991.76 687564
A Premium on issue of Equity Shares - 11212
5,991.76 £.991.76

Lass:  Utilized during the yaar - -
Closing Balance 599175 6.991.76

I L 111 ) |
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b eain ings

Relained Eamings are the profils thal lhe Company has eamed il dale, kess any fransiens o general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid
1o shareholders.

The delails ol movemenl m Relained Eamings during the year is as below:

[% in Lakhs]
Farticulars As at Agal
315t March; 2022 315t March, 2021
Opening Balance G83.19 (44T 32)
Mdd : Transfer from Revaluation Surplus to Retained Eamings 11.38 452
604 57 {44280}
Less ;. Unamortsed Cost Porllon on interest Free Loans o Subsidiary Written-off 3374 (31.28)
BEO.TE {474.08)
Less ; Unamorlised Interest Expenses on Loans from related parties writen off 0.86 .
850,02 [474.08)
Add;  Profit far the year 1,460,681 1,123,098
212083 £48.01
Add:  Oiher Comprehansive Income for the Year 11.67 18
Closing Balance Z2.132.50 658318

(c}  Revaluation Reserve

Arevalualion reserve is 8 non-cash reserve crealed lo reflect the rue value ol the assel when the markel value of a cerlain category ol assal is mom
or less than lhe value of such assel al which il is mecorded in the books of accounl The company has crealed revaluation reserve by making
revaluation of the assels camied oul during the financial year 2016-17. From the Revalualion Reserve, during the FY. 2021-22, a sum ol € 11.38
Lakhs (Previous Year 3 4.51 Lakhs) has been reversed which is alinbulable to the revalued poriion of cerain assel sald during the year.

The delsils ol movement in Revaluation Reserve duning the year is as below:

[# in Lakhs]
Particulars - As el Asal
31stMarch, 2022 | 318t Margh, 2021
Opening Balance 6,422 83 6437 35
Less : Transfer io Retained Eamings {11.38) {4.52)
Closing Balance B411.45 642283

{d} Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrumenils

Equity component of compound financial slatement represents Lhe diference belween The proceeds of the bormowings made by the Company from
ils promolers, during the previous financial years, at low interest rale, and the lairvalue of the Ebility component

The delails ol movement n Equily Component of Compound Financal Instruments during the year is as below: 1% in Lakhe]
PR el s 4
st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Opening Balance BH.B9 £5.89
Closing Balance B5.83 85.849

I L 112 ) |
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(i}

classified undar Nole 21 "Short Term Bormowings®
Refor Note 44 for information about iguidity rsk.

_RinlLakhs]
Particulars As at 31st March. 2022 As al 3151 March, 2021
Mon Current Current Men Currsnl Currant
Term Loans
A Secired
Frem Banks 1,735.50 540,69 11.91 420 .44
Frem Men-Banking Financlal Companios 11,72 18.96 34 68 13.62
1A 1,747.22 55365 ha4E. 539 442 (0
B. Unsecyred
Loans and advances from related parties - - 4391 -
1B} - - 439 -
TOTAL 1A+B) 1.747 22 558 65 584.50 442 08
Notes:
{1y The Current portion of the Borrowing s represent the pancpat amount of loan, which s repayable in nosxt twelve months and has boen

Term Loan of ¥ 700 Lekhs from Punjab Nabional Bank is
secured on firsl and exclusive chame by way ol Equilabls
Morlgage on Machinenes and Hypolhecalion of all movable
Machinedes! Implements! Fixed Assals and Guaranises ol Mr.
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidewi Agrawal, Shree
Padmavali Irrigation LLP, Shree Balaji induslries and Shrea
Venkalesh Indusiries along wilh pari passu charge by way of
Equitable Morigage of Properlies owned by Direclors BMr
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal and Mis
Shrea Balaji Indusines as collalersl securdy.

Roepayable m B4 equal monthly installmenls of ¥ B33 Lakhs with inilial
maratorium perod of 5 months slarling rom Apnl, 2018, Las] inskallment due in
March, 2025 Rale of inlerest B_.B5% p.a. o= al year and. (Previous Year 10.80%
pa.)

[Tolal Quizlanding as on 31-03-2022 5 ¥ 203.23 Lakhs (Provious year
¥ 399.51 Lakhs] oul of wivich ¥ 3999 Lakhs (Previous year T 8999 Lakhs) iz
taken lo current malunties of long lerm dabis]

Term Loan of ¥ 400 Lakhs from Ceniral Bank of India, is
secured by Pan Pasu charge on Planl & Machinenes silualed
al Faclory Premises Presenl & Fulure with 5Bl and Personal
Guaranlees ol Direclors Mr Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs.
Rashmidevi Agrawal, Mis Shree Belap Indusines, Mis. Shree
Padmavali Imigalion LLP and Mfs. Shree Venkalesh Industries
along with First pan passu charge by way of Eguilable
Morlgage ol Properies owned by Direclors Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidevi Agawal and Mis Shree Balap
Induslries as collateral securily.

Repayable in B4 egual monthly nstaliments slading from Oclober, 2016, Lasl
instalfiment due in Seplember, 2023, Rate of inleresl is B85 % p.a. as al the
year end_(Previows Year 11.75% p.a.)

[Toial Quisfamding a5 on 31-03-2022 iz T 89.66 Lakhs (Previous year? 151.76
Lakhs| owl of which ¥ 5633 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 56.32 Lakhs) is taken lo
currard matunities of g ferm debis]

|
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Hahmﬂf&am{ly

Terms of Repayment

3 Tarm Loan of ¥ 1,800 Lakhs from Punjab Mational Bank is
secured by firsl and exclesive charge by way of Eguitable

of building hawving constreckon cosl ol T
3,26, 2T7,000/- silvaled al Kharsa no.. 102 al Gram
Mohammedpura, Burhanpur [(M.P.} and by way of
Hypothecalion on planl & machineries & all movable
machmeres! implements/ ed assels o be crealed oul of
propséd lerm loan of the bank. (Presenily, consorlium has firsl
pari-passu charge by way of EM on Khasra no. 109 al Gram
Mohammedpura, Burhanpur (M.P) 1L is furlther secured by
sacond chamge on enlire currenl assels ol lhe company both
prasant and fulure (Fist charge exists wilh WG Lenders of
consortivm).

Repayable in TH monihly principal insialiments of © 23.08 Lakhs each siarfing
lrom Agril, 2022 Lastinslalkment due in Seplember. 2028, Rate ol Interast as af
the yearend is B_25% p.a. (Previous Year Mil)

[Todal Quistanding as on 37-03-2022 is T 1776.47 Lakhs (Previous year Nil)
out of witnch ¥ 276.96 Lakhs (Previous year Nif} is lzken o curent malunlies
of forg term debis |

4 Working Capilal Demand Loan [Common Covid-18
Emergency Credit Line (CCECL)] of ¥ 320 Lakhs rom Slale
Bank ol India, is secumsd by firsl Pari pasu charge (belweean
consorfium membears) on whole of companies present & fufure
shocks of Raw Malenal, Finished Goods, Slock in Process,
Slores & Spares and olher Raw Malenal and lhe company's
preisent and luture book debls oulsianding monies, recevable
claims, bills, Conlracls, engagements, securilies, invesiments,
righls and assels of he company. The working capilal aciifies,
a5 abowe, are furlher securad by way of aguilable morlgage of
Immovable Properlies of lhe company and promolers, relaled
enfities and personal guaraniees ol Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidavi Agrawal, Shree Padmavati
lriigations LLP, Shree Balgji Indusiries and Shree Venkalesh
Indusiries

Repayable in 18 Principal monthly instaliments with imitial moralonum Penod of
6 months stading from February, 2021, Last irslaliment due in July, 2022. Rale
of Inferesl as al year end 5.95% p_a. {Previous Year §.85% pa.)

[Molal Outsianding € 7299 Lakhs (Previous year T 205, 14 Lakhs) oul of which
T 7299 Lakhs (Provious year € 220 20 Lakhs) laken o cumrent malurilies of
lang farm debis]

5 Fowr Vehicle Loans aggregaling o T 61 58 Lakhs from HDFC
Bank Lid. are secured by Hypothecalion of Vehidles

Al the ime of sanciion:

The koan was repayable in 36 egual monthly instalimenls starling from May,
2019. Last inslaliment due in April 2022, Rale of Inleresl is 8.51% p.a. as al
year end. (Previous Year3.51% pa)

= aring due 1o Covid 19 B =

Repayable n 26 equal monlhly inslallments cormmencing from June, 2020.
Lasl insaliment dwe in July, 2022 Rale of Inlerestis 5.51% pa_as al year end.
(Previous Year 3.51 % pa.)

[Todal Ouisfanding € 6.77 Lakhs {Previous year ¥ 28.75 Lakhs) oul of which
T 671 Lakhs (Previous yaar € 22.04 Laklrs) laken fo currenl malurilies of long
lerm debis]

B ‘iethiche Loan of T 4.24 Lakhs from HOFC Bank Lid. & secured
by Hypolhecation of Vehicka.

Al the lime of sanclion:

The lonan was repayable in 36 equal monlhly installments slading from
Decamber, 2018. Lasl installmenl due in Movember, 2022, Rale of Inleres] is
B.00% p.o. asal year end. (Previous Year 3.00% p.a.)

Reslruciuring due o Covid-18 Pandemic:

Repayable in 32 equal monthly installments commencing from June, 2020.
Lasl inslalkment due in January, 2023. Rate of Inleresl is 9.00% p.a._ as al year
end. (Previous Year 9200 % p.a.)

[Tdal Quistanding € 1.20 Lakhs (Previous year T 264 Lakhs) oul of wiich
T 1.20 Lakhs (Pravious year € 1.44 Lakhs) [aken lo curren! malunbios of long
termn dabis]

"
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Mature of Sacurity

Terms of Repaymrt

Vehicle Loan of T 5.76 Lakks from HOFC Bank Lid: is secured
by Hypolhecation of Vehidle.

Rapayable in 3§ eqgual monthly instafiments slarfing from December, 2018,
Las! inslalkment due in November, 2022, Rale of Interesl is 9.00% p.a. as al
year end. {Previows Year B.00% p.a_)

[Tolal Owistanding € 240 Lakhs (Previous year § 574 Lakhzs) oul of which
T 240 Lakhs (Frevious year ¥ 3.34 Lakhs] laker o cwranl matunbes of lomg
e dalis]

‘Wehicle Loan of T 77.65 Lakhs from HOFC Bank Lid. is secured
by Hypothecalion ol Vehicle.

Repayable n 60 equal monthly inslalimants staring from Auguest 2018 Last
instaliment dise in July 2023. Rale of Inleres] s 8.50% p.a. as al year end.
(Previous Year B.50% p.a. )

[Total Ouwlstandirng T 2402 [ akhs (Frevious year © 40 33 Lakhs | ot of which
T 17. 76 Lakhs (Proviows year T 16,37 Lakhs) lakan o current meduriles of long

term dabis]

Wehicle Loan of T 11.86 Lakhs from HOFC Bank Lid. is secured
by Hypolhecalion of Vehiclia.

Repayable in 36 egual monthly nstallments slarfing from Decernber, 2020.
Lasl inslaliment due in November, 2023, Rale of Inleres! s 8.00% p.a. as al
year end. (Previous Year B.00% p.a.)

[Todal Ouisfanding € 6.94 Lakhs {(Previous year ¥ 10.68 Lakhs) owl of which
T 4.05 Lakhs [Provious year T 3.74 Lakhs) laken o curren] maluribes of lang
e deds]

10

hicle Loan of T §.84 Lakhs from HOFC Bank Lld. = secured
by Hypolhecalion ol Vehcla.

Repayable in 36 equal monthly inslaliments slarfing rom March, 2021. Lasl
irslafiment due in February, 2024. Rate of Inlereslis 785 % p_a_ as al year end.
{Previous Year T.65% p.a)

[Toial Ouisianding ¥ 4.55 Lakhs (Provious year € 6.67 Lakhs] owof of which
T 2.28 Lakhs (Pravious year € 2.12 Lakhs) taken o curmerd maluntics of long

term debis]

"

‘Wahicle Loan of ¥ 5527 Lakhs from Daimler Financial Services
India PvL Lid. is secured by Hypothecation of Vehicle.

Repayable in 36 equal monthly mslaliments slarding from Movernber, 2020
Las! inslaliment due in Oclober, 2023, Rale ol Inleresl s 7.33% p.a. as al year
end. {Previous Year T_33% p.a.)

[Tolal Qulstanding ¥ 3067 Lakhs (Previous year T 48,30 Lakhs) owl of which
T 18.96 Lakhs (Proviows year © 13.62 Lakhs) laken lo cument medfurilies of long
ferrm daiils]

MNOTE - 18 -

LEASE LIABILITIES

% in Lakhs]

Particulars

As al 31st March, 2022

As at 3=t March, 2021

Man Current: Current Men Currant

Leaza Ligbalities for Land

10]AL

1.215.09 97.09 = b

ay.0a - -

1,215.09

MNotes:
(i}

{iiy

The Currénl porlion of the Lease Liabiilies represent the Lease Renlal which is payable in naxl lwekve monihs and has been classhed under Nole

22 'Curmanl Lease Liabilities'.

For delaits on the implications of application ol Ind AS 116 on the inancial slalements, Reler Moles 1 & 39.

|
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[ in Lakhs]
Particulars Asat As al
1121 March, 2022 31=t March, 2021
Deferrad Tax Liabililies an accounl of taxable lamporary differances:
At the beginning of the year 1,659,649 1.678.29
Less » Credit io Statement of Profit and Loss {34.81) (16.80)
TOTAL 1,624 88 1.659.69
NOTE 19.1 - Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities for the year ended 31st March, 2022
¥ in Lakhs]
Particulars Az at Charge/{Credit) to Asal
12 Apnil, 2021 | Statement of Profil [ 3151 March, 2022
and Loss
A Deferrad Tax Liabiities in relation o :
Property, Plant and Equipment 278.33 613 284 48
Revalued Land 1.407.74 {5.22) 1.401.52
Right-of-Llse Agset : 31515 315,15
(A 1.686.07 315.08 2.001.13
B Dferred Tax Assets in relation o
Provision for lmpairment of Trade Receivabls 14,48 16.87 31.33
Gratuity Payatle 11.82 275 1467
Lease Liabilities = 33025 330,25
(B 26838 340 87 376.25
TOTAL (A-B) 1.652.659 [34.81) 162448
Note - 19,2 - Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities for the financial year ended 315t March, 2021
¥ in Lakhs]
Particulars Mg at ChargedCredit) o . As at
151 Agril, 2020 | Statement of Profit | 315t March, 2021
and Loss
A Refemed Tax Liaklities in relafion fp
Property, Plant and Equipment 350013 (71.81) 278.32
Revalued Land 1,373.29 .45 1.407.74
A} 1.723.42 [37.38) 1,686.06
B Deferred Tax Assets in relation to :
Provizion for Impalement of Trade Receivable 20,46 {6.00] 1445
Graluily Payable 2467 (12,75} 11.92
(8 45.11 [18.75) 7h 2R
TOTAL (A-B) 1,678.29 {(18.81) 165068
([ 116
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NOTE - 20 - OTHER NON-CURREMNT LIABILITIES

[% in Lakhs]
Particulars Asal &g al
415t March, 2022 31t Mareh, 2024
ES Advances for Sale of Property 5.50 5.50
{A) 5.50 5.50
B. Cihers
Lang Term Deposits from Dealers and Suppliers 428.50 38819
Long Term Deposils from Tenants 500 T2
Gratuity Payable 4210 404
B 545 60 42043
TOTAL {A+E) §51.10 43493
|2 in Lakhs]
Particulars : Ag At Asal
315t M 202 March, 202
A, From Banks.
Cash Credit Facilities 162.96 1.738.54
[Leans Repayable an Demand, Secuned]
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 540.69 42844
TOTAL (A} TO3.65 2.166.98
E. Frem Cihers.
Current Maturities of Long Tarm Debt 1E.96 13.62
TOTAL (B) 18.95 1362
TOTAL (A+B) TE2.81 218060
Mote:
(i} Thecompany has borrowed Cash Crodit loans from Stato Bank of India, Bank of Baroda, Pungab National Bank and Central Bank of India
led by Stato Bank of India wheron, SBI Cash Credit Loan of 15870 Lakhs (Provious Year ¥ 931_22 Lakhs), Bank of Baroda Cash Credit
Loan of ¥ 2 25 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 343 07 Lakhs), Punjab National Bank Cash Credil Loan of £ Nil {Previous Year 15517 Lakhs ) and
Central Bank of India Cash Credit Loan of ¥ 1.00 Lakhs (Provious Year ¥ 30906 Lakhs) amo secured by first Pan pasu charge (bolweon
consortium mombers) on wholo of compames present & future stocks of Raw Matenal, Finished Goods, Stock in Procoss, Slores &
Spares and other Raw Malerial and the company's present and fulure book debls oulstanding monles, receivable claims, bills, Contracls,
engagoemonts, sccunies, investmoents, rights and assats of the company. The working capital facilites, as above, are further secured by
way of equitable morngagoe of Immovable Properties of the company and promolers, related entities and porsonal guarantecs of Mr.
Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal, Shree Padmavali Irrigations LLP, Shree Balajl Indusines and Shree Venkalesh
Industrics
- CURR! ASE LI
2 in Lakhs]
Particulars Az at Asal
318t March, 2022 31s1 March, 2021
Cusrent Maturitias of Lease Liabilities 97.09 -
TOTAL 5704 -

S i |
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NOTE - 23 - CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES

[ in Lakhs]
Particulars Asal As al
3121 March, 2022 3121 March, 2021
Total oulstanding dues ol micre erdarprises & small enferprises B43.58 177 64
Total outsianding duss of creditors other than micro enferprises & small anterprisas I T4BTT 4152 .00
TOTAL 4 59235 4,.329.73
Nofes:
i) Trade payables are due o firms or privale companies in which any direclor is a partner, a director or a member amounts o T 605,94 Lakhs

(Prenvious yaar T Nil) as al 315t March, 2022.

The information as required o be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006 has been detormined Lo the extent
such parties have boen identified on the basis of information avallable with the Company. The amount of principal and inlercst outstanding durng the
year is given below &

% in Lakhs]
Particulars Asar s af
31si March, 2122 315t March, 2021
fa) Principal amaunt remaining wunpasd to any supplier as al the end of accounting 543.59 177.64
yaar

1] Interast due therson remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the and of the
accounting year - -
(3] The amount of interest paid afong with the amounts of the payment made to the
supphier beyond the appointed day - -
(dj The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -
3] The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year - -
{f) The amaunt of furiher interest due and payable even in the succseding year,
untll such date when the intarest dues as above are actuadly paid -

NOTE - 23.2-Tr. ayab Schedule as at 31 a 022
[% in Lakhs]
S.MNa Particilars Cuistanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Lessthan 1 Year |  1to 2 years 2o 3years | Mors than 3 years
1 MSME 843.5% - - - 84359
2 Oihier than MSME 3BE2T 2682 aves - 3,748.77
3 Displted duas-MSME - = - . =
4 Disputed dues - Othar than MSME - . - . -
TOTAL 452578 28,02 3768 - 459236
NOTE - 23.3- Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as at 315t March, 2021
[% in Lakhs]
& HNa Particulars Cutstanding fer following periods from dus date of payment Total
Less than 1 Year 1o 2 years 2o dvears | More than 3 years
1 MEME 177.64 - - - 177 64
2 Cvhar than MSME 4 006,29 12153 2335 0.93% 4,152.10
3 Disputed dues-MSME - - - . -
4 Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - -
TOTAL 4.163.93 121.53 23,35 0.893 4.329.74
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NOTE - 24 . OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

% in Lakhs]
Particulars As &t Az al
31at March, 2022 318t March, 2021
Inferas! Accruad but nol due on borrowings .38 a7
TOTAL 0.36 .67
NOTE - 25 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
I [ in Lakhs}
Parliculars As al Az al
) Fiet March, 2022 H1s1 March, 2031
A Revenus Heesived in Advance
Advance from Customears 28140 468.58
] 281.40 458,50
B. Others
Slaluloey Liabilities 2534 42530
Graduity Payable 16,19 13.33
Cher Liabilities [Refar Mote Below] 61221 416.71
B B&1.61 B55.34
TOTAL A+ 1,163.01 1,323.92
Mote !

e

1 Other lishilities include due to directors or othsr officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person amounting to? (.82
Lakhs {Pravious year ¥ 23.09 Lakhs).

- 26 - 5 - ROVISI
(2 in Lakhs
Parficulars As gt Az al
A1et March, 2022 | 31st March; 2021 |
For Employes Bansfits 166.14 13219
For Oihers 5637 140,16
TOTAL 222.53 27235
HOTE - 27 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
[2 in Lakhs]
T Wear ended ‘Year ended
o 38t March, 2022 | 31t March, 202
A Sale of Products
Manufactured Goods 52 330.50 40.258.09
Traded Goods 363155 1.887 58
TOTAL (A 55.962.05 42 18567
B. Sale of Servicas
Freight and Lagistics Income 47947 52881
TOTAL (B) 47947 52881
TOTAL (A+B 56,442 42 594
ra "
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Sy e AT

[¥ in Lakhs]
Perficulars India Dutside India Tolal
Plastic Plpes, Fittngs, Alled Products and Trading Accessones 55 %02 40 - 55802 40
Water Tanks and Alfied Producls 8965 - 5365
TOTAL 55 56205 - 5h. 562,05
NOTE - 27.2 - Revenue From Con with Customers di ated on the basis of Geographical Reqgion and Major Businesses as at
st March, 2021
_[% in Lakhs}
Parliculars- India | Outside India Todal
Flastic Pipas, Fitlings, Allied Products and Trading Accessanes 42 165,68 - 42 16568
Water Tanks and Alfied Products - - -
TOTAL 42, 165.68 I - 42.165.68
[% in Lakhs]
Year ended Yearended
izl HstMarch, 2022 | 31t March, 2021 |
Gross Revenue 1.34.357 50 9982113
Less: Discounts ¥8,395.85 57 BR5.45
MNet Revenue recognized from Confracts with Customers 55,962.05 42 165,68
NOTE - 28 - OTHER INCOME
[% in Lakhs]
Parficulars Year ended ‘Year ended
31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
A Interesi Income 91.40 94 58
B, Other Mon-Operating Incoms
Gain on Sale of Freehold Land g.19 2.88
Miszallaneous Recalpts 34.87 2137
TOTAL 135 46 118.83
i
Mots ; Interest Income includes impact of financial insfruments
NOTE - 23 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
[ .in Lakhs]
Particulars ¥ear endad Year endad
312 March, 2022 3121 March, 2021
Raw Materials Consuimed 40,774.02 31720085
Packing Materials Corsumsad 28080 24204
TOTAL 41,054 .82 31.962.93
E-30-P OF STOCH-MN-TRADE
[¥ In Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Sttt March, 2022 3181 March, 2021
Pipes & Fittings 2179.81 141237
Oilhers 1.088.21 311,46
TOTAL 3.268.02 1.723.83
{ 120 ) |
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NOTE - 31 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-AN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

[% in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year anded
st March, 2022 | 31si March, 2021 |
I8 Inventories &t the beginning of the vear
Finizhed Goads 2,550.76 211440
Work-In-Progress 94 6T 75.21
Stock-in-Trade 43062 455.80
' 3176.05 264511
B, ventories at the the
Finished Goods 3.584.59 2.530.76
Wark-In-Progress 94 57 44 57
Stock-In-Trade 445 65 490 B2
4,424 84 3,176.05
CHAMNGES IN INVENTCRIES |1,248.79) {530.54 )
NOTE - 32 - EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSES
% in Lakhs]
Particulars Yaar ended Year ended
3181 March, 2022 18t March, 2021
Directors’ Ramunaration 328.50 194.30
Salary. Wages, Bonus & Gratuily 1,343.76 1.093.80
Contribufions foward Provident Fund 5360 4T 45
Contribufion towards ESIC 19.98 15.85
Employes Welfare and Other Benefits 3683 33.39
1. 78167 1.584.77
NOTE - 33- FINANCE COSTS
[ in Lakhs]
Particilars ¥ear ended Year antdad
315t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Interast Expenses a05.34 61647
Letter of Cradit Charges 223.28 336.34
Loan Processing and Incidental Expenses 7412 7417
Bank Guarantes Commission 19.94 2382
Interast on Lease Liabilities 6395 -
(Gain) Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations - {1.81)
BRE.80 948.389

RIEH.EEZ

il During the F.Y. 2021-22, bomowing cost of ® 62,73 Lakhs (Previous Year T Ni) has been capitalised by the company towards its Cualifying

Asgats,
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NOTE - 34 - OTHER EXPENSES

¥ in Lakhs]
Particulars Yaar ended Yearanded
215t Mareh, 2022 3181 March, 2021
A Manufacturing and Operating Expenses
Power & Fusl 1,441.97 1.266.23
Siores & Spares Consumed 11270 4960
Repairs to Plant & Machinesies 95.30 BT .54
Cfver Manufacturing Expenses 321.685 320.06
Y] 1,971.62 1.753.82
B. mini
Leass Renl Expansas 38 85 11503
Rent Expenses 5688 5478
Hatianery & Printing 1120 8.1
Paostage and Couner Expenses 1.60 1.57
Ekectricity Expenzes 1.50 1.7
Yehicle Running and Maintenance 18.56 19.64
Traveliing & Conveyanco Exparnses B5.80 48 68
Telaphone, Mobile and Internet Expernses 10.24 11.05
Directors Sitting Feas 410 4.20
Audibors' Remunaration
- Statutory Audit B.00 B.00
- Tax Audit 200 2.00
- G5T Audit 200 2.0
- ost Audit 075 0.75
- Secretanal Audit 055 1.10
Insuranca 4027 43.11
Repairs and Maintoenance
- Factory Bullding 257 BE 3552
- Office Building 243 6.4
- Others 105 1.18
Legal & Profassional Expenses K] 29 25
Saftware Programme & Licence Fees 21.70 11.75
License Renewal Fees 8.7 384
Guest Accommuadation Charges 4. 58 23
Rates & Taxes 394 15.27
Charity & Donation 023 5.35
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibilty 1852 B.13
Prior Perlod Expensesi{incoma) {6.41) 1.56
Lass on Sale of Assets 7.88 744
Health & Education Cess . 9.37
Difice Expenses 31.84 42 32
(=3 G47.71 510.32
C. Selling, Distribution & Other Expenses
Advertisemaent, Publicity & Sales Promotion 202.52 116.70
Copyrght Usage Charges 1,104.52 -
Commission on Sales 117.54 a0.44
Freight, Cartage Outward & Other Selling Expenses 322752 2.426.38
Discount & Other Expenses 152.00 237.56
Bad Debis 586.10 146.09
Allowance for Doubtful Debts made/[reversed) BT.04 (16.09)
{C} 542721 209313
TOTAL [B=B+C) & D4E 54 535727
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NOTE - 34.1 - BREAK UP OF AUDIT FEES

[ in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year anded
315t March, 2022 31=t March, 2021
{a}  |Audibors’ Remuneration
- Blatutory Audil Fess B.00 .00
- Tax Audit Feas 2.00 2.0
- GST Audif Fees 200 20
bk Certification and Consultation Fees 1.75 1.040
TOTAL 13.75 13.04
NOTE - 35 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[ in Lakhs]
Particulars Yaar endad Yearended
318t Marc 315t March, 2021
A Items that will not be reclassifisd into profit gr koss ;
(]} Change in Revaluation surplus - -
i} Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 11.67 3418
I Equity Instrument of the defined benefit plans - -
{iv) Fair Value changes relating to own cradit risk of financial labilites designated = -
al fair value through profit or loss -
vl Share of ather comprehansive Income In Associale and Joint Venlures, Lo the -
axlen! ol 1o be classified inlo profit or loss -
v Cthers = -
LY 11.67 34.18
B. Items that will be reclassified o prafit or less ;@
il Exchange differences In translating the financial statements af forelgn operatlon - -
() Debt instruments through other comprehensive Income -
(iid] The effectve portion of gams and loss on hedging instrumants in a cash fiow hedge - -
vl Share of other comprahensive Income in Associale and Jaint Wentires, la the - -
extent not to be classified mio profit or loss 2
v Cthers . |
(B) - o
TOTAL [A+B) 11.67 3418
NOTE - 36 - EARNING PER SHARE
[% in Lakhs]
Particulars ‘Year ended *fear ended
315t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2031
Net Profit afier Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss aliributable to Equity Shareholders 1460591 1.123.08
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EPS 291.93 278.87
Welghted Average Potantial Equity Shares - -
Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares ussd as denominator for calculating Diluted EPS 292 278
Basic Earning Per Share K00 4.0
Diluted Earning Par Share 500 4.03
Facs Value Par Equity Share 10 10
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NOTE - 37 - THE RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSES AND THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT

[% in Lakhs]
Pariiculars ¥ear ended ‘Year ended
315t March, 2022 315t March; 3021
Profit before Tax 196884 1.440.70
Effsct of Ind AS Adjustments (T9.66) 5.20
Adjusted Profit before Tax 1,880.18 1,445.93
Applicable Tax Rale 25.168% 251685
Computed Tax Expense 474.47 362,93
Tax EHect of:
Ineomis rol laxable - -
Expenses Disallowed 28.54 21.83
Differant tax rate on Capital Galng - -
Ciher Differences 2037 (18.17)
Unceriain tax positions (0.43) {0.69}
Current Tax Provigicn 525.00 36500
Effective Tax Rate 26,6T% 25.61%
[ in Lakhs]
Farticulars Year endad Year ended
#1st March, 2022 |

Contingent Liakility not provided in respect of

il Displled Insome Tax Demarnd 1,324 6D 1,324 80

fii) Disputed Excise Duly VAT, CST & Enbry Tax Demands 725.00 743.05

I} Guarantee Ghven by the company's Banker in the normal course of business BER B4 BE6.38

{iv) Lettar of Credil for purchass of goods 224.90 195.08

{v) Ciher Disputes c i

[Rofar Mata Eslow)

Commitmsnts
Caplial Contracts remalning to be executed 4TE.T1 349,32

Notes:

i

(i}
{iii}

(i)

iv)

Itis not practicable for the Company lo eslimale the imings of cash oulflows. if any, in respect of the above pending resolufion of the respective
proceadings.

The Company does nol expect any reembursemanis in respect of the above conlingent Fabilities

Fulure cash oulflows in respect ol lhe above matlers are delermined only on receipl of judgments / decisions pending al vanous forums /
The Company's pending lifigations compnse of claims againsl the Company pertaming lo proceadings pending with Excise, Incoma Tax,
Sales! VAT lax and other aulhornlies. The Company has reviewed all ils pending liligalions and proceedings and has adequalely provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as conlingenl Babililies where applicable, in its inancial slatements. The Company does nol
axpact lhe outcome of thase proceedings 1o have a malerially adverse effect onils inancil stalements

An inguiry cum Adjudicabion againsl the Company s pending wender seclion 15HA of Securities and Exchange Board of India Acl, 1982
(hereinafier refarred o 55 "SEBI AL, 19827 for the violation of Seclicn 12A(a),(b),|c) of SEBI Act, 1992 read wilh Regulalions 3(a).(b).(c),{d}
and 4015423 k)(r) of SEB] (Prohibifion of Frauduwlent and Unlair Trade Pracices relating lo Securilies Markel) Regulations, 2003
(heminafier referred o as "PFUTP Regulalions, 2003") SEB! (PFUTP) Regulations, 2003 and Under Seclion 23E of Sacurifies Contracls
{Regulation} Acl, 1956 (hereinafler refemad o as "SCRA, 19567) for he vidlalion of section 21 of SCRA read wilh Clause 36{7) and 50 of the
Eguity Lisbng Agreemenl. The Managemeni of the Company does nol envisage any financial imphication ol such liigalions against the
Company.
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NOTE - 39 - DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 116 "LEASES”
APPLICATION OF IND AS 116

Minkstry of Corporate Affairs (IMCA) through Companies (Indisan Accounting Standarnds) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companbes (Indian Accourling
Stardards) Second Amendment Rules, has nolified Ind AS 116 Leases, which roplaces the oxisting lease standard, Ind AS 17 Loases, and othor
interpretations. Ind AS 116 so1s oul the principles for the recognition, messurcment, prosentation and disclosuro of leasos for both kessoos and lossors.
Itintroduces a single, on-bakance sheet lease acoounting model for lessoes.

14" Annual Report 2021-2022 )

The Comparny has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting pernod beginning 1stApnl, 2021 and applied the standard 1o its leasos. Accordingly,
thie Corpaany' has measured its kease Gability as at 1stAprl, 2021 at the present value of the remaining leasoe payments, discountod wsing the inlerest
rale of B 95% pa. implicitin the lease at the dateof ransition (o ind AS.

The Right-of-Usa Assol has been recognisad al an amount equal to the lease liability. Accordingly, a Right-of-Use assel of ¥ 1252 17 Lakhs has been
recognized. The cumulative effect on transition in retained camings notoff laxoes s NIl

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of cxpenses has changed from kease renl in previous poriods 1o doproeciation cost for the Right-of-Use assol,
and finance cost for nterest accrued on lease labdities.

The Company does nol have an oplion o purchase such leasehold land at the end of the lease period. There are no restrictions such as those
concarming dividends, additioral debts and further leasing imposed by the leasoe agrooments.

Ind AS 116 has resulled inan increase n nel cazh inflows from oporating activitios and an norease in cash outflows from financng activitios on acoounl
of lease payments. Tho pancipal and interest portion of the fease payments have boen disclosed under cash flow from financing activities which for the:
yearendod March 31st, 2022 aggrogating to ¥ 12330 Lakhs (Previous Yoar < Nil).

Far movement in Right-of-Use Asset Refor Note 3 and movement in Lease Labily durng the year is as follows ©
% i Lakhs]
Yaar ended
41st March, 2021

Parficulars Yaar endad

3184 March, 2022

Balance at the beginning = :

Additions 1.371.53 -
Finance cost accrued during the period 63.95 -
Deletions: - -
Paymant of lease liabilites (123.30) -
Balancs at the end 131218 -
NOTE - 40 - DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 18 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"
il Defined Contribution Plan
Coniribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognisad as expanse for the year s a8 under;
[ in Lakhs}

Particulars Year ended  ¥ear ended

31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 |
Employer's Contnbutian to Pravident Fund 5380 47.43
Employer's Contrbuteon fo ESIC Fund 18.98 15.85

{1 Defined Benefit Plan
Reconciliation of opening and clasing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
|2 in Lakhe]
Parficulars. Gratuity (Funded)
Year ended Year ended

31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Defined Banefil Oblgation at beginning of the vear 169.66 174.27
Currant Sarvice Cosl 25.25 2254
Intersst Cost 11.54 11.85
FPast Servicer Cost {Vested hanefits) 5 a
Benefits paid {5.85) (2.82)
Actuarial (GainiLoss {12.78) (36.58)
Drefined Benefit Obligation at year end 187.82 180.66

rd T,
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Reconciliation of Cpenng and Closing balances of fair vaiue of Plan Assels

[% in Lakhs]
Particulars Cratuity (Funded)
Asat Year ended
‘315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Falr valus of Plan Assats al beginning of year 12229 8560
Expacted Relurmn on Plan Assels 8.32 £.91
Actuarial Gaini(Loss) {1.11} {240}
Employer Contribution 523 35.00
Benefits Paid (95.85) {2.82)
Fair value of Plan Assets at year end 129.54 12220
Reconciliation of falr Valus of Assets and Cbligations
[2in Lakhs]
Palﬁ_ﬂuhm Gratuity (Funded)
Asat - As al
3stMarch, 2022 | 31stMarch, 2021 |
Fair value of Plan Assets 128.54 122,29
Present Valug of Benefit Obligation 187.82 169,66
Amount recogrised in Balance Sheet (Surplus/{Deficit}) (5824} (4737
Expenses recognised during the year
cog g [% in Lakhs]
Particulars Gratuity {Funded)
 Asat Asat
- 315t March, 2022 313t March, 2021
In Income Statameant
-Current Service Cost 25.25 2254
-Interast Cost 11.54 11.85
-Pasl Service Cost - -
-Returm an Plan Assats {B.32) {6.91)
Met Cos| 2847 2788
In Qther Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gainploss (12.78) 134,18}
Raturn on Pian Assets 11 -
Bal {IncomaVExpenses for the parod fecognised in OC| {11.67) {34 18)
[¥ in Lakhs]
Actuarial Assumptions Gratuity (Funded)
Asat As al
315t March, 2022 31at March, 2021
Martality Table (ALM)
Dizcount Rade (Par Annwm) 6.80% 5.B0%
Rate of Escalation in Salary (Per annum) 7.00% T.00%
Nates:
1. The esmales of abe ol escalalion in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take inlo account inflations, seniorly, promotion and other
retevanl faclors including supply and demand in the employment markel. The above information is cerhified by the actuary.
The expecled contribution for Dafined Benefil Plan for the necd inancial yearwill be in line wilth £Y. 202 1-22.
The company makes providenl fund {PF} conlributions lo delined coninbulion benefil plans for eligible employees. Under the scheme the
company is reguired o conlribute a specified percentage of Lhe payroll costs 1o fund the benefits. The conlnbulions specified under the law are
paid to the govemment authorilies.
4. Amount lowards Defined Contrbulion Plan have been recognized under Conlribution o Provident and Other funds in Nole 32
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5. Defined Benefil Plan:

The Company has defined benefil plans lor gratuily 1o efigible employess, conlribubions for which are made o Lile Insurance Corporalion of India,
‘whio imvesls the funds as per IRDA guidelines. The details of these dafined benehl plans recognized in the financial slatements are as under:

Geneml Descriplion of the Plan
The Company operates 8 defined benefil plan (the Graluity Plan) coverning eiigible employees, which provides a lump sum paymenl lo weslad
employees al refirement, death, incapacitabion or lerminabon of employmentd, of an amount based on the respeciive employees salary and the lenure
ol employrment.

(=)

(k)

=

]

Investment risk:

prasent val 8 is using a discoun ich is T Erence althe
Tha nl valuwe of the defined benehl plan izbility s cakculated usi i L rabe which is determined by rel; lo markel yiedds alth

The defined benefl plans typically expose the company Lo various risk such as -

end of lhe repording penod on government bonds. [Ttha return on plan assel is below this rate, it will creale plan delicil

Inlerest sk

Adecreasa in the bond inferest rale will increasa the plan liability; howsewer, This will be partiaily offsel by an increase in the plan assets.

Langeyily nsk:

The prasanl value of the defined benalit plan liabilily s calowated by meference (o lhe besl eslimale of the modality of plan parficpants both
during and aflter their amploymeni An increase in the life expecltancy of the plan parficipanls will increase the plan’s Rabifily.

Salary risk:

The prasenl value of the defined benefil plan liability is calculaled by relerence Lo the fulure salares ol plan parbicipanls. As such, an increass in

the salary of the plan parlicipants will increase the plan's liability.

The Detalls of Loans given and Investmants made by the Company as at 31st March, 2022 is as undsr

|2 in Lakhs]
Sno.  |Pariculars Mame of the Entity Retafion Purpose Amiount
1 Investments Mads Tapti Pipes & Products Lid. FZE Whally cwned | Business Purpose 1,162,113
subsidiary
2 Loan Given [Unsecured) Tapti Pipes & Products Lid, FZE ~dg- Business Purpose S84 87
TGTAL 1,747.10
The Detalls of Loans nand Investments made by he Company as al 31st March, 2021 Is as under -
[% in Lakhe]
Sng,  |Parficulars {Mame of the Entity Refafion Purpose Amaount
1 Investments Made Tapti Pipes & Products Lid. FZE Whally owned | Business Purpose 1,182.13
subsadiary
2 Loan Givan [Unsecurad) Tapti Pipes & Products Lid. FZE —dg— Business Purpose 587 68
TOTAL 1.740.81

]
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NOTE - 42- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

ti}

List of Related Parties

Snao.

Relationship

Kame of the Party

1

Keay Managerial Personnel [KMP]

. Mir. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal (Managing Director)

_ Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal (Whole Time Director)

« Mir. Mohit Agrawal {Chief Executive Officer)

. Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu (Whele Timea Diractor cum Chilef Financial Officer)
. Smt. Aparna Agrawal (Chief Designer Officer}

BN B Ld Ra =

Whally Owned Subsidiaries

1. Tapti Pipes & Products Ltd, FZE, UAE

Enterprises over which Key Manageral Personnel are
able to exarcize significant mfluance.

Ralatives of Directors are Directors! Partners in Cancemn

. Shrea Venkatesh Indusiries {Parinership Firm)
Shrae Padmavati Irfigations LLP

. Shrae Venkatesh Industries Private Limited

. Mangal Murti Minerals

. Shree Balaji Industries (Partnership Firm)

@ b LRy 2

- C.P Indusirial Products Privata Limitad
MNarendra CotFibre Industries LLP

- Deeya Agrotech Private Limited

Rahul Agritech LLP

. CK Cotspin Private Limited

CK Odls Private Limitad

Mimar Diagnostic Services Private Limited
Shree Vasudeo Industries (Partnarship Firm)
. Shree Krishna Commercial Co,

10. Marendra Internaticnal LLP

11.5hraa Balaji Industries

b

|

-
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In accordance with the provisions on Seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Direclors of the Company has consbluled a CSR Commilles.
The details of C5R Aclivilles are as lollows::

[2 in Lakhs]
Sna. Particulars Az al Az al
' 31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
1 Brought forward of amount spent beyord the statutory requirement 037 -
2 (Gfoss amounl reguired 1o ba spant by [he company duting the vear as per
Companies Act, 2013 16,28 778
3 Amount spent by the company during the yaar on the following:
(&) Construction ! Acgquisition of any asset . -
{b) Prameting Health Care ncliding Preventive Health Care and Sanitization 18,80 4.24
() Tres Flantation Drive - 185
{df) Covid-19 relief related activities 1,72 183
Taolal (3) 18.52 212
4 Closing amount yel to be spent .
5 Carry forward of amount spent beyond the statutory requirement 260 037
& Shortfall at the end of the year - -
7 Total of Previous Year Shoslfalls - -
] Reasons for Shortfalls Mat Applicable Hat Applicable
Motbe: Mo CER amount has been paid to any related party of the Company.

NOTE - 44 - OTHER NOTES

1 Prelerantal Allotment

Dwring the fnancial year 2020-21, the Company has, on a preferential basis, isswed 28, 75,000 (Tweanly Eighl Lakhs Sevenly Five Thousamnd)
equily shares of lzce value of Rs. 10 each, fully pasd up at a price-of Rs. 13.90 per share, aggregaling o Rs. 398,63 Lakhs to Shn Sangay Kumar

Agrawal and Smil Rashmi Devi Agrawal { Promolers of Company).

2  Dhsdosure on Financial Instrumenls

ia) All tha Financial inslruments are inilially recognized and subsequently re-measured al fair value as described below:
{1 The lair value ol Forwand Foreign Exchange conlracls is delermined wsing lorward excchange rales al the balance sheel
e
{ii} All foreign currency denominaled assels and Fabilities are anslated using exchange rale al reporing date. Fair Value
maasuramenl hisrarchy:
[ in Lakhs]
Parficutars As at 315t March, 2022 As al 315t March, 2021
Carrying Value Fair Vabus Carrying Valus Fair Valus
i, Financial Assets
I |AtAmortized Cosl
{i}| Investmants in Jointly Controlled Entity ) - - -
{ii}| Trade Receivables 4,484.73 A AB4. T3 442680 4,436 B0
{idl)| Cash & Cash Eguivalents including
Cher Bank Balances 1.011.28 1.041.28 g37.52 g3r.59
{iw)| Loans 564,97 S84 57 58768 BHT 68
I At FYTPL
{i}| Invesimeanis - - - -
1l AL FNTOCE
{i}| Invesiments in Wholly Owned Subsidiary 116213 116213 1,162.13 116213

|

132 )
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Parllculars As al 31el Mafch, 2022 Az al 31st March, 2021
Camying \Valus Fair Valus Carrying Value Fair Valus

B. Financial Liabilities
{i}| Barrowings 2468963 246943 277110 277110
(i) Lease Liabilites 131218 1.312.18 . -
(i#1}| Trade Payahlss 4,592, 36 4,592.36 432973 432873
{iw})| Char Financial Ligbilities 0.28 033 07 087
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Fomeign Curmenicy Risk:

The Company underlakes rmnsackons denominaled in foreign cwmency (mainly US Dollar) wihich is subject Lo the nsk of exchange rate flucluabions.
Financial a=sels and liabilities denominated in foreign curmency, inciuding the Companyis net investments n foreign opeations (with a lunclional currency
other than Indian Rupee), are also subject lo minslalement risks.

The carmying amoun of lorelgn currency denominaled fnancal assels and Eabilies including denvalive conlracts, are as lollows:

[% in Lakhs]
: 313t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Uso Ush
Financial Assets 1&52.081 12,562,051
Firarcial Liabifilies - -
Mat Exposure 12,52,051 12,552,051

The company has exemised the oplion of carrying the Imvestmenis in is subsidiares al ils f&ir value on the dale ol lensibion. Conseguenlly, lhere is
decreasea in Non Cumenl investmenis by T 3, 194 lakhs on that dale.

Sensilivity analysis ol 1% change in exchange rale al the end ol reporling penod nel of hedges

(c) Fomign Curency Sensitivily
For every percenlage point change n the underlying exchange rale of lhe outslanding foregn cumency denominaled assels and kabidies, mcluding
denvalive. confracts, holding all olher vanables constanl, the profil belfore lax for the year ended 31st March, 2022 would change by 12520.51 USD
[Previows Year 12520 51 USD]. However, the managemant of the Company does not expects its foreign currency denominaled financial assals o malure
wilhin a period of five yeans from the end of the year under review.

(d) Interes Rete Risk
Interesl rale sk is he nsk thal the fulure cash liow wilh respect o inleresl paymants on borrowing will fuciuale because ol changs in marke! inleresi rales.
The company's exposurs io the risk ol changes in markel inleresl rates relales prmarily 1o the Company’s long-term debt obligation with floating inbenest
rates.

{e] Interes] Rale Senslvily
Interest mle sk is measured by wang the cash low sensilivity for changes in variable interes! rales. Any movemeanl in the reference rsles could have an
impaclon the Companyis cash flows as well as cosls.
Tha Company is subjec o varable inlerest ales on some of ils inleres] bearing abilies. The Companyis inlerest rale exposune s mainty relaled o debt
obligalions. Tha Company also uses a mix ol inlerest mle sensitive financial instruments o manage the quidity and fund requirements for ifs day lo day
operatons ke shorl term loans.
As al March 31, 2022, inancial kability of T 72260 lakhs was subjecl lo vanable inleresl mies. Increasadecresasa of 100 basis poinds in interss] rales at the
balance sheel date would resull in decreasefincraase in profitf{loss) belore lzx of T 5.30 Lakhs for the year endod March 31, 2022,
The model assumes thal inleresl mle changes are inslantaneous parallel shills in the yield curve. Although some a=sels and liabililies may have similar
malurilies or perods 1o re-pricing, lhese may nol react comespondingly fo changes in markel inlerest rales. Also, lhe interesi rales on some lypes of assels
and labilities may llucluate with changes in markel inleresi mles, while inlerest rales on other lypes of assels may change with a lag.
The risk eslimales provided assume a paraliel shill of 100 basis poinks inleres! rale across all yield curves. This calculalion also assumes that the change
occurs al the balance sheel dale and has been calculaled based on risk exposures oulslanding as al thal dale. The peniod end balances ara nol necessarity
represanialive of the average debt oulsianding during lhe penod.
{MNole: The impact is indicaled on he profilf{loss ) betore lax basis).

M Commodily Price Risk
Commuodity price risk arses due o Tuctuation in prices of raw malenal. The company hes a nsk management reme work aimed al prudently manageng Lhe
risk arising from the volafilily in raw maledal prices and reighl cosls. The company™s commodity risk is managed cenlrally throwgh well-established frading
operalions and control processes. In accordance with the risk manageament policy, the Company caralully calibrales the Uming and the quanlily of purchase

{o) CrediRisk
Credil nsk is the nsk thal a cuslomer or counlerparty to a inancial instrument Tas lo perform or pay the amownts due cawsing financal loss o lhe compamy.
Credil nsk anses mainly from the oulslanding receivables from cuslomers. The company has a prudent and conservalive process for managing its credil
risk anising in lhe course of ils business aclivilies. The credil rafingsimarket sianding of Lhe customers are evaluated ona regular basis.

"
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() Liguidily Risk

Liquadily resk anses Irom the Company's mabdity lo mesl s cash low cormmilments on time. Prodent quedily nsk management implies mamizanmg
sufficient slock of cash and markelable secunbies . The Company mainlains adequals cash and cash equivalents along wilh the need based credil limils o
meael tha iquidity needs.

{ii HedgeAccounling
The Company has established risk managemenl policies lo hedge Lhe volaliity arising from exchange rafs luciuations in respect of firm cormmitmenls and
highly probable forecasl lransaclions, through foreign exchange forward and oplions conlracts. The proporfion of forecasl ransaclions lhal are o be
hedged is decided based on the size ol the furecasl irensacton and markel condiions. As the counterpary for such fransactions ame highly raled banks, lhe
rek of their non-performance is considered Lo be msigmificant.
The Company uses denvalives o hedge ils exposure o changes in movemant in foreign curmency. Where such dervalives are not designaled under hedge
accounting, changes in Lhe {zir value of such bedges are recognised in Lhe Siatement of Profil and Loss.
Tha Company may also designals cerain hedges, usually for large trensaclions, as a cash flow hedge under hedge accounting, with the objective of
shielding the exposure from varabilily in cash flows. The currency, amounl and lenure ol such hedges are genemlly malched o the underlying
lransacbon(s). Changoes in the fairvalue of e effeclive portion of cash Now hedges are meocognised as cash low hedging resene in Other Comprehbensive
Income. While the probability of such hedges becoming inefleciive is very low, lhe ineffective porfion, if any, is immedialaly mcognised in lhe Sialemeant of
Profil and Loss.
Tha management of the Company does nol expects ils foreign currency denominaled financial assels lo malune within a period of ive years Irom the end of
lhe year under review and therefore, il has nol entered inlo any hedging contracls for the same.

NOTE-45- ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

(i} Dwring lhe fnancial year 2021-22, no proceeding has been iniliated or pending againsl the company for holding any benami properly under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition)) Acl, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rukes made lhereunder.

(b} The Company has led guarizedy relums or stalements with the banks in lieu of sanclioned working capilal [acilibes, which are in agreemenl with the
books of sccount olher than hose as sel oul below:

A. Difference in Invenlonias

[T in Lakhs]
Quarter Endsd ‘Value as per Books | Value as per Difference | Reason for Variance
Quarterfy
Statemants
30th June, 2021 4499.79 4199 .88 30013 Primarily. due o non inekigion: of Cartalr
30th September, 2021 5262.24 488015 37200 yoms of inventary while furnishing the
315t December, 2021 6321.80 5803.41 518.39) oiatement to the Bank, with the result that
15t I'-"Inrch, 2022 6395.40 601072 384,68 |l'I".I'E'I'I‘tGF‘gI' Statements submitted to the
banks contained a lesser value than the
aciual Invantory held
iFf: in Trade Receivabl
[¥ in Lakhs]
Ciuarter Ended Walue a5 per Books Value as per Difference | Reason for Variance
Quarterly
Slataments
A0k Jume, 2021 5095 97 5031.80 6417 Primarily, due lo non incusken of Cerlain
30th Septernber, 2021 HH5T 12 5541.95 15.17| Deblors whike furnishing the statemant to
31st December, 2021 5603,06 543063 172,43 the Bank
31st March, 2022 448473 9067 .48 {582.73)| Primarily, due to non consideration of Bad
[abis figures while furnishing the statement
to tha Bank
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(@)} Thecompany isnol declared a willul defaullar by any bank or financial insfitulion or any olher lender.

(v} The company has nol entered inlo any matedal rmensaction with the companies struck-ofl under 5. 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Acl, 1856 during the year.

(v} The Company does nol have any charges or salislacion which is yel o ba regestenad with ROC beyorsd the sialutory penod.

{vi) The company has complied with e number of layers prescribed under clause [87) of section 2 of the Acl read with Companies (Resinclon on number of
Layers} Rules, 2007

{va} The company has nol applied forany Scheme of Armangemants in lerms of Seclions 230 o 237 ol lhe Companies Acl, 2013,

(viti}) Mo fursds have been advanced or loaned or invested [either from bormowed funds or sham premiem or 2ny olher spurces or kind of funds) by the Company
toor in any olher parsonis ] or enlilyfies ), including foreign enliies (iinlermedianes”) wilh the understanding, whether recorded inowribing or olbensese_ that
lhe Intlermediary shall lend or invesl in parly idenlified by or on behalf of the Company (Ulimals Beneficiares). The Company has nol received amy fund
lrom any parly(s) (Fundirng Pary) wilh lhe underslanding thal the Company shall whalher, direclly or indirectly lend or invesl in olher persoms or enlifies
idenlified by or on behall of the Company (iUlimale Benefciaries™ ) or provide any guaraniee, securnly or the liks on behalf of the Uitimate Benalicianes.

{iz) The Company has no such transaclion which is nol recorded in the books ol accounts thal has been surmendened or disclosed as income during The yearin
the lax assessmants urnder the Income-lax Acl, 1961 (such as. search or survey or anyolher relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1861).

() The company has nol ireded or invested in Cryplo Currency or Vidual Currency during Lhe Financial Year 2021-22.

(xi) Disclosure relating to various ratios
[% in Lakhs]
=nn. Particulars . Asdl As al _ % ol Changes Eamarks
31zt March, 2022 | Mat March, 2009 carmpatad 1o {mianidatary |
preceding year \ariatione=25%5)
ta}  Current Ratio {in times}
[Current Assets { Current Liabilities)]
Currant Asssts 14,069.13 14.807.42
Current Liakilities B.922.93 4.242.62 Mot Applicabls
Current Ratio 203 1.80 13.05%
b} i o {in fi
[Totat Dabts { Total Equity |
Total Debts 246983 27710
[Mon Cumrent Borrowings+Cument Bormowings]
Total Equily 1854140 | 1740347 Net /\gipdlcplole
Debt Equity Ratia 013 0.16 [17.78%)
{eh Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in limes}
[Eamings before Interast & Taw/ Dabt Service)
Earnlngs before Interast & Tax 2 855 44 2389 78
[Profit bedna Tax + Finance Costs]
Detbt Service 1,451.98 1,166,52 )
|Financeosts+SchadutedprincipalrepaymentaMan-CumeniBarmawings Mot Applicabls
{Gurran Mafuriies of Long Term Debts of prevous. weer] + principal
repayment of Lease Labditas]
Debt Service Ratio 1.97 205 {4.00%])
1d) urn on Equi io {in percan
[Prafit after Tax / Average Total Equity]
Prafit after Tax 1,460.91 1.123.09
Average Total Equity 17,622 14 16,340.36 ;
[{Opening Total Equity+Closing Total Equityi2] ok Applicakie
Retum on Equity Ratio 8.20% 6.87% 12.26%




TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (14" Annual Report 2021-2022 ::'
_ ___[?in Lakhs]
iS00 Pariculars Agat A ¥ af Changes Rermarks
318 March, 2022 | 3151 March, 2021 compared to {mandatory if
praceding yes aarlatan=>26% )
(=] Inventory Turnover Ratio (in fimes)
[Salz of Products [ Average Inveniory]
Sale of Products £5. 062 05 42 16567 Primarily, dus to
Avarage inventory 0,8978.47 545311 increase in demand
[[Opaning Inventary+Closing Inventony WZ] of the products sokd
Inventory Turmaver Ratio 9.36 6.53 #3,26%| by the Company
if Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times)
[Turnaver! Average Trade Receivables)
Turnaver (Revenus fram Operations) 56,441,553 | 4269449 {:;':Dt'fem;f;:‘:;tfr
Average Trade Recevahles & 455,77 442354 e c:?m n aﬂ-clhr
[iDpening Trade Raceivables + Glosing Trade Receivables)i2] 20 O ipam*
Trade Receivable Turnaver Ratio 1267 9.65 gy ziuy| MARAZ N mover
(el Trade Payable Turnover Ratio {in limas)]
[Turnaves Average Trade Payables]
Due to faster
Tumover [Revenus fram Operations) 56,441.53 42 694 .49 payments to the
Average Trads Payables 4 .461.05 450431 creditors by the
[[Opening Trade Payaties + Cioslng Trade Payabisalz) Company and
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 1285 9458 33.48%| Increase i lurnover
(f)
[Turnover / Working Capital)
Turnover (Revenue rom Operations) 56.441.53 42 694 49 NI
Working Capital 892084 | 1212230 g i s
[Cumrent Assets (-} Cumrenl Liabilitias]
Met Capital Tumover Ratio 5,33 3.52 78.64%
(1 Met Profit Ratio {in parce
[Profit after Tax { Tumiover]
Profit after Tax 1,460,941 1,123.08
Tumaver (Revenue from Operations) 56.441.53 42694 49 Met Applicabla
Met Profit Ratio 2.50% 2.63% [1.80%)
(i Refum on Capital Employed (in percaniage)
[Eamings Before Inierest & Taxes! Capital Employed]
Earnings Before Inferest & Taxes 286544 238878
[Profit befere Tax + Finance Casts)] :
Capital Employed 2101083 | 1987437 Hiak Al leakiie
[Tetal Equity + Tetal Borrowings|
Raturn on Capital Employed 13.59% 12.02% 13.02%
ik} Return on Investment Ratio (in percentage)
[Met Gain on nvestmant/ Investmant]
Mat Gain on Investmant - -
Irnvestrent 116213 116213
Return of Investment Ratio z i = Mot Applicable
|For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of Board
|Chartered Accountants
|ICAl Finm Regestration Mo. 0041860
fbawndm Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
|Partner Managing Director Whola Time Director cum CFC
El'-lamhershi: Mo, 072057 DN ; 00316242 DM ; 02066743
HNCAL UDIN: 2207B0&TANITSFGO02
Mahit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava

i1nrdnre., May 28th, 2022

Chied Exacutive Officer
Burhanpur, May 26, 2022

Company Secralary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS. REPORT

To

The Members,

TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Texmo Pipes And
Products Limited (.the Parent Company.) and its subsidiary (Parent Company and its subsidiary
together referred to as .the Group. ), which comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31st, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consoclidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as the .Consolidated financial statements. ).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of report of other audilors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiary as was audited by other auditors, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give
the informalion required by the Companies Act, 2013 (.the Acl.) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformily with the accounling principles generally accepled in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31st, 2022, of its consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Acl. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors.
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidaled Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of report
of the other auditors referred to in the Other Maller section below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matlers were
addressed in the context of our audil of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matlers to be communicated in our
report
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Description of Key Audit Matters
S.No. | Key Audit Matters | How was the matter addressed in our audit

The Company has uncertain tax matters
pending Titigations under direct tax and
variows indirect tax laws. The litigation
invelves significant judpement to
determine the possible outcome based on
which accounting lreatment is given Lo
the disputed amount.

Given the magmitisde of potential outflow
of economic resources and uncertmnty of
podential culcome, uncertain ax
positions are considered o be key andit

Our awdit procedures included, a - mong others, the
following:

= Obtined details of uncertain tax position and
pamned understaniding thereof!

« Obtained details of tax assessments and also

= Along  with our infermal Tax experts, read and
analysed relevant comimumication wit h the
authoritics;

* Evaluated advice obtained by the managenent
from legal consultants on possible outcome of the

mafiers.
[Refer Mote 38 to the
financial statements. |

litigation;

= Dhscussed with senior management and cvaluated
manapement’s assumpiions regarding provisions
made or reflected as contingent habilities;

= Assessed whether the disclosures for uncertain tax
positions are in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 37 on “Provisions, Conbingent Liabilities
amd Contingeni Asscis™.

Infermation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Parent Company's managemenl and Board of Direclors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual
report, bul does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements , Slandalone Financial
Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon.

QOur opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Consolidated

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required o report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit! loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes mainlenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgmenis and
estimales thal are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adeguale internal financial controls, that were operating eflectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and presenlation of the
Consolidated financial statement thal give a true and fair view and are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consoclidated financial statements, lhe respective Management and Board of

"
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Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each
company lo conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related lo going concern
and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Direclors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operalions, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

The respeclive Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporling process of each company.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are lo oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the Consolidated financial
siatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o
issue an auditor's reporl thal includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always delect
amaterial misstatement when it exists

Misslatementis can arise from fraud or emor and are considered matenal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Consolidaled financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and oblain audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of nol detecling a material misstatement resulling from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inlentional omissions,
misrepresentalions, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal conlrol relevant to the audit in order lo design audil
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumslances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference o Consolidaled financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness ol such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and lhe reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements made
by the Management and Board of Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal
uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company o cease fo
continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidaled financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentalion.

Oblain sufficienl appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entilies
and business aclivities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or
business activities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been
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audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audilts carried oul by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audil opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misslatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements thal,
individually or in aggregate, makes il probable thal the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstalemenls in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with lthose charged with governance of the Parent Company of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and {o communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govermance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the cumrent
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did nol carry out the audit of the financial statements of one subsidiary company, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 7557 27 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Rs_ Nil |
total net loss after tax of Rs. 4.04 Lakhs, total comprehensive income of Rs. Nil and net cash outflows
of Rs. 1.09 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022. These financial statemenls have been audited
by the other auditors whose reporl has been fumished o us by the management, and in our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the
Act, in sofar as it relales to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
requirements below, is nol modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the report of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, as per the information and
explanation provided to us by the managemenl of the Parent Company, we report that the
auditors of lhe subsidiary company localed outside India, included in the consolidated financial
statements, has not issued any reporl under the alforesaid Order, therefore, the clause (xxi) of
the aforesaid order is nol applicable.

2. As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Acl, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
report of other auditors on separale financial statements of subsidiary, referred in the Other
Matters paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
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consolidated inancial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as il appears from
our examination of lhose books and the reporis of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Consolidaled Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows deali with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial stalemenls;

(d}) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Acl.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent
Company as on March 31st, 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Parent Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company
incorporated outside India, none of the directors of the Group Company is disqualified as
on March 31st, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

(f With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporling and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure-

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been
paid/provided by the Parenl Company lo ils directors in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

{h} With respect to the other mallers to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and lo the besl of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary as noted in the "Other Matter” paragraph:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
as al 31 March 2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer
Note - 38 to the Consolidated financial statements.

{ii) The Group did not have any malerial foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
during the year ended 31* March, 2022.

(iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

{iv) (a) The Parent Company’s management has represented that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Parenl company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whelher recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indireclly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoewver by or on behalf
of the Parent company ("Ullimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Parent Company's management has represented, thal, to the best
of its knowiedge and belief, no funds have been received by the Parent
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
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or otherwise, thal the company shall, whether, direclly or indirectly, lend
orinveslin other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimale Beneficiaries”) or provide

any guaranitee, securilty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audil procedures that we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us lo believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under {a} and (b) above, contain any
material missiatement.

(v)  The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
3. Withrespect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Parent Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Acl. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the
limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Charlered Accountants

ICAlI Firm Registration Mo. : 004186C
Place :Indore

Dated : May 26th, 2022
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. - 078057
ICAI UDIN: 22078057ANIUWA1319

[ 142 ) J




RTINS UMY (14" Annual Report 20212022 )

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Referred lo in Paragraph 1(1), under 'Reporl on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’section
of the Independent Auditors’ Reporl of even dale lo the members of Texmo Pipes and Products
Limited on the Consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 317, 2022, we
repori that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TEXMO PIPES AND
PRODUCTS LIMITED ("the Company or the Parent Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the Consclidated financial statements of the Parent Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Parent Company's managemenl is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporling issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounlants of India
('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementalion and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence o company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and complelenass of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audil in-accordance with lhe Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed lo be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Owur audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
linancial controls system over financial reporling and their operating effecliveness. Our audit of internal
linancial conlrols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thal a material weakness exists, and lesting and
evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on lhe assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that lhe audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these Consolidated linancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporling is a process designed to provide
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reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporling includes those policies and procedures thal
(1) periain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable delail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance thal
transactions are recorded as necessary lo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizalions of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaterments due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls syslem
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effeclively as al 31st March, 2022, based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
esiablished by lhe Parenl Company considering the essenlial components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Charlered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. : 004186C
Place : Indore
Dated : May 26th, 2022
Devendra Bansal
Partner
Membership No. : 078057

[CAI UDIN: 22078057 ANIUWA1319
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022
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i)

. % in Lakhs|
Particulars Note No. As al A al
st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
A ASSETS
{11 |NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 12.980.06 11,054 12
(b} Right-of-Uise Assels 3 1.252.17 -
{c) Capital Work-In-Progress 4 .84 065
{d} Invesirmeant Proparly 5 38.44 3844
(&) Intangible Assets Other than Goodwill G ™1 8.78
1} Fimancial Assets
i) Trade Receivables 7 4,1783.44 4,052.50

ii} Othar Financial Assais B 2017 G58.29
(g} Other Non-Current Asssls g 3,168.98 294747
TOTAL MON-CURRENT ASSETS (1 22,353.20 18.801.25

2] CURRENT ASSETS
(&) Invanlores 10 6,385.40 5.561.54
(b} Financial Assets
i) Trade Receivables 11 4.484.73 4.4246.80

if) Cash and Cash Equivalants 12 14.57 11.59

iiij Bank Balances ather than cash and cash equivalants 13 956.89 827.23
{e) Other Current Assats 14 2,131.22 384770
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS i2) 14,022 81 14,774.85
TOTAL ASSETS {1 +2} 36,376.01 33,576.10

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a} Equity Share Capital 15 2,9219.50 | 281950
(B} Other Erguity 16 21,392.20 19, 720.04
TOTALEQUITY 24,311.70 22 548,54
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 (Contd....... )

[ In Lakhs]
Particulars Note Na. A5 at A at
Fst March, 2022 | 3181 March, 2021
LIABILITIES
(1 |NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} Financial Liabilitizs
i) Borrowings 17 1.747.22 | 550,50
i} Lease Liabilities 18 1.215.08 | -
(b} Deferred Tax Liahilities (Net) 19 1,624 .88 1,650.69
{c) Othar Mon-Current Liabilities 20 581.10 43493
TOTAL NOMN-CURREMNT LIABILITIES {1 5,138.29 288512
2) |CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} Financial Liabditizs
I} Borrawings 1 22 E0 | 248055
i} Leaze Liabilities 22 a7.09 | -
ii} Trade Payables 23
~Total sulstanding dues of micro anterprises & small enterprses: and 843.59 | 177.64
~Tedal culstanding dues of creddons ather than micro anbarprses &
small enterprises 3.748.77 4152.09
) Other Financial Liabilities 24 0.38 Q.67
(i) Other Current Liabiiities 25 1.166.11 1.223.76
{=) Provisions 26 22253 272.35
(d) Current Tax Liabilitias (Net) 124.85 135.35
TOTAL CURBENT LIABILITIES £ 5,926.02 8,242 44
TOTAL LIBRILITIES (1 + 2] 12,064.31 10,927 .56
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 36,376.01 33,576.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consaolidated Financial Stataments

In terma of cur report of even date attached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Charlered Accountants
ICAI Firm Ragistration Mo 004186C

Devendra Bansal

Partriar

Mambership Na. 078057

IGAL UIDIN: 22078057 ANIUWATI1S

Indore, May 26th, 2022

|

Fer and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Kurmnar Agrawal
Managing Director
DIM : 1318240

Mahit Agrawal
Chiet Executive Officer

Burhanpur, May 26th, 222

Vijay Prasad Pappu

Whole Time Diractor cum CFO

DI = B2086748

Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secretary

-

i)
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TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022
[Z in Lakhs]
Particulars Note Mo, ‘Yaar ended ‘Year ended
31st March, 2022 Jist March, 2021
I Walue of Sales 9 152 30 50,108.26
I Less: GET on Valus of Sales (12.710.77) (TA137T)
i Revenue from Cperations 27 S6,441,52 42,694 48
I Crther Income 28 101,67 B7.55
Vo |TOTAL INCOME (il + I¥) 56,543.19 42.782.03
vl EXPEMSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 28 41,054 B2 31,962 04
Purchases of Stock-In-Trade a0 326602 1.723.83
Changes in Invenicres of Finshed Goods, Stock-In-Trade and
WorksIn-Progress # (1.245.79) (530.53)
Employes Benefits Expense 32 1,781.67 1,384, 77
Finance Costs 33 BARE.60 S48 90
Depreciation and Amortization Expenss 319.30 B25.68
Hhar Expenses 34 8.050.58 h 26562
T Rl b tr e Thr, 3
TOTAL EXPENSES (V1) 54,612.18 41,380.90
VIl | Profil before exceplional llems and Lax (V-V]) 1,831.02 140113
Vil |Exceptlonal tems - -
| Profit befare s (VI 1,931.02 1,401.13
X Tax Expensa:
(1} Gurrant Tax 525.00 370.00
(2} Shorl{Excess) Tax Provision for earller years 17.74 {33.69)
[3) Deferred Tax (34.81) {1860}
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE (X} 507.93 31771
Xl Profit for the year (1X-X} 1,423.09 1,083.42
Xl Cther Comprehensive Income 35
A (i} Nems that will nel be mclassified subssquendly to profil or loss 11.67 34,18
(i} Income tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassified subsequanty
to profit or loas - -
B {1y Nerms (Rl will be reclassiied subsequently to prafit or loss 23197 (184.39)
(i} Income tax relating to lkams that will be reclassified subsequeantly
to profit or loss - -
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (X1 243.64 {150.21)
pAll TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR [XI+XII] 1,666.73 83321
X |Earnings Per Equity Share 36
Bagic (1) 4.87 188
Dibuted (3) q.87 3.88

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the Conzolidated Financial Statemenis

In lerms of cur repor of sven dale allached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountanis
ICAl Firm Registration Mo 0041860

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
Partner Managing Director
Membership Mo, 078057 DN 00316245
1CAL LIDIN: 22078057 ANILINAT1S

Mahit Agrawal

Chief Executiva Officer

Indore, May 26th, 2022
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Burhanpur, May 26ih, 2022

Vijay Prasad Pappu

Whole Time Director cum CFO

DiN : 02066748

Ajay Shrivastava
Company Secratary

-
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the v

ear ended 31" March, 2022

[Z in Lakhs]
Zno. |Pariculars Year ended Year ended
315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profif before Tax 1,831.02 140113
Adjustmants for -
Depreciation and Amortization Expenss 819.29 B25.68
Other Finance Costs B22.B4 345.90
Interest on Lease Liabilities 63.95 -
Bad Dehts 556.10 146.09
Frovision for Impairmsnt of Debters 67,04 (18,09)
Interest Incoms (BT E1) (63.30)
Met Lossi{Gain) on Sale of Assets {1.21) 4.26
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 11.67 34.18
Exchangs Difference on Translation of Financial Staterments 23147 251378 [184.39) 149542
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 4.444 77 2,896.55
Mot chandge In:
Inventorias (B33.88) 1,783.14
Trade Receivables (BE1.08) [135.71)
Othar Financial Assels [B0.86) [44.94)
Other Cumrent Assets 1,698.08 {1,558 .62)
Financial Liakdlities 262,64 (349 16)
Othar Current Liabilities [157.65) 22225
Short Term Provisions [40.82) 168.65 130,20 47,15
Cash generated from/ jused in) Operations 4. 613.42 2,943,70
Direct Taxes Paid {Net} (55315} {210.50)
Net Cash generated from! (used in) Operating Activities 4,060.28 273320
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles {2,630.32) {259.10)
Sale Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment 26,95 10.62
Movement in Leng Term Advances 1148.81) 130.85
Movement in Deposits (221.92) 39.23
Inlerest Received 57.61 6330
[Net Cash Eannra't;:?fmml' {used in) Investing Activities [?E.j‘?jﬁ.ﬂﬂ} tZETfFA'Tj.
C. OW FRON
Proceeds from Bsue of Preferential Equity Shares - 399.63
{RepaymentyProceeds of Long-term Barrowings 1,155.86 1a6.15)
{Repayment)/Proceads from Shart lerm Barrowings {1,457 .98) [2.351.16)
{Repayment)Proceads of Other Non Current Borrowings 11617 4513
(RepaymentyProcesads of Other Current Financial Liabifiies {0.249) 224 60
Payment of Lease Liabilites including Interest theraon {12330} -
Finance Cosis (B22.64) {945.90)
MNet Cash generated from/ (used in} Financing Activities {1:132.19) (2,726,594,

|

150

-

i)

)




(__14" Annual Report 2021-2022

TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31* March, 2022 (Contd ... )

IZ ini Lakhs]
Sno. [Particulars ~ Year ended Yearended

318t March, 20; 318t March, 202 .
HET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C] 298 (18.759)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11.59 034
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 14,57 11.59
Components of cash and cash equivalents
as at the year end :
Balance with Banks in Currenl Acsounls 572 0.11
Cazh on Hand B.85 1148
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14.57 11.59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consalidated Financial Statements
In terms of our report of even daie attached
For Anil Kamal Garg & Company

Charlered Accounfanis
1CAl Firm Registration Mo, 00418606

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors

Vijay Prasad Pappu

Whala Teme Director cum CFO

DM - D20GET43

Ajay Shrivastavs
Company Secretary

-

)

Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal
Partriar Managing Director
Membership Mo, OTBOST DIN : 00316248
ICAD UDIN: 22078057 ANILWA 1319

Mahit Agrawal

GChief Executive Cfficer
Indora, May 26th, 2022 Burhanpur, May 26th, 2022

| { 151 )




RTINS UMY (14" Annual Report 20212022 )

TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2022

[¥ inlakhs unless specified olherwise]

NOTE -1A - GROUP OVERVIEW

1A.1  Texmo Pipes and Products Limited ("the Parent Company”) was formed as a Parinership Firm
by the name M/s Shree Mohit Industries on 13th May 19959 and was subsequently converted into
Public Limited Company under Part IX of the Companies Act, 1956 under lhe name of Texmo
Pipes and Producls Limited having Certificate of Incorporation dated 3rd July 2008. The Parent
Company's shares are listed with the National Stock Exchange [NSE] and Bombay Stock
Exchange [BSE]. The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 88, Bahadarpur Road,
Burhanpur {(M.P.) 450331. The Parent Company is principally engaged in manufacturing and
trading of PVC, HDPE, SWR, Sprinkler, Drip, CPVC Pipes and Fittings.

1A.2 Tapli Pipes & Products Limited FZE is a limited liability establishment, registered in Hamriyah
Free Zone as a free zone establishment with status (FZE) under Commercial License No. 7589
incorporated on March 13, 2011, issued by Hamriyah Free Zone Authority, Sharjah, U.AE. The
registered office of the establishmenl is ELOB Office No. E2-113F-43, PO. Box 49509,
Hamryah Free Zone, Sharjah, United Arab Emirales. The establishmenl is engaged in the
business of General Trading.

1A.3  TaptiPipes & Products Limited FZE is the Parent Company's wholly owned foreign subsidiary.

1A4 The Parenl Company and it's wholly owned foreign subsidiary are collectively referred lo as
"Group”.

NOTE-1B - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

iB.1 Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant o Section
133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 {"Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Acl.

Accordingly, the Parent Company has prepared these Consolidated Financial Statements which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss {(including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2022, and accounting policies and other explanatory informalion
(logether hereinafter referred lo as "the Financial Stalements’).

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2022 were

authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May 26th, 2022,
1B.2 Basis Of Consolidation

The financial stalements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary are combined on aline by line

basis by adding together like itemns of assets, liabiliies, equity, incomes, expenses and cash
flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

Profits or losses resulling from intra-group transaclions thal are recognised in assels, such as
inventory and properly, plant & equipment, are eliminated in full.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated al the average rale prevailing
during the year. All assets and liabilities are converled at rates prevailing at the end of the year.
Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the Exchange difference on
translation of Financial Statements of Foreign Operatlions Reserve. [Refer Note 16]

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parentis investment in each subsidiary and the
parentis portion of equity of subsidiary.

The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiary and the carrying

"
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amount of its assets less liabilities as on the date of disposal is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss being the profit or loss on disposal of invesiment in subsidiary.

Mon Controlling Interestis share of net assels of consolidated subsidiary is identified and
presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheel separate from liabilities and the equity of the
Parent Company's shareholders.

The Parent Company accounts for its share of post acquisition changes in net assels of
associates and joint ventures, after eliminating unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Parent Company and its associates to the extent of its share, through
its Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent such change is attributable to the
associatesi Statement of Profit and Loss and through its reserves for the balance based on
available information.

1iB.3 Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
historical cosl convention and on-accrual method of accounting, except for the following assels
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments);
- Defined benefit plans - plan assels; and
- Assels Held for Sale

1B4 Functional and Presentation Currency

These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Parent Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakh,
unless otherwise indicated.

1B.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1B.5.1 Property, Plantand Equipment (PPE)

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade
discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cost directly
attributable to bringing the assels to its working condition for its intended use, net
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable to the assets.

(b) Subsequent cosls are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a
separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable lhat fulure economic benefils
associated with the itemn will flow to the enlity and the cost can be measured reliably. In
the carrying amount of an item of PPE, the cost ol replacing the part of such an item is
recognized when that cosl is incurred if the recognition criterias are mel. The carrying
amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the
derecognition principles.

(c) Expenses incurred in relation to a project, net of income eamed during the project

development stage prior lo its intended use, are considered as Pre - Operative
Expenses and are disclosed under "Capital Work - in- Progress'.

(d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using siraight line method,
except on Freehold Land, on which no depreciation is provided. Depreciation provided is
based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act,
2013 . If, significant parls of an item of Property, Planl and Equipment have different
useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items (major
components) of Property, Plant and Equipment. In respecl of the Dies and Moulds, the
useful life is estimalted at 12 years, which is different from the prescribed life of 8 years
under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013

I L 153 ) |
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(e) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, planl and
equipment are reviewed al each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

(N Gains or losses arising from derecognilion of a property, plant and equipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profil and Loss when the assel is
derecognized.

(g) Spare parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item. The
carrying amount of those spare parts that are replaced is derecognized when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal. Other machinery
spares are lrealed as istores & spares” forming part of the inventory.

1B.5.2 Leases
The Group as alessee

{a) The Groupis lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for land. The Group
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. Acontract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

(i} the conftract involves the use of an idenlified asset;

(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefils from use of the assel
through the period of the lease; and

(iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

(b) Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease lerm as the non-cancellable period of
a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such
oplion is reasonably cerlain. The Group makes an assessment on the expecled lease
term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whelher it is reasonably cerlain
that any options to extend or lerminale the contracl will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvemenls
underiaken over the lease term, costs relating lo the termination of the lease and the
imparlance of the underlying assel to Group operations taking into account the location
of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable altemnatives. The lease term in
future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Group has
concluded thal no changes are required lo lease period relaling to the existing lease
contracts.

(c) At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a Right-of-Use (ROU)
asset and a comesponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for short term leases and low value leases. For these short term and low-
value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(d) The lease arrangements includes the oplions lo extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these oplions when it is
reasonably cerlain that they will be exercised.

(e) The ROU assets are initially recognized at cosl, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease paymenis made at or prior lo the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

(Fy ROU assets are deprecialed from the commencement date on a straighline basis over
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the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale thal
their carrying amounls may nol be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment lesling,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost lo sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asselt does not generale cash
flows thal are largely independent of those from other assels. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
assetbelongs.

{g) The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cosl at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
cormesponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination optlion.

(h) Lease liability and ROU assels have been separalely presented in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet and lease paymenls have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Group as alessor

{a) The Group has not entered into any lease contract during the year in the capacity of
"Lessor”.

Adoptionof Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (iMCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Slandards) Second Amendment
Rules, has nolified Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the exisling lease standard, Ind AS 17
Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sels oul the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors Itintroduces a
single, on-balance sheel lease accounting model for lessees.

The Group has entered into six lease agreements, in earlier years, all expiring in the financial
year 2021-22. Looking to the shori-term unexpired period of the lease agreements as on the
date of applicability of Ind AS 116 Leases, the group has classified such leases as 'Short Term
Leases' and comespondingly, has claimed the exemption benefit under paragraph 5{a) of Ind AS
116 Leases. Accordingly, the group has recognised the lease payments associated with those
leases as an operating expense.

1B.5.3 Capital Work-in-Progress
{a) Expenditure incurred on assels under construction (including a project) is carried al cost
under 'Capital Work-in-Progress'. Such costs comprises purchase price of assel
including import dulies and non-refundable taxes and cosls that are directly atiributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner inlended by managemenl and after deducting trade discounts
and rebates.

{b) Cost directly attributable to projects under construction include costs of employee
benefits, expendilure in relation to survey and investigation activities of the projects, cost
of site preparalion, initial delivery and handling charges, installation and assembly
costs, professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-gradation etc. of common
public facilities, deprecialion on assets used in construction of project, interesl during
construction and other costs if atlributable to construction of projects. Such costs are
accumulaled under 'Capital Work-in-Progress' and subsequently allocated on
systemalic basis over major assels, olher than land and infrastructure facilities, on
commissioning of projects.

(c) Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Group does nol
have control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the
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project is capitalized and carried under "Capital Work-in-Progress' and subsequently
allocated on syslemalic basis over major assels, other than land and infrastructure
facililies, on commissioning of projects, keeping in view the ialtribulability” and the iUnil
of Measure” concepts in Ind AS 16- iProperty, Plant & Equipment”. Expenditure of such
nature incurred after completion of the project, is charged to Consolidated Statement of
Profitand Loss.

1B.5.4 |ntangible assels

{a) Intangible Assels purchased are stated al cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes,
trade discount and rebates less accumulated amortization /depletion and impairment
loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, bomowing costs, and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable lo the inlangible assels. Subsequent costs are included in the
asselis carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when il
is probable thal fulure economic benefits associated with the iltem will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.

(b) Amortisation is provided on straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the
intangible assets, which is taken al 5 years for Computer Soltware. The amortisation
period for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed al least at each year end.
Changes in useful lives are Ireated as changes in accounting estimates.

(c) Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cammying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(d) Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to lhe Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products are charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss unless a productis technological and commercial feasibility
has been established, in which case such expenditure is capitalised.

(e) The Group has nointernally generated Intangible Assels.
1B.5.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

{a) The Group assesses al each reporling dale as to whether there is any indication thatany
property, plant and equipmenl and intangible assels or group of assels, called Cash
Generating Unils {CGU)} may be impaired. If any such indicalion exisls the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated lo determine the extent of impairment, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amounl of an individual asset, the
Group eslimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

(b) An impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss to the
extenl, assetis camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an assetis fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the ime value of
money and risk specific to the assets.

{c) The impairment loss recognised in prior accounling period is reversed if there has been
achange in the estimale of recoverable amount.

1B.5.6 Borrowing Costs

{a) Borrowing cosis include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Bormrowing costs
direclly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Aqualifying assel is one that necessarily takes
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substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

(b) Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expendilure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capilalisation.

(c) All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

1B.5.7 Inventories

{a) ltems of inventories are measured al lower of cosl and nel realisable value afier
providing for obsolescence, if any, excepl in case of by-products which are valued at net
realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cosl of conversion
and olher costs including manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in
bringing them to their respective present location and condilion.

(b) Cosl of raw maternials, work-in- progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, slores and
spares and packing malerials are determined at Cost, with moving average price on
Firstin First Cut [FIFO] basis.

1B.5.8 Assels Held For Sale

The assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be
recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use. The condition for
classification of held for sale is met when the assel is available for immediale sale and
the same is highly probable of being completed within one year from the date of
classification under held for sale. The Parent Company, is holding a Land at Shukhpuri
Village, as 'Assels held for Sale', under the head of Other Current Assels, as the
management now anticipates completion of the sale by March,2023 (Previously, the
company was eslimating the completion of sale by March, 2022).

1B.5.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

{a) Provisions are recognised when the Group has a presenl obligation (legal or
constructive) as a resull of a past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required 1o setlle the obligation and a reliable
estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined
based on management's estimale of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheel dale. When the Group expeclts some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a slandalone assel only when the
reimbursement is virtually cerlain.

(b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate thal refllects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as afinance cost.

{c) Contingent liabililies are disclosed on the basis of judgment of lhe management. These
are reviewed al each balance sheel dale and are adjusted lo reflect the current
management's estimate.

{d) Contingenl assels are nol recognized bul are disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements when inflow of economic benefils is probable.

1B.5.10 Income Taxes

(a) Income-Tax expense comprises of curment and deferred income tax (net of Health and
Education Cess only for F.Y. 2020-21) which has been shown under the head 'Other
Expenses'. Income lax expense is recognied in net profit in the Statement of Profit and
Loss excepl to the extent that il relates to items recognized direclly in equity, in which
case ilis recognized in other comprehensive income.

(b) Current tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid lo the taxalion authorities, based on lax rates and laws thal are enacted or
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substanlively enacled al the Balance sheet date.

(c) Deferred lax is recognised on lemporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated inancial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation oflaxable profit

(d) Deferred tax liabilities and assels are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the assel realised, based on lax rates
{and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The camying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assels are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.

1B.5.11 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

(a) Transaclions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monelary assels and liabiliies denominaled in foreign
currencies are translated al the functional currency closing rates of exchange al the
reporting date.

(b) Exchange differences arising on setflement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of
exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to inlerest costs on foreign
currency bomowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of
gualifying assels, are capitalized as cost of assetls.

(c) MNon-monetary itemns that are measured in lerms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are recorded using the exchange rales al the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translaled using the exchange
rates al the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured al fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e_, translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OC| or Consolidaled Statement of
Profitand Loss, respectively).

1B.5.12 Employee Benefits Expense

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short lerm employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during
the penod when the employees render the services.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group
pays specified coniributions to a separate enlity. The Group makes specified monthly
contributions towards Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme. The
Groupis contribution is recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If
the confribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheel
dale exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficil payable to the scheme is
recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds lhe conftribution due for services received belore the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognised as an assel o that extenL

(c) Defined Benefils Plans

{i) The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the
present value of such obligation are determined using actuarnal valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rales and fulure pension
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increases. Due o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefil obligation is highly sensilive to changes in lhese
assumplions. All assumplions are reviewed al each reporling dale.

(ii) The Parent Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed
five years of service wilh the Company at the lime of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every
completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972,

{iii) The gratuity liability amount is contributed o the approved gratuity fund formed
exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. The gratuity fund has been
approved by the governing Income-Tax authorilies.

(iv) The liability in respect of gratuity and other posl-employment benefits is
calculated using the Projected Unit Credil Method and spread over the period
during which the benefitis expecled to be derived from employees' services.

{v) Re-measurements of defined benefil plans in respect of post-employment are
charged o the Other Comprehensive Income.

{d) Employee Separation Costs

Compensation lo employees who have opled for retirement under the voluntary
retirement scheme of the Group is payable in the year of exercise of oplion by the
employee. The Company recognises lhe employee separation cost when the scheme is
announced and the Company is demonstrably committed loit.

1B.5.13 Revenue from Operations

{a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cosl can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or
managerial involverment with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

(b) Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance obligation to
render the services are completed as per contractually agreed lerms. The revenue
derived by the Group from rendering of Logislics services was being netted off againstils
'Freight, Carlage Outward & Other Selling Expenses'till Y. 2020-21.

(c) Revenue from sale of goods & rendering of services is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable after taking into account conlractually defined
terms of payment and excluding trade discounts, volume rebates and taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the Government such as Goods and Services Tax [GST].

1B.5.14 Other Income

(a) InterestIncome

For all Debt Instruments measured either at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income, interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest
Rate [EIR]. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where

appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost
of a financial liability.

(b) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised only when the right to receive the same is established, il
is probable thal the economic benefits associaled with the dividend will flow to the
Group, and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

1B.5.15 Goods and Services Tax [GST]
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The Goods & Services Tax balances, as appearing in the Balance Sheel of the Group, are
subjecl to the reconciliation al the time of furnishing the annual GST returns of the company,
under the Goods and Services Tax Enaclments, for the financial year 2021-22.

1B.5.16 Insurance Claims

{a) Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be
admitted to the extent that there is no unceriainty in receiving the claims.

(b) The Parent Company is expecting the setflement of insurance claims lodged by il, within
next twelve months and therefore, the Parent Company has classified such Insurance
Claims Receivables under the head 'Other Current Assels' in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.
1B.5.17 Financial Instrumentls

{a) Financial Assels
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assels and liabilities are inilially recognized al fair value. Transaction
cosls thal are direclly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assels
and financial liabilities, which are not al fair value through profil or loss, are
adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial
assels are recognised using trade date accounting.

(i) Subseguent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial assel is measured al amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the assel in order to collect contraclual cash
flows and lhe contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dales
to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured al FVTOCI if it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecling contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss (FVTPL)

Afinancial asset not classified as either amortised costor FVOCI, is classified as
FVTPL.

(i) Other Equity Investments

All other equity investments are measured al fair value, with value changes
recognised in Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss, excepl for those equily
investments for which the Group has elecled lo presenl the value changes in
'Other Comprehensive Income”.

(iv)  Impairment of financial assets

- In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL)
model, for evaluating impairment of inancial assets other than those measured
at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

. Expecled credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount
equal lo:
. The 12-months expected credil losses (expected credil losses thal result from

those defaull evenls on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
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(b)

months after the reporting date); or

. Full lifetime expecled credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all
possible defaull events over the life of the financial instrument)

. For trade receivables Group applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires
expected lifetime losses o be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Group uses historical default rates to delermine impairment
loss on the portiolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical
default rales are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are
analysed.

. For other assets, the Group uses 12 month ECL lo provide for impairmenl loss
where there is no significant increase in credit nsk. If there is significant increase
in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized al fair value and in case of loans, net of
direcily atiributable cosl. Fees of recurring nature are direcily recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost

{ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabiliies are camed at amorlized cosl using the effective interest
method. Fortrade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance
sheel dale, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1o the short
maturity of these instruments.

(i) Derivative financial instruments and Hedge Accounting

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised al fair value on the date
on which a derivative conlract is enlered into and are also subsequently
measured al fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivalives are taken
direclly to Consolidated Statement of Profil and Loss, excepl for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and later to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged
item affects profit or loss or trealed as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast
transaction subseguently results in the recognition of a non-financial assets or
non-financial liability.

Hedges that meel the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:
Cash flow hedge

The Group designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assels /
liabililies as hedging instruments o mitigate the risk of movement in interest
rates and foreign exchange rales for foreign exchange exposure on highly
probable future cash flows aliribulable to a recognised assel or liability or
forecasl cash transactions. When a derivative is designaled as a cash flow
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve being parl of other
comprehensive income. Any ineffective porlion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative is recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss. I the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the
period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the

"
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underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underying transaclion.
If the forecasted transaction is no longer expecled o occur, then the amounl
accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Consoclidated
Staterment of Profitand Loss.

Fair Value Hedge

The Group designates derivative contracts or non derivalive financial assets /
liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of
hedged item due to movement in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
commadily prices.

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Consclidated
Slalement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meels the
criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
itemn for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to Consolidated
Statement of Profitand Loss over the period of maturity.

(iv) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash llows from the linancial assel expire or il transfers the financial assel and
the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. Afinancial liability (or a
part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Consolidated
Balance Sheel when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

1B.5.18 Operating Cycle

{a) The Group presents its assets and liabilities in the consolidaled balance sheet based on
current/non-current classification which is based upon the Company’s operating cycle.
The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b} Anasselis lreated as current when it is:
(i) Expecled to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle;

(i} Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) Expected to be realized within bwelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalenl unless reslricted from being exchanged or used to
seltle a liability for al least iwelve months after the reporting period

(c) Aliability is trealed as current when :
(i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
{ii) Itis held primarily for the purpose of frading;
(iii) Ilis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

{iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the seltiement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cumrent assets and liabilities.
1B.5.18 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equily shareholders by weighted average number of equily shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outslanding during the period
are adjusted for evenls of shares issued during the year including bonus issue.
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For the purpose of calculating dilulted earmnings per share, the nel profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares oulstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares.

1B.5.20 Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid (including Income-Tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim
dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when
approved by the shareholders

1B.5.21 Statementof Cash Flows
(a) Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash llows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liguid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value.

(b) The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect
Method' as sel oul in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on "Statement of Cash
Flows'.

NOTE - 1C - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions thal affecl the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabiliies and disclosures as at dale of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The
estimales and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
and conditions. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting eslimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

1C.1  Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment/ intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible assels are depreciated / amortised over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews
the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assels annually in order o determine the
amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives and residual values are based on the Groupis histonical expernence with similar assets and
take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future
periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

1C.2 Recoverability of Trade Receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and
determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered
include lhe credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipaled future
payments and any possible actions thal can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

1C.3 Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be
a future outflow of funds resulting from past operalions or events and the amount of cash outflow
can be reliably estimated. The liming of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the
application of judgment lo existing facts and circumstances, which can be subjecl to change.
The camying amounts of provisions and liabiliies are reviewed regularly and revised o lake
account of changing facls and circumslances.

1C.4 Impairmentof non-financial assels
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The Group assesses al each reporling date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates lhe asselis recoverable amount. An
asselis recoverable amount is the higher of an assetis or Cash Generating Units (CGUis) fair
value less costs of disposal and ifs value in use. Il is determined for an individual assel, unless
the assel does nolt generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or a groups of assels. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the assetis considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounled to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks spedific to the assetl. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if no such ransactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model isused.

1C.5 Impairmenloffinancial assels

The impairment provisions for financial assels are based on assumptions about risk of defaull
and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumplions and
selecting the inputs to the impairmenl calculation, based on Groupis past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

1C.6 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-18 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues. In developing the
assumplions relating to the possible fulure uncertainties in the global economic conditions
because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these Consolidated
linancial statementls has used internal and external sources of informalion including credit
reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Group has performed sensilivily
analysis on the assumplions used and based on current estimales expects the carrying amount
of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Groupis consolidaled financial
statements may differ from that estimated as at the dale of approval of these consclidated
financial statements.

NOTE - 1D - New and amended Standards adopted by the Group

1D.1  During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Group has adopted IND AS 116 [Refer
1B.4.2above] 1D.2 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') nolifies new slandards / amendmenls under
Companies {Indian Accounling Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March,
2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
as below :

{a) Ind AS 16 — Property, plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies thal excess of nel
sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in
the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of
cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1stApnl, 2022,

(b) Ind AS 37 - Provisions, conlingent liabilities and contingenl assets — The amendment
specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly
io the contract. Cosis lhal relate directly to a contract can either be incremenial
costs of fulfilling thal contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiliing conlracts (an example would be
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022, although eary adoplion is
permitied.

(c) Ind AS 103 — Business combinations — The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS
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103 for liabilities and contingenl liabilities.

(d) Ind AS 109 — Financial instruments — The amendmenl clarifies which fees an
entity includes when it applies the "10%' lesl in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on the other's behalf.

The Group is in the process of evalualing the impact of these amendments.
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NOTE -7 - NON-CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
[Unsecured, considered good]

[% in Lakhs]
Particutars Asat As al
31st March, 2092 | 31st March, 2021
Secured, considered good - .
Unsecured, considered good, 417944 4 052 50
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Less : Impaiment for trade receivables - -
Trade Receivables - Credit lmpaired - -
TOTAL 4178944 4,052 .50
HOTE - 7.1- MON CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS AT 315T MARCH, 2022 R i Lakhe
in
5o Particulars for from due date of Payment ol
Less than & monihs |6 months tn 1 year| 1102 years Z2ipIyears | More than 3 years |
1 Undisputed Trade recavables
— considerad good - - - - 4,179.44 4.179.44
2 Undisputed Trade Recerables
—wihich have significant increase in
credit risk - - - - - -
3  |Undizputed Trede Recelvables
— creddit impaired - e 3 3 : @
4 Disputed Trade Receivables
— considered good - - - - - -
5 Disputed Trade Receivables
—which have significant increass in
credit sk - - - - - -
5 Disputed Trade Receivables
— credit impaired - - - - - -
Less: Allowance for Doubtfl Debts - = | - - - -
TOTAL - - , - - 4,179.44 4,179.44
i 1
CHEDULE AS A ST MARCH, 2021
[# in Lakhs)|
‘Outstanding for following penods from due date of Payment Tital
Less than & months Ermdﬂ.'hh[m’i 110 2 years i 210 3 years Maore than 3 years
1 Undisputed Trade receivables
— considenad good - - - - 4,052 50 405250
2 |Undizputed Trede Receivables
—wihich have significant increase in
credit nak - - - - - -
3 Undisputed Trade Receivables
— creddit impaired - - - - - -
4 Disputed Trade Receivables
— conskdened good - = =
5 Disputed Trade Recelvables
—which have significant increase in
credit rsk - - .
& Disputed Trade Recenvables
— credit impaired - - - - - -
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts - - - - - -
TOTAL 2 - 4 - 405250 | 4 ,052.50
!
[
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NOTE - § - NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

[Uresescured, considanad good] [% i Lakhes]
Particulans As al As al
sl March, 2002 | 31sl 2021
Othar Receivalies 12017 6Y98.29
TOT1AL 120017 62829

NOTE -9 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
, considarned
[Unsecured, con guoad] [# in Lakhs]

Parliculars As al As al
31t March, 2022 | 315! March, 2021 |

nces other than Ce Advances

Socurily Deposits 325 06 183.34
Taxes Paid Under Prolest 185.53 18735
Addvance to Suppliors 2 657 .49 257678

TOTAL 3,168.98 25947 47
MHOTE - 10 - INVENTORIES
[Walued al lower of cost and net realizable value)

[2 in Lakhs)
Paiticulars As at As at
315l Manch, 2022 | 3151 Manch, 2021

Raw Malarizls 1,708 37 221546
Work-In-Progross 94 .57 8467
Finished Goods 3,884 59 2,580 76
Stock-In-Trade 445.68 49062
Slores and Spares 107 .50 10230
Packing Materizsls &4 89 67.73

TOTAL 6,355 40 5561.54
Nolas:

i) Amount of inventonies recognized as an expense have been disclosed in Noles 28,30 and 31.
i) Entire inventones have been hypolthecated as securily with banks against working capital lozns, refer Nole 21 for detaibs.

KOTE - 11 - CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES

[% in Lakhs)
Particulars As al As al
st March, 2002 | 31st March, 2021
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, consderad good 4 484.73 4 426.80
Trade Receivablos which have significant increase in Credit Risk 124.49 5745
Less: Allowance for Doubtiul Debis (124.49 ) {57.45)
Trade Heceivables - Credil Impasred - -
TOTAL A A8 T3 4,426 80

i) No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Paront Company cithor severally or jodntly with any othor person.
Further, rade receivables due from enterprises over which Key managerial Persons are able 1o exercise significant influence amounts to

T Nil (Previous yoar ¥ 0.74 Lakhs) and firms or private companios in which any director i a partner, a director of a momber amounts to ¥ Nil
(Provious yoar $ 1.21 Lakhs)asat 315t March, 2022,

i} The Allowance for Doubtful Debis by the Parent Compary has boen made on the basls of expected credit loss a5 par the: judgmient of the
management

{in}  Entire Current Trade Receivables have been hypothecated with Banks agalnst working capital beans, refer Mole 21 for details.

P
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NOTE - 12 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

[% In Lakhs)
Farticulars Az at Az al
5 st March, 2022 | 315t March, 2021 |
Balances with Banks 5.72 011
Cash on Hand 585 11.48
TOTAL 14.57 11.59
NOTE -13 - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT!
[* in Lakhs]
Pariculars As at As al
3st March, 2022 | 33st March, 2021 |
Fixed Deposits - Maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months 20689 927 23
TOTAL [95.80 927.23
Mate: Fixed Deposits are hald as margin money against the bank guarantes and letter of credit facilities sanctioned by the Banks.
NOTE - 14 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
[# In Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Az al
31st March, 2022 | 315t March, 2021 |
A Capital Advancss 49.38 325.98
14) 4936 328.98
B. Advances other than Capital Advances
Taxes Paid Under Protest 457.20 457 20
Advance o related parties
- Advance to Suppliers 54.71 1,400.10
Otihears
= Advance 1o Supplisrs 7a.78 150.02
- Advance 1o Employeas 2597 3242
- Advance for Expenses L 48.85
iB) 65887 208858
C. Others
Assgels Hald for Sale - Freahold Land 19522 210.9
Balances with Statutory Authonties 2113 2248
Prepaid Expenses 6149 51.70
Insuirance Claims Recavable T15.03 T15.03
Incentives Recaivabla from Govermnmeant 430.02 430 02
(c) 1,423.89 1.430.14
TOTAL (A+B+C) 2,131.22 3,847 .70
* Relating to Intersst Free Loan to foreign subaldiary
Nales;

1 No advances are due from directors or othor officers of the Group eithoer severally or jontly with any other person. Further, advance 1o
supplicr s due amounting 1o ¥ 54.70 Lakhs (Provious Year ¥ 1400.01 Lakhs) from firms or privale companies in which any direclor is g
paftnes, a direclor of amember, a5 al 31st March, 2022

2 The onfire Insurance Cladm is receivable by the Parent Company against the kesses of Property, Plant and Equipment and Inventor
occurred in earbery years. The Parent Company has recelved the partial insurance Clabm and the remaining claim s expeciled o be sett
in thix Firancial Year 2022-23 . The Managomenl consider the same as Good for recovery and therefore, no provision for impainment of th
value of such claim has been considernod necossary.
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NOTE - 15 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

A, Authorsed and Paid-up Share Capital

14" Annual Report 2021-2022 )

N |% i Lakhs]
Particutars As al 3151 March, 2022 As al 315t March, 2021
No. of Amounl Ma. al Amount
Sharas Shams
AUTHORISED
|Equily Shares of ¥ 10/- each 60,00,000 3 3,600.00 4,60,00,000 4,600.00
ED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY D-up
|Equity Shares of ¢ 10/- each 91,495,000 2 2 818,50 2,681,895 000 2.919.50
TOTAL 2,91.95,000 2.919.50 2,91,95,000 2.8919.50
B. Reconciliabon of the number ol shares oulstanding al lhe beginming and al the and of the reporing perod
- [£ in Lakhs]
Parliculars As al 31s1 March, 2022 As al 31st March, 2021
Mo of Aol Mo, ol Aol
Shares. Sharas
Shares outstanding al the beginning of the year 2,51 85,000 291950 263,270,000 2 632 00
;E‘rrmms issued during the year & = 28,75,000 287 .50
| Shares boughl back during the year - = - =
Shares oulstanding al the end of the year 2.91.85,000 2.919.50 2.91 95,000 2.919.50
C. Dutails of shares held by sharsholders holding more than 5% of the sggregate shares in the Parenl Company
Mame of Shareholder As atl 3181 March, 2022 As al 315t March, 2021
Mo ol % of Mo, of o of
Shares held Hokding Shares heid Hulding
Shit Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54 48,974 1B 664 54,48 5974 18.664
Smi Rashmi Dewi Agrawal 47 00,092 16.059 47 00,092 16.089
Shree Padmavali Imigations LLP 26,112,000 88947 26,12,000 B.a47
0. Details of shanes held by Promoters as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as al 31st March, 2022 and as at 3151 March, 2021 of the Parent
Compsry
[Name of the Promoter As al 3151 March, 2022 As al 31sl March, 2021 % Change during
MNo. of % ol Ma. of o of the year
Shares hedd Total Sharas Shares held Tokal Shares
Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 54,48 974 18664 54 48874 18664 =
SmL Rashmi Devi Agrawal 47,00,002 16.0599 47 00,092 16.099 -
Shros Padmavsati Irigabons LLP 26,12 000 B.947 26,12,000 8947 -
Smi Rashmi Dewvi Agrawal & Shn Sanjay
Kumar Agrawal on betal of Shres Venkatesh 1,433,000 0.450 1.43,000 0490 -
Indusines
Shii Mohan Lal Sohan Lal Shakh 6,089 0.021 6,089 0021 -
|Smt Ananda Urmale 1,200 0.004 1,200 0.004 -
g&mrta'psh Babanlal Agrawal 1,200 0.004 1,200 0.004 &
' Shi Vijay Prasad Pappu 1,200 0.004 1,200 0.004 &
Shei Mehmood Ahmed Khan 1.200 0.004 1.200 0004 -
Tokal 1,29,14,355 44 237 1,29.14 8355 a4 237 -

|
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M
Marme of the Promoler Axat 31st March, 2021 As al 31s1 March, 2020 % Changa during
No.of %% of Mo of % of the year

Shri Sanjay Kumar Agrawal 5448974 18,664 3896474 14.804 (39.84)

Smi Rashmi Devi Agrawal 47 00,092 16099 33,77 592 12.833 {39.16)

Shires Padmavat Irigations LLP 26,112,000 B.o47 26,112,000 ooy =

Smi. Rashmi Devi Agrawal & Shri Sanjay -

Kumar Agrawal on behall of Shree Venkalesh 1,43,000 0.480 1,43,000 0.543

Industries

Shri Mohan Lal Sohan Lal Shah G089 0021 G.08% 0.023 -

Smi. Ananda Urmnale 1,200 0.004 1,200 0.005 -

Shii Rapesh Babankal Agrawal 1200 0.004 1.200 0.005 -

Shurt Vijay Prasad Pappu 1200 0.004 1.200 0.005 -

Shiri Mehmood Ahmesd Khan 1,200 0004 1,200 D.005 -
Tookal 1,29 14,955 44 237 1,00,39 855 38146 (TB.999)

F. i ences and restricions atl: 1 it

The Parent Company has issued only one class of equily shares having face value of £ 100~ per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vole

per shane held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are cligible o receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribulion of

all preferential amounts, in proportion lo their shareholding

G Allotrmenl of Benus SharesBuy Back of shares

There ane no shares allolied as fully paid up by way of borus shares or alloiled as fully paid up purssant to contracl withoul peayment besng received in

cash, or bought back during the pericd of five years immediately preceding the reporting date. There are no securnties which are convertible into cquity

shares:

NOTE - 16 - OTHER EQUITY

[T in Lakhs]
Particulars As at Az at
1=l March, 2022 | 312t March, 2021
Segurifies Premium B,831.76 6,901,756
Reatained Earnings 5,241.98 3.799.41
Revaluabon Resarve 41145 042283
Exchange differance an translation of Financial Staternents of foreign oparations 2661.12 242915
Equity Componant of Compound Financial Instruments 85,89 85,849
TOTAL 2135220 18,7249.04

Thies amount rumdmd in excess of face value of the equily shares s recognized in Soourtes Promiuwm, The amount of securnitics premium
can bo utilzed only in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for spodfiod purposes. Durning the FY. 2020-21, the
Parent Company had issuved 28 75,000 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each as fully paid-up at a Premium of ¥ 3.90 por share. The
excess of aggregale consideration rocoived over the Taco value of shares amounting to ¥ 112,13 Lakhs was crodited o socurities
prommum.

The details of movement in Secunitios Promium dunng the yoar is as below:

[£ in Lakhs]
Parliculars As Al As al
A1st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Opening Balanca 6,991.76 & 87T9.64
Add:  Premium on issue of Equily Shares - 212
6,991.76 699176

Less:  Liilized during the year B B
Closing Balanss 6,901 76 6,591.76
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thy  Reained Eamings
Retained Earmngs are the profits that the Group has camed till date, loss any transfors to general reserve, dividends or other distributions

paid lo shareholders.
Tha detaiks of movement m Retained Eamings dunng the year i as bolow:

[% In Lakhs]
Parficulars As at As al
Aist March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Opaning Balanca 3,799.41 2 BHO.1A
Add @ Tranzfer from Revaluation Surplus to Retained Earmings 11.38 4.52
3,810.79 2 BE4.TO
Less . Unamortised Cost Portion on Interest Free Loans to Subsidary Written-aff 270 204
3,808.08 2 681.80
|Less @ Unamortised Interest Expenses on Loans from related parties written-off 0.86 -
380723 2 BB1.80
Add:  Prafit for the year 1,425.08 1,083.42
5,230.32 3,765.22
Add:  Other Comprehansive income for the Year 11.66 34 18
Closing Balance 5,.241.98 3,799.41
(gl Revaluation Reserve

A revaluaton resone s a non-cash resenve created o reflect the true valuo of the assel wihon the market vaiue of a certam category of assel s
reore or kess than the value of such assel at which it is recorded in the books of account. The Parent Company has crealed revaluation reserve
by making revaluation of the assels carried oul during the financial year 2016-17. From the Revaluation Reserve, duning the Y. 2021-22 . a
sum of T 11.38 Lakhs (Previous Yoar Rs. 4.51 Lakhs) has boen roversed which ks attributabic 10 the revalued portion of cortain assol soid

during the year.
The detaiks of movement in Revaluation Reserve during the year ks as bolow:

[ in Lakhs]
Parliculars : As al Amal
Atst March, 2022 | 315t March, 2021 |
Opening Balanca 6422 83 642735
Less : Transfer from Revaluation Surplus 1o Retained Eamings {11.38) [4.52)
Closing Badancs B.411.45 6,422 43
{dy  Exchangs differsnce on translation of Financial Stalements of Foreign Operations
[% in Lakhs]
Particulars As at Asal
318l March, 2022 | 31sl March, 2021
Opening Balanca 242915 2613.54
Add;  Other Comprehensive Income 231.97 (18439}
losi ance 266112 242915

{a)  Eguify Component of Compound Financigl Instrumenis

Equity eomporent of compound financial statement reprosents the diference betwoeen the procesds of the barrowings mado by the Parenl
Company from its promoters, during the previous financial years, at low interest rate, and the fair value of the liability component

The detaits of movement in Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments during the year is as below:

[T in Lakha]
|Particulars A5 al #s al
3ist Mareh, 2022 | 318t March, 2021
Opening Balance BS.88 8584
Closing Balance 8588 A5 80

I L 178 )
g DT ok



TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (

MNOTE - 17 - NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

14" Annual Report 2021-2022 )

[% in Lakhs]
Particulars As at 315t March, 2022 Ag &t 315t March, 2021
Man Current Current han Currant Current
Term Loans
A Secured
From Banks 1.735.50 54068 511.91 42844
Fram Man-Banking Financial Companias 11.72 18.26 34.68 13.62
(A 1,747 22 559,65 546,55 442.06
B. Unzecurad
Laans and advances from relaled parties - - 43,91 -
(B) - - 43,81 -
TOTAL (Aa+E) 1,747.22 559,65 580.50 442.06
Motes

The Current portion of the Borrowingds represant the principal amount of loan, which |5 repayable in next twalve months and

has been classified under Note 21 'Short Term Borrowings'
Rafer Mote 43 for information about liguidity risk.

Terms of Repayment

Term Loan of 700 Lakhs from Punjab Mational Bank is
socured on first and exclusive charge by way of Equitable
Mortgage on Machineries and Hypothoecation of all
movable Machinonos!/ lmplements! Fixed Assets and
Guaranices of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs.
Rashmidevi Agrawal, Shree Padmavali Irrigation LLP,
Shrec Balaji Industnes and Shroo Venkatosh Industnies
along with par passu charge by way of Eguitable
Mortgage of Properties owned by Dircctors Mr. Sangay
Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashrmidowi Agrawal and M's Shroo
Balaji Industries as collateral security.

Repayable in 84 ogual monthly instaliments of € 833 Lakhs with initiai
maoratorium penod of 5 months starting from Apnl, 2018, Las! inslallment due in
March, 2025 Rate of interest B.95% p.a. as al year end. (Provious Year 10.80%

pa)

[Totzal Oultstanding ason 31-03-2022 is 293 23 Lakhs  (Provious yeard
399 .51 Lakhs) out of which ¥ 99.99 | akhs (Previous year ¥ 9999 Lakhs) is
fakon o curent maturities of long torm debts]

Term Loan of T 400 Lakhs from Central Bank of India, ks
gsecured by Pan Pasu charge on Planl & Machineries
siluated at Faclory Premises Present & Future with SBI
and Personal Guaraniees of Direclors Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal, Mis Shroc Balaji
Industries, Mfs. Shreo Padrmavati Imigation LLP and MYs.
Shree Venkatesh Industnes along with First parl passu
chamge by way of Equitablo Mortgage of Propertios owned
by Directors Mr. Sangay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidowi
Agrawal and M's Shree Balaji Indusiries as collaloral
SECUty.

Repayable in 84 egual monthly installmonts of ¥ 8.33 Lakhs with iniliat
moratorium penod of 5 months starting from Apnl, 2018. Last instaflment dus in
March, 2025 Rate of intenc=t 8.95% p_a. as al year end. (Previous Year 10.80%
pa.)

[Total Owtstanding as on 31-03-2022 15 29323 Lakhs  (Provious year T
399 51 Lakhs) out of which ¥ 99.99 Lakhs (Previous year  99.99 Lakhs) is
faken b curent malurities of long term debis]

Term Loan of ¥ 1,800 Lakhs from Punjab National Bank ks
socured by first and cxclusive change by way of Equitable
Mortgage of proposed building having constructon cost of
¥ 3,26 27 000/ siteated al Kharsa no. 109 at Gram
Mobhammedpura, Burhanpur (M.P.) and by way of
Hypothecation on plant & machinercs & all movable
machinorics/ implemonts! fixed assets to be creatod out
of propeed tedfm loan of the bank. (Presently, consoium
has first pan-passu charge by way of EM on Khasra no.
109 at Gram Mohammcdpura, Burhanpur (MP). Lis
furthor secured by second charge on entire cument
agsols of the compary both present and future (Fiest

Repayable in T8 monthly principal instaliments of ¥ 23.08 Lakhs each starting
from April, 2022 Last instaliment due in September, 2028. Rate of Interest as at
the year ond is8.95% p.a. (Provious Year Nil)

[Total Outstanding as on 3T-03-2022 5 T 1776.47 Lakhs (Provious year Nil)
out of which ¥ 276.96 Lakhs (Provious vear Nil) is taken o current malurilios
of lomg lerm debis. |

|
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Mature of Securily

Terms of Repaymant

Working Capilal Demand Loan [Common Covid-19
Emergency Credit Line (CCECL) of 330 Lakhs from
State Bank of India, is socured by firsl Pan pasu charge
(between consortium members) on whole of companics
present & future stocks of Raw Matenal, Finished Goods,
Stock In Process, Stores & Sparcs and olher Raw
Material and the company's prosent and future book
debts outstanding momes, roceivable claims, bills,
Conlracts, engagemenis, scourities, invesiments, nghts
and assets of the company. The working capital faciliies,
as above, are further secured by way of oguitable
morigage of Immovable Properties of the company and
promoters, related entiics and personal guarantoos of
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal,
Shroo Padmavali Irigations LLP, Shrot Bakafi Industres
and Shree Venkatesh Industries.

Repayable in 18 Principal monthly instaliments with initial moratonum Perdod of
& months starting from February, 2021, Last instaliment dee in July, 2022 Rato
ol Interestasatl year end 6.95% p.a. (Provious Yoar 6.95% pa.)

[Total Outstanding T 72 991 akhs {Provious year & 205.14 Lakhs) oul of which
T F2.99 Lakhs (Prowious year © 220020 Lakhs) faken fo curront maluritios of
lovvg term dobts]

Four Vehicle Loans aggregating to ¥ 61.98 Lakhs from
HOFCG Bank Ltd. are securcd by Hypothecation of
Vehbcles.

At the ime of sanclion:

The loan was ropayable in 36 ogual monthly nstallments starting from May,
2019 Lasl instaliment due in April, 2022 Rate of Interest is 9.51% p.a. as al year
end. (Previous Yoar 9.51%pa.)

Restructuning dise o Covid-19 Pandemic:

Repayable in 26 equal monthly instaliments commencing from June, 2020 Last
instaliment due in Juty, 2022, Rate of Inlorest s 9.51% p.a. as al year ond.
{Provious Year 9.51 % pa)

[Total Owistanding ¥ 6.71 Lakhs (Provious year ¥ 28.75 Lakhs) out of which
F6.71 Lakhs (Provious year ¥ 2204 Lakhs) faken to eurront maturiics of long
term debis]

Vishbcle Loan of ¥ 4.24 Lakhs from HDFC Bank Lid =
secured by Hypothocation of Viehicke

Al the thrmo of sSancton:

The loan was repayable in 36 egual monthly installments staing from
Decomber, 2019, Last installiment due in November, 2022, Rate of Inlorost &
9.00% p.a_asat year end. (Previous Yoar 9.00% p.a)

Rastruciuring due o Covid-19 Pandemic:

Ropayable in 32 equal monthly instalimeants commenong from June, 2020. Last
instaliment due in January, 2023, Rate of Interest is 9.00% pa. as al year end.
{Provious Year 9.00 % p.a.)

[Total Ouistanding < 1. 20 Lakhs {Provious yoar € 2,64 Lakhs) out of which ¥ 1.20
Lakhs {Previous year © 1,44 Lakhs) laken lo currenl maturities of long lorm
debts]

Viehbcle Loan of T 9.76 Lakhs from HDFC Bank Lid. (=
securcd by Hypothocation of Viehicle.

Repayable in 36 equal monthly instaliments starting from Docomber, 2019, Last
instalimenl due in Movember, 2022 Rate of Interest is 9.00% pa as al year
ond. (Provious Year 3.00% p.al)

[Total Ouistanding ¥ 2.40 Lakhs (Provious year 7 5,74 Lakis) oul of wiich ¥
2 40 Lakhs (Previous yoar 3.34 Lakie) takon fo eurrert malurithes of lorg lemm
debis]

Vohicle Loan of ¥ 7765 Lakhs from HDFC Bank Lid. k=
secured by Hypothocation of Viehicie.

Repayable in 60 eqgual monthly installiments starting from August 2018 Last
mstaliment due in July 2023. Rate of Intercst is 8.50% p.a. as at yvear omnd.
(Previous Year8.50% pa_ )

[Totad Outstanding T 24.02 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 40,33 Lakhs ) out of which
T 17.76 Lakhs (Provious yoar ¥ 16.31 Lakhs) laken to current matunities of long
lerm debis]

|
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Naturs of Security Terms of Repayment
2 ‘ehicke Loan of ¥ 11.86 Lakhs from HDFC Bank Lid. is | Repayable in 38 squal monthly inslallmenis slarting from December, 2020, Lasl
securad by Hypolhecation ol Vehicle. instalimant due in Movember, 2023, Rale of Interesl is B.00% p.a. as al year end.
(Previous Year 8.00% p.a.)

[Todal Quistanding € 6.94 Laklhrs (Previous year € 10.68 Lakhs) owl of which € 4.05
Lakhs (Previows year T 3. 74 Lakhs) laken o curen! maluniies of fong term debis]

10 | \iehicle Loan of T 6.84 Lakhs from HOFC Bank Lid, issecured | Repayable in 36 egual monthly instaliments starding from March, 2021, Lasl
by Hypolhecalion of Vehicle. irstallmant due in Fabruary, 2024, Rale of Inleresl is 765 % p.a. as al year end.

(Pravious Year 7.685% pa.)

[Toitarl Oeitstanding € 4.55 Lakhs (Previous year T 667 Lakhs) oul of which € 228
Lakhs {Pravious year € 2 12 Lakhs) laken fo currenf matuwdtivs of lomg ferm debis]

Repayable in 36 equal monthly mslalimenis starling from December, 2020. Lasl

11 ; ’ ;
Vobicls Loan of ¥ 5527 Leid fom Delnler Financis | o it tise iy Novesibe. 2023, Rals of kilaet & BO0% pa 65 ol yeer ahd.

Senices India Pyl Lid. is secured by Hypolhecaltion of

Vishickes (Previous Year 8.00% pa.)
[Tolal Dutstanding 2 6.94 Lakhs (Pravious year ¥ 1068 Lakhs) oul of which  4.05
Lakhs [Previous yedr € 3. 74 Lakhs) laken lo cument malunities of fong lerm dobls]
NOTE - 18 - LEASE LIABILITIES
[E In Lakhs]
Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 Az at 31st March, 2021
Man Current Current Mon Cuprent Currant
Leasa Liabilitias for Land 1,215.09 97.09 - -
TOTAL 1.215.03 a7.08 - -

MNotes:
{1} The Current porficn ol the Lease Liabiities represenl the Lease Renlal which s payable in nexl iwebve months and has bean dasshed under
Mole 22 'Currenl Lease Liabifities".

() For details on the implicabons of apphcabion of Ind AS 116 on the inancial slalerments, Reler Notes 1 & 29,

-18- D T. T
[% in Lakhs]
[Pariiciilars As at As at
Aist March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
rred Tax Liahidi on acoount of taxabls differenc
Ad the baginning of tha year 1,859.69 1,678.29
Less : Cradit to Statement of Profit and Loss (34.81) {18.80)
TOTAL 1624588 1,659.69
NOTE 19.1 - Go nent of Deferred Tax Liabilities for the r ended 31st March, 2022
[% in Lakhs]
[Pariculars A at Change{Creal) In Ag al
15t Aprll, 2021 | Staternent of Prafit| 3151 March, 2022
A Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation bo

Property. Plant and Equipment 27833 613 284 46
Revalued Land 1.407.74 {6.22) 1.401.52
Right-of-Use Asset - 315,15 315,15

] 1,6868.07 315.06 2,001.13

B Defarred Tax Assets in relation 1o

Pravision for Impairment of Trads Receivabile 14 44 16.87 2133

Giratuity Payabls 11.52 275 1467

Lease Liabilities . 330,25 330,25

(B) 26,38 349,87 376.25

TOTAL (A-B 1,665 69 {34.81) 1,624, 68
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Mote - 19.2 - Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021

[% in Lakhs]
Partioulara Az al Charge/(Credityto | Asat
15t April, 2020 | Statement of Profit|  31st March, 2021
and Loss
A, Dafarred Tax Liabiities in relation to
Property, Flant and Equipmant 350.13 {F1.81) 278.32
Revalued Land 1,373.29 34.45 140774
{A) 1,72342 {37.36) 1,686.06
B. Drarfeerroe] Tan Agsels in ralation 1o ;
Praovision for Impairment of Trade Receivabils 20.4% (6.04) 14 .46
Gralulty Payable 2467 {12.75) 11.92
B4 4513 {18.75) 26.28
TOTA {A-B) 167820 {18.61) 1,650 68
NOTE - 20 - OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
=K [% In Lakhs]
Particidars _ hsar ; Asal
315l March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 |
A Advances for Sals of Propenty .50 550
(&) 5.500 5.50
B. Ofhwrs
Long Term Deposils from Dealers and Suppliers A88.50 38618
Leng Term Depasits fram Tenants 500 7.20
Gratuity Fayable 4214 3404
=31 545.60 42043 |
TOTAL [A+B]) 551.10 434,93
NOTE - 21 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
[¥ in Lakhs]
Particulars As al Asal
31st March, 2022 | 31l March, 2021 |
A Erom Banks.
Cash Credit Facilities 16295 1.738.53
[Leans Repayable on Demand, Securad]
Current Maturities of Long Tarm Debts 540068 428 44
() o366 2.168.97
B, From Othars.
Current Matunties of Long Tarm Debts 1896 13.62
18.96 13.62
(B)
TOTAL [A+E) 72261 2, 180.59
" Note: T N
{iy The Company has borrowed Cash Credit loans from State Bank of India, Bank of Baroda, Punjab National Bank and Central Bank of India
led by State Bank of India wharein, SBI Cash Crodil Loan of 159,70 Lakhs (Previous Yoar ¥ 931.22 Lakhs), Bank of Baroda Cash Credit
Loan of ¥ 225 Lakhs (Provious Year ¥ 343.07 Lakhs), Punjab National Bank Cash Credit Loan of ¥ Nil {Previous Year 15517 Lakhs) and
Cenitral Bank of India Cash Credil Loan of 3 1.00 Lakhs {Previous Year ¥ 309.06 Lakhs) are socured by first Pan pasu chargo {(bebwoen
comsortium members) on whole of companies present & futune stocks of Raw Matonial, Finished Goods, Stock in Process, Stores & Spares
and other Raw Maleral and the company's present and fulure book debts outstanding monies, recetvable daims, bills, Contracts,
engagemonts, securtics, investments, nghts and assots of the company. The working capital faciliies, a5 above, are further securod by
way of equitable morigage of Immovable Properties of he company and promolers, relaled entitics and personal guarantees of Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Agrawal, Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal, Shree Padmavati irrigations LLP, Shree Balaji indusinios and Shree Venkatosh Industries
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NOTE - 22 - CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES

= [ in Lakis]
Particutars : Az at Agat
H1st March, 2022 | 31st 1
Current Maturitias of Leass Liabilities 97.09 -
OTAL a7 0o =
NOTE - 23 - CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES Z
[% in Lakhs]

Pariculars o Asmt | As at
S1stMarch, 2022 | 31stMarch, 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 843.59 177.64
Tatal outstanding dues of credilors other than micro snterprises & small anterprises 3,748.77 4,1652.08
TOTAL 4,502 38 4.329.73

— giigiea
i} Tradepayablesaredustofirmeorprivatecompaniesinwhichanydireclorisapartner adirectororamemberamountslo ¥ 605.94Lakhs

{Previous year ¥ Mil} as at 31st March, 2022,

NOTE - 23.1 - Information to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The informabon as reqguired to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Modium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has beon determined o the
exient such parlies have been identified on the basis of information available with the Parent Company. The amount of princpal and inlerest
outstanding during tho year is given balow :

[Z in Lakhs]
Fariculars As at As at
31st March, 202F | 31st March, 2021
(&) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier ag at the end of accounting 843.59 177.64
vear
(b} Interast due tharaon remaining unpaid lo any supplier 25 al the and of the
accountng year - -
£ The amount of interest pald along with the ameunis of the payment made o the
supplier beyond the appointed day - -
(d)  The amount of interest due and pavable for the year - =
(=) The amount of interesl accrued and remaining unpaid at the and of the
accouniing year - -
if) The amount of further interest due and payable sven In the succeeding year,
until such date when the intereat dues a3 above are actually paid - -
=23.2= P elng Sche as at 31st h, 2022
[ in Lakhs]
S Na Particulars Cutstanding for following perods from due date of paymaent
Lass than 1 Year 1t 2 years 2toSyears | More than 3 years oml
9 MSME £43.59 - - - B43.59
2 Other than MSME 368217 2892 37864 : 374878
3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
4 Disputed duss - Other than MEME - - - . -
TOTAL 4.525.76 28,92 37.69 - 4.552.37
[7 in Lakis]
S MNa Particulars: Outstanding for lollowing parods rom due date of paymaent
Lass than 1 Year 1to 2 years Zto3years | More than 3 years Lo
1 MSME 177.64 - - - 177684
2 Other than MSME 4.005.29 121.53 23.35 0.93 4.152.10
3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
4 Disputad duss - Ofher than MEME - - - - -
OTAL 4.183.23 121.53 23.35 0.93 432974
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NOTE - 24 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

[% in Lakhs]
Particulars As at As ot
1=t Mareh, 2023 | 31st 2021
Imtarest Accrued but not dus on bormowings 0.38 | 067
TOTAL 038 | 0.67
NOTE - 25 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
[% in Lakhs]
Particulars As atl As at
31t Mareh, 2022 | 315t March, 2024
A, Revenue Recelved in Advancg
Advance from Customers 28141 46857
() 28141 468.57
B. Othars
Statutory Liabilities 253.1 42530
Gratuity Fayabia 16.19 1333
Othar Liabllities [Fefer Note Bealow] 615.30 416.55
(B} 884,70 855,18
TOTAL (BB} 1.4686:11 1,223.75
NOTE - 26 - SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS Ein 5
Farticulars As gt Az at
st March, 2022 | 3151 March, 2021
Far Employee Benefils 166,16 132.19
Far Others 56.37 14016
TOTAL 22253 27235
NOTE - 27 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2 In Lakhs]
iy iars y Year ended Year emi.ncl
stMareh, 2022 | 3158 March, 2021 |
&, Sale of Products
Manufactured Goods 52,330.50 40, 265.09
Traded Goods 3,631.55 1,887 58
(&) 5598205 42 165.67
B. Sale of Services
Fraight nd Legistics Incoms AT 4T 528 81
=) 47947 528.81
TOTAL |A+E) 56,441.52 42 654 48

[# In Lakhs|
Fariculars India Chitgide India Tatal
Plastic Pipas, Fittings, Alisd Producis and Trading Accessories 55,802 .40 - 55 902.40
YWaler Tanks and Allied Products 549,65 - 589.65
TOTAL 55,8962.05 - 55,962.05
L 184 ) |
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NOTE - 27.2 - Revenue From Contracts with Customers disaggregated on the basis of Geographical Region and Major Businesses
as at 31st March, 2021

[2 in Lakhs]
Particulars India Dutside India Total
Plastic Plpes. Fitings, Allied Products and Trading Accessarles 42 16568 - 42 165.68
Water Tanks and Allied Productz - - -
TOTAL 4216568 g 42 165 6B
NOTE - 27.3 - Reconciliation of Gross Revenue with the Revenue from Contracts with Customers
[¥ in Lakhs]
: : Year endead Year ended
gl 315t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Gross Revenue 1,234,357 80 00.,821,13
Less: Discounts T8,385.85 57 85545
MNet Ravenue racogiized from Contracls with Customans 55,962 05 42 16568
NOTE - 28 - OTHER INCOME
. [¥in Lakhs]
Particulars Yaar endead  Year anded
st March, 2022 | 31stMarch, 2021 |
A, Interast Incoms 5T.E1 53.30
B. Cther Non-Operaling Income
Gain on Sale of Freenold Land 818 2.08
Mizcellansous Raceipis 34,87 21.37
TOTAL 101.67 &7.55

NOTE - 23 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

2 in Lakhs]
Farticulars Yeaar andad Yaar anded
st March, 2022 | 3131 March, 2021 |
Raw Malarials Consumed 40, 774.02 31,720.80
Packing Matarlals Consumed 280.80 242.04
TOTAL 41,054,682 31,962 .94
NOTE - 30 - PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
[% in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 |
Pipes & Fittings 217981 141237
Otharg 1.088.21 31146
TOTA 3,268.02 1,723.83
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NOTE - 31 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

= [# In Lakhs]
Partlcubars Year andad Year ended
315t March, 2022 | 31 2021
&, Inventones al the beginning of the year
Finizhed Goods 259076 211411
Waork-In-Pregress o467 82
Stock-In-Trade 480,62 45580
() 3.176.05 264512
B. Inventores 3t the end of tha vear
Finished Goods 3,884 59 2.590.78
Work-In-Progress 8457 94.67
Slock-In-Trade 44568 43062
{B) 4,424 84 3.176.05
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES {A-B) (1,248.78) {530.83)
OTE - 32 - PLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSES [% in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
st March, 2022 | 3715t Manch, 2021
Direciors’ Remuneration 328.50 104,30
Salary, Wages, Bonus & Graluity 1.243.76 1.083.850
Contrbutions toward Provident Fund 5360 47.43
Cantrbulion towards ESIC 19.98 15.85
Employvea Welfare and Other Benefits 35.83 33.39
TOTAL 1.781.67 1.384.77
MOTE = 33- FINANCE COSTS € in Lakhs]
Fariculars Year ended Year ended
st March, 2027 | F1sthd 21
Interest Expenses 505.34 515.47
Letter of Credit Charges 223,25 336,34
Loan Processing and Incidental Expenses T4.12 7417
Bank Guarantes Commission 19.84 2382
Interest on Lease Liabilites 63.585 -
{Gain) Loss on Forzign Currency Transactions and Transkations - (1.81)
TOTAL Ba6.60 948,99
[ 186 ) |
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NOTE - 34 - OTHER EXPENSES
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[ in Lakhs]
Farticulars Year endad Year ended
A1st March, 2022 | 51st March, 2021
A Manufacturing and Operating Expenses
Power & Fuel 1.441.897 1,266.23
Stores & Spares Consurmad 112.70 99 60
Repairs to Plant & Machineries 095.30 67.94
Cther Manufacturing Expenses 321,65 320.05
(A 197162 1,753.82
B. Administrative NSes
Leasa Rent Expensas 38,85 113.03
Rant Expanses 56.588 54.78
Statonery & Printing 11.20 971
Postage and Courer Expenses 1.60 1.57
Electricity Expenses 1.50 147
Vehicls Running and Maintenance 18.56 19.68
Traveling & Conveyance Expanses 65.80 48.68
Telaphone, Mabile and Inleriel Expenses 10.24 11.0%
Directors Sitling Fees 4,10 420
Auditors' Remuneration
- Statutory Audit 8.00 8.00
- Tax Audit 2.00 2.00
- GST Audit 2.00 2.00
- Cosl Audit 075 0.75
- Becretarial Audit 0.55 1.10
Insurance 40,27 431
Repairs and Maintenance
- Faclory Building 25T B2 3553
- Office Building 243 .34
- Others 1.75 148
Legal & Professional Expenses 34.83 40.14
Software Programme & Licence Fees 21.70 11.75
License Renawal Fees 10.31 11.08
Guest Accommadation Charges 4.56 2.3
Rates & Taxes 399 15.27
Charity & Donation .23 5.25
Cantribution towards Corporale Social Responsibility 18.52 4,13
Priar Pericd {Income)! Expenses (6.47) 1.56
Loss an Sale of Assals T.aa T4
Health & Education Cess - 9.37
Office Expenses 3202 4287
=} £51.73 518.66
c. Selling, Distribution & Other Expenses
Adverisement. Publicity & Sales Promaolion 202.52 116.79
Copyright Usage Charges 1.104.52 -
Commission on 3zles 177.51 20,40
Fraig.hl, Cartage Cutward & Oiher Selling Expenses 3,227 .52 2.428.39
Dizcount & Othar Expanses 152.00 23756
Bad Dvabis 556.10 146.02
Alloveance for Doubtful Debis madef{reversed) &7.04 (16.09)
(4] 542721 2,993.14
TOTAL B+ 8,050.56 5.2685.62
.
|




TEXMO PIPES AND PRODUCTS LIMITED (14" Annual Report 2021-2022
MOTE - 341 - BREAK UP OF AUDIT FEES
[€ in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
et March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
1
ia)  |Auditors” Remuneraticn
- Statutory Audit Fees .00 8.00
- Tax Audit Feas 2.00 2.00
- GET Audit Feas 2.00 200
{b) [Cenification and Consultation Fees 1.76 1.00
TOTAL 13.75 13.00
MOTE - 35 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IHCDEE‘
[£ in Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
J1st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 |
A ltems that will not be rectassified inte profit or loss ©
i Change in Revaluation surplus 5 i
{ii} Remeasuremeants of defined benafit plans 11.67 34.18
{iii) Equily Instrument of the delined benefil plans - -
{iv) Falr Value changes relating to own credit sk of financial labiites designated - -
at fair value through profit or loss - B
vl Share of other comprehensive Income in Associate and Joint Ventures, to the - -
extent not {0 be classified into profit or loss - -
(i) Cthers - -
() 11.67 3418 |
B. ltems that will be reclassified 1o profit or loss ;
(i} Exchanga differsnces in transiating thie financial statemants of foraign oparation 231.97 (184.30)
(i) Osabt instruments through othar comprehensive Income - -
i) The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in a cash flow hadge - -
(] Share of other comprahensive Income in Associate and Joint Ventures, to the - -
extent not o be cassified into profit o loss - -
) Others - -
L:]] 23187 (184,38
TOTAL (A+B) 24364 (150.21)
MOTE - 36 - EARNING PER SHARE
[ in Lakhs]
Particulars Yaar ended Year anded
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
|Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss atfributable to Equity Sharehoiders 142308 1.083.43
"Wellghtad Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for catculating Basic EPS 281395 27887
QWeIghtad Average Potential Equity Shares - -
| Total Waighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Dikuted EPS 291,85 2T8.A7
‘:Easil:: Earning Par Shara 487 3,88
| Diluted Earming Per Share 4487 3.88
|Face Value Per Equity Share 10,00 10.00

-
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TE - 37 - MNC 11

o [¥ In Lakhs]
Particulars Year snded Year anded
st March, 2022 | 31stMarch, 2021 |
Prafit before Tax 1.834.02 140143
Effect of Ind AS Adjustments (45.87) 36.48
Adjusted Profit befors Tax 1.885.15 143761
Applicable Tax Rate 25, 168% 25.168%
Computed Tax Expense 473.45 361.52
Tax Effect of
Ineme fol laxable - -
Expenses Disallowed 29.59 2193
Different tax rate on Capital Gains - -
Other Differences 20.37 (1517
Lincertain tax positions 0.58 142
Current Tax Provision 525.00 369,00
Effective Tax Rate 27 19% 26.34%
MOTE - 38 - CONTINGENT LIABLITIES & COMMITMENTS .
B [% in Lakhs] |
Particulars Year ended Year anded
315t March, 2022 | 3 ra )
Contingent Liakdlity not provided in respact of
(i Disputed Income Tax Demand 1,324.69 1,324,868
(if)  Disputed Excize Duty, VAT CST & Entry Tax Demands 725.00 T43.05
{iii}  Guarantae Given by the company’s Banker in the narmal course of buskiness 068.64 865,38
{ivy  Letter of Credit for purchase of goods 224,51 185.08
Wi Other Disputes - -
[Rafer Mole Below]
fommitmants
Capital Contracts remaining to be exscuted 47671 349.32
Notes:

(i} It t= not practicable for the Parent Company o estimate the tmings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the rospeclive procecdings.

(i) The Paront Company does not expoect any reimbursements in rospect of the: above contingent liabilitics

(i} Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determmined only on receiptlof judgments [ docisions pending at varnous
forums / authorities.

{iv) The Parent Company's pending lligations comprise of ciaims against the Parenl Company periaining to proceedings pending
with Excise, Income Tax, Sales/ VAT tax and other authorities. The Parent Company has roviewoed all its pending litigations and
proceedings and has adequalely provided for where provisions ane required and disclosed as contingenl Babiliies whese
applicable, in its financial statements. The Parent Company doos not expect the outeome of these procecdings o have a
matorally adverse effoct on s financial statemenits

An inguiry cum Adjudication against the Parent Company 1s pending undor section 15HA of Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(hereinafler referred to as “SEBI Act, 19927) for the victation of Section 12A(a),(b),(c) of SEBI Act, 1992 road with Regulations 3{a),(b),(c),(d} and
A1), 42N, (k). (r) of SEBI {Prohibation of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securitics Markot) Regulations, 2003 (hereinafter referred
o as *PFUTP Regulaions, 2003%) SEBI (PFUTP) Regulations, 2003 and Under Section Z3C of Sccunlies Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(heroinafter referred 1o as "SCRA 1556) for the violation of soction 21 of SCRA read with Clauso 36(7) and 50 of the Equity Listing Agreemeaent. The
Managomenlof the Parent Company doos nol envisage any financial implication of sech Itigations against the Group -

I L 189 )
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APPLICGATION OF INDAS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (iIMCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has nofified Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the exisling lease standard, Ind AS 17
Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principies for the recognition, measurement, presentafiion and disclosure of leases for
both lessees and leszors. Hintroduces a single, on-balance shest lease accouniing moded for lessees.

The Parent Company has adopled Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1st April, 2021 and applied the standard to its leases.
Accordingly, the Company has measured its lease liability as at 1st Apnl, 2021 at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the inlerest rate of 8.95% p.a. implicit in the lease at the date of transition o Ind AS.

The Right-of-Use Asset has been recognised at an amount equal to the leasea liability. Accordingly, a Right-of-Use asset of € 1252 17 Lakhs has
been recognized. The cumulative effect on transition in retained eamings net off laxes is T Mil.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous perods (o depreciation cost for the Right-of-Use
asset, and finance cost forinterest accrued on lease liabilities.

The Parent Company does not have an aption to purchase such leasehold land at the end of the lease pernod. There are no restrictions such as
those conceming dividends, additional debts and further leasing imposed by the lease agreements.

Ind AS 116 has resulied in an increase in net cash inflows from operaling activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on
account of lease payments. The principal and interest porion of the lease paymenis have been disclosed under cash flow from financing
aclivities which forthe year ended March 31st, 2022, aggregating to 123.30 Lakhs (Previous Year 3 Nil).

14" Annual Report 2021-2022 )

For movement in Righi-of-Use Assel Refer Mole 3 and movement in Lease Liabiliy during the yearis as follows
[Z.in Lakhs]
Year ended Year anded
st March, 2022 318t March, 2021

Parliculars

Balance at the beginning - z

Addifions 1,371.53 -
Finance cost acerued duting the period 83.95 -
Deletions - -
Fayment of lease liabilities {123.340) -
Balanca at the end 1,312.18 o
NOTE - 40 - DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"
(i} Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Cantribution Plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under; I% in Lakhs]
irn Lakhs)
o Yaar ended Year endad
st March, 2022 | 31si March, 2021 |
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 53.60 47.43
Employver's Contribution to ESIC Fund 1998 15.85

{ii}y Dafined Benafit Plan
Reconciliation of opening and dosing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

. [ in Lakhs]

Particutars Gratuily [Furided)
Yaar anded Year ended
315t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Defined Benefit Ohbligation at beginning of the vear 16866 17427
Current Sarvice Cost 25.25 22.94
Intaresl Cost 11.54 11.85
Past Servicer Cost (Vested benefits) - -
Benafits pald [5.85) (2.82)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss [12.78) (36.58)
Defined Benefit Obligation at year end 167.82 169.66

|
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Recongiliation of Opening and Closing balances of fair value of Plan Assets % in Lakhs]
Particulars Grafulty (Funded)
Asal Year ended
A1st March; 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Fair value of Plan Assels at beginning of year 122.28 85,60
Expected Return on Flan Assets 5.32 6.91
Actuarial Gaindloss) {1.11) 2.40)
Employer Contribution 5.29 35.00
Benefils Paid {9.85) (2.82)
Fair value of Plan Assets al yoar end 129.54 12229
Recondliation of fair Value of Assets and Obligations N [2 in Lakhs]
Particulars Gratuity (Fundad)
Asat A at
318t March, 2022 | 315t March, 2021 |
Fair value of Plan Assets 129.54 122.29
Prasant Vatue of Benafit Obligation 187.82 168.66
Amaunt recognised in Balance Sheet (Surplus/{Defizit) {58.28) {47.37)
Expenses racognised during the year % in Lakhs]
Pamtieutars Gratuity (Fundad)
Asal ~ Asal
31st March, 2022 | 31st Manch, 2021
It Incarme Statement
-Currenl Setvice Cost 25.25 2294
-Interast Cost 11.54 11.85
-Past Service Cost - -
-Feturn an Plan Assels (8.32) {6.91)
Met Casi 2847 27 .88
In Cther Comprenensive Incoms
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss {12.78) (34018
Faturm on Plan Assals 141 -
Met (IncomeExpenses for the perod recognisad in OCH {11.67) {34.18)
Actuarial Assumplions - Gratuity (Funded)
AL al - Asal
31st March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
Moralily Tatde (ALM
Discount Rate (Par Annum) §.80% 6.80%
Rate of Escalation in Salary (Per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
Notes:
1. The estimales of rate of escalation in salary considered in-acluarkal valuation, lake inlo account inflatiens, sentority, promobion and other
rotevant factors including supply and demand in tho employment market. The above information is certified by the aclusany.
2. The expectad contnbution for Defined Benafit Plan for thoe nest firancial yoar will be in ine with EY. 2021-22.
3 The parent comparty makes provident fund (PF) contributions o defined contribition benefit plans for ehgible employees. Under the schame

the parent comparny s required to contribute a specified percentago of the payroll costs to fund the benafits. The contributions specified under

the law are pald o the government authorities.

4. Armount lowards Defined Contribution Plan have boen recognized under Contribution o Providont and Othor funds in Note 32,

Defined Bonefit Plan:

The Parent Company has defined benefil plans for gratuity to chigible employees, coninbutions for which are made to Life insurance
Corporation of Indla, who Invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines. The details of these defined benefit plans recognized in the financeal

stabomerils are 2% under
Genoral Description of tho Plan

The Parent Company operates a defined benefil plan (the Gratully Plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum payment lo
vistod employeos at retirement, death, incapacitation or tesmination of employment, of an amount based on the respoctive employees salary

and the lenwre of employmenl.

.
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The defined benofit plans lypleally expose the company lovanous sk such as -

{a) Irvesiment risk:
The present value of the defined bonefil plan lability i= calculated using a discount rale which ks delermined by reference lo markel
yickds 3l the end of the reporting period on govermnmaoent bonds. If the return on plan assel is below this rate, L will oreate plan doficil

(b} Interest risk:
A decreaso in the bond interest rale will increase the plan kability, however, this will be partially offsel by an increase in the plan
assels.

(c) Longevity risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan labilily & calculated by reforence 0 the best estimate of tho mortality of plan
participants both during and afier thelr employmenl. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plan's lability.

{d) Salary risk:
Thie present value of the defied benefit plan Gability ks calculated by refercnce 1o the fulire salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increasein the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liabality.

NOTE - 41- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
) List of Related Parties
" Sno. |Relationship Name of the Party

1 Key Managerial Parsonnal [KMF] . Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agrawal {Managing Director)

. Mrs. Rashmidevi Agrawal {Whole Time Director)

. Mir. Mahit Agrawal (Chiel Executive Officer)

. Mr. Vijay Prasad Pappu (Whole Time Director cem Chief Financial Officer}

. Mrs, Apama Agrawal (Chief Designer Officer}

[ o T R

. Shree Yenkatesh Industries (Fartnership Firm)
. Shrea Padmavali Irrgations LLP

2  |Enterprises over which Key Managerial Persannel ara 1
2
3. Shree Venkatesh Indusiries Private Limited
F
B

able to exercise significant influence.

. Mangal Murti Winerals
. Shree Bataji Industries (Parnarship Fiem)

C.F Industrial Products Private Limitad

. Marendra CoiFibre Industries LLP

Deayva Agratach Private Limited

. Rahul Agritech LLP

CK Caotspin Privata Limited

. CK Qils Privata Limited

. Nimar Diagnostic Services Private Limited
. Shres Vasudeo Industries (Farnership Firm)
. Shree Krishna Commercial Ca.

10. Narendra International LLP

11.8hrea Bala|i Induslres

3 Relatives of Diractors ara Directors! Partness in Concern
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NOTE - 42 - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY

In accordance with the provisions on Seclicn 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, the Boand of Dieclors of the Parenl Company has constiluled & C5R

Commitlee. The detailts of C5R Actvilies are as follows

_ 1% in Lakhs]
B, Particlbkars Asat A al
st March, 2022 | 31s6t March, 2021
1 Brought farsard of amount spent bavond the statulory reguiremeant 0.37 -
2 Gross amount required lo be spent by the parent company during the year as per
Compardes Act, 2013 16.29 7.75
3 Amount spant by the parent company during e year on the Tolkowing:
{&) Constructicon / Acquigition of any asset - -
(b} Pramaoting Health Care including Praventive Heaith Care and Sanifization 1680 424
() Troe Plantation Drive - 1.95
{dy Covid-19 relief refated activities 1.72 1.83
Total (3) 18,52 812
4 Closing amount yet o be spanl - -
5 Carry forward of amount spent beyand the statutory requirement 280 037
i Shortfall at the end of the year - -
T Tatal of Previous Year Shortfalls - -
8 Reasons for Shortfalis Mot Applcat e Mol Applicabie
Mate: Mo CSR amaunt has bean paid lo any ralaled parly of tha Company.

MOTE-43-0THERNOTES
1 Preferential Allolment

Dwring the financial year 2020-21, lhe Parenl Company has, on a prelerential basis, ssued 28, 75,000 (Tweanly Eighl Lakhs Seventy Five
Thowsand) equity shares of fzce value of T 10 each, fully paid up al a price ol T 13.90 per share, aggregaling 1o T 112,13 Lakhs o Shr Sanjay
Kurmar Agrawal and Smi Rashmi Devi Agrawal (Direclors of Company) on Seplembar 14, 2020, in accordance wilh lhe provisions of SEBI (lssue

of Capital and Disclosure Reguiremeants) Regulations, 2008,

2 Disclosure on Financial Instnuments
[a) All the inancial instruments are milially recognized and subsegquently re-measured al lair value as described below:
(i) The tair value of Forward Foregn Exchange contracls s delermined using forward exchange rales at the
balance sheel dala.
(ii} Ajl loreign currency denominaled assels and liabilities are imnslaled using exchange rale al reporting dale. Fair
Value measurernent hieranchy:
[T in Lakhs]
Parbiculars As at 31st March, 2022 As al 315t March, 2021
‘Carmying Value. Fair WValus Camying Values FairValue
1
A Financial Assets
1 At Arnortized Cost
() Mon Current Trade Recebvables 4,179.44 4,179.44 4,082.50 4,052.50
i} Other Non Current Financical 72017 72097 6620 685.29
(i} Current Trade Receivables 4.484.73 448473 4. 42680 4. 428 80
{iv}| Cash & Cash Egquivalanls including
QOther Bank Balances 1,011 46 1.011.46 338 .62 838 62
Il Al FYTPL
(i) Investments - - - -
1 Al FVTOCH - = - S
Particutars As al 31t March, 2022 As al 3151 March, 2021
Carrying Yalug Fair Value Carmying Value Fair Valus
B. Financial Liabllities
(1) Borrawings 2469.82 24649 42 277108 2771.08
(i) Lease Liakilities 1,312.18 1,312.18 - -
{iii){ Trade Payablas 4 507 36 4, 592 36 4.323.72 432573
[i\'}iﬂ!hel Financial Liabilitas 0.38 0.38 087 0.ae7
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Interest Rale Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow with respect to interest payments on borrowing will fivciuate because of change in
market interest rates. The company’s exposure fo the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-
term debt obligation with floating interest rates.

(b} Interest Rate Sensitivity

Interest rate nsk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in vanable interest rates. Any movement in the reference
rates could have an impact on the Companyis cash flows as well as cosls.

The Group is subject to vanable interest rates on some of its interest bearing kabilittes. The Group interest rale exposure is mainly
redated to detd obligations. The Group also uses a mix of interes! rate sensifive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund
requirements for its day o day operations like short term loans.

As at March 31, 2022, fimancial fiability of Rs. 722.60 lakhs was subject to vanable interest rales. Increasefdecrease of 100 basis
pointds in interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decreasadincrease in profitifloss) before tax of Rs. 5.30 Lakhs for the
year ended March 31, 2022

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneocus parallel shifis in the yield curve. Although some assets and labilities
may have similar maturities or penods to re-pricing, these may noi react comespondingly to changes in market interest rates. Also, the
interest rates on some types of assets and liabilities may fluciuate with changes in marke! inferest rates, while interest rates on other
types of assels may change with a lag.

The risk estimaies provided assume a parallel shifi of 100 basis points interesi mle across all yield curves. This calculation also
assumes thal the change occurs at the balance sheel date and has been calculaied based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date_ The period end balances are nol necessarnly representative of the average debt oulstanding during the penod.

{Mote: The impact is indicaled on the profil{loss) before tax basis).
& Gommeodity Price Risk

Commodity price risk anses due to fluctuation in prices of raw material. The Group has a risk management frame work aimed al
prudently managing the risk ansing from the volatifity in raw matenal prices and freight costs. The Group commeodity risk is managed
cenfrally through well-established trading operafions and conirol processes. In accordance with the risk management policy, fhe
Company carefully calibrates the fiming and the quantity of purchase

(d) Credit Risk
Credit rizk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounis due causing financial
loss fo the group. Credit risk arises mainly from the ouisianding receivables from cusiomers. The group has a prudent and
consenmative process for managing its credit risk arsing in the course of its business activities. The credit ratings/market standing of
the customers are evaluabted on a regular basis.

{2) Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk arises from the Group's inability to meet its cash flow commitments on fime. Prudent iquidity risk management implies

miaintaining sufficient stock of cash and markeiable securnities . The Group maintains adequate cash and cash equivalents along with
the need based credit imits to meet the iquidity needs.

(M Hedge Accounting

The Group has eslablished risk management policies to hedge the volalifity arising from exchange rate fluctuations in respect of firm
commitments and highly probable forecast fransactions, through foreign exchange forward and opfions contracls. The proporticn of
forecast transactions that are to be hedged is decided based on the size of the forecast transaction and market conditions. As the
counterparty for such transactions are highly rated banks, the risk of theirnon-performance is considered 1o be insignificant.

The Group uses dernvatives to hedge its exposure to changes in movement in foreign cumrency. Where such derivatives are not
designated under hedge accounfing, changes in the fair value of such hedges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Group may aleo designate cartain hedges, usually for large transactions, as a cash fiow hedge under hedge accouniing, with the
objective of shielding the exposure from vanability in cash flows. The curmency, amount and tenure of such hedges are generally
maiched io the underlying transaction(s). Changes in the fair value of the effective porfion of cash fliow hedges are recognised as cash
flow hedging reserve in Other Comprehensive Income. While the probability of such hedges becoming ineffective is very low, the
ineffective portion, if any, is immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

The management of the group does not expects its foreign cumency denominated financial assets to mature within a period of five
years from the end of the year under review and therefore, it has not entered into any hedging contracts for the same
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NOTE -45 -ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

i Dwring the financial year 2021-22, no proceeding has been inifiated or pending against the group for holding any benami
properly under the Benami Transachons (Prohibition ) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
{ii) The Parent Company has filed guartery returns or statemenis with the banks in lieu of sanctioned working capital facilibes,

which are in agreement with the books of account other than those as set out below:

A Differance in Inventorles

[ In Lakhs]
Quarter Ended Value as per Books Value as per Difference Reasan for Vanance
Quarterly
5 %
30th June, 2021 449979 4,199,656 300.13 Primarily, due 1o non inclusion of
30th Seplember, 2021 526224 4, 83015 v 09 Certain ltems of inventory while
315t Dacembar, 201 6,321.80 5 80341 518,39 | lurnishing the statement to tha Bank,
31st March, 2022 §,395.40 6,010.72 384.68 | with the result that Inventory Stalements
submitted to the banks contained a
lesser value than the actual inventary
hreldd
B, Difference in Trade Receivables
[# in Lakhs]
Quarier Ended Walus as par Books Value az par Diffarence Reason lor Varance
Statements
30th June, 2021 5049597 5,031.80 B4.17 Primarily, dug to non inclusion of
30th Seplember, 2021 555712 5,541.95 15.17 Cerain Dabtors while furnishing the
31st December, 2021 5.603.06 543063 17243 statement fo the Bank
312 March, 2022 4,484 T3 5,067 48 (GB2.73) | Primarly, dus to non cansideration of
Bad Debts figures while furnishing the
statement to the Bank
{ii} The Group has nol been declared a wilful defaulier by any bank or financial instilution or ary other lender.
it} The Group has not entered into any matenal transacton with tho companies struck-off under 5. 248 of the Companics Act, 2013 or
section 560 ol the Companies Act, 1956 during the year.
(v} The Parent Company does not have any charges or salisfaction which is yel to be registered with ROC beyond the statulory period.
(v} The Pament Company has complied with thoe number of layers prescribed under dause (87) of scction 2 of the Act read with

Companics (Restriction on numbor of Layors) Rules, 2017

{weli} The Group has notapplied for any Scheme of Arrangements in lems of Sections 230 to 237 of the Compantes Act, 2013,

(k) Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invesled | either from borrowed funds or share premium or any olher sources or kind of
funds) by thoe Group 1o or in any othor porson(s) or onlity(ies), including foroign entitics  (iintormedianios™ with the
undarstanding, whether recorded inwriting or othorwise, that tho Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behall of
the Group (Ulimate Benoficiarios). The Group has not recoived any fund from any party!(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding
that the Group shall whether, directly or indingctty lend or invest in other persons or ontities identified by or on bohalf of the Group
{ILNtirrsate Benofickres") o provide any guaranloe, security of the Bke on betall of the Dllimate Beneficanes.

(4] The Group has no such ransaction which is nol recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income durnng the year in the tax assessmonts under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income- ax Act, 1961).

() The Group has not traded or invested in Cryplo Currency o Virtual Currency during the Financial Year 2021-22.
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(wi}  Disclosure relating to various ratios

[% in Lakhs]
Sno.  |Particulars As at Asal % of Changes Remarks
A1t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 compared o (mandatary if
preceding vear | Vadafion=25%)
{a}  Current Ratio {in imes)
![Currﬂnl Azsals | Current Liakilities]
Curreni Assats 14,022.81 14,774.85
Current Liabilibes B,926.02 5242 44 Mot Applicalde
| Current Ratio 202 1.78 12 95%
b} Debt Equity Ratio {in times)
iITu-tal Debts [ Tolal Equity |
Total Debts 2469 82 277108
|IMan Current Borrowings+Current Borrowings) :
Total Equity 24,311.70 22 648.54 Nt aphcasia
1Dabt Equity Ratio 010 012 116.97%)
fe) ;ﬂght Service Coverage Ratio (in fimes)
|[Earnings before Interest & Tas! Debt Sarvica]
Earnings before Interest & Tax 2.817.62 2.350.12
|[Prafit befare Tax + Finance Costs]
|Debt Sarvice 1.451.86 1,166.52 _
[Finance Costs = Scheduiad pancipal mpayment of Mon-Current Mot Applhcatde
Borrowings|{CurantatuntiesofLongTermDebisal Previnusyaar)
+ pancipal repayment of Laass Liabiliies)
Debt Sarvice Ratio 1.24 2.m (3.BBM)
(d}  |Return on Equity Ratio {in percentadge
|[Profit after Tax { Average Total Equity]
| Profit after Tax 1,423.09 1,.083.42
[Average Total Eguily 23 48012 21,883 57 )
E’I:ﬂpening Tedal Equity+Closing Total Equidy1i2) Nok Apphcable
|Return on Eguity Ratio 5.06% 4.93% 22.98%
(e}
[Sale of Products / Average Invantory]
Sake of Products 55,962.05 42 165 67 Primarily, due o
| Average Inventory 5.97547 6,453.11 increase in demand
[iCpaning Inventory+Closing Inventony 2] of the products sold
| Inventory Turnaver Ratio 936 6.53 43.26%| by the Company
{fy |Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in imes)
[[Tumover Average Trade Receivables)
Due to faster &
| Tumover (Revenue from Opearations) 56,441.52 42,684 48 beltar recovery af
|Average Trade Recievables B.571.74 553298 debis by the
{liOpnning Trade Recelvables + Closing Trade Recahvablos)'2] Company and
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio 6.58 5,00 31.80% | increasa in lumover
(g} | Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in imes)
iirl'umwm Average Trade Payables]
Due fo faster
Tumover {Revenue from Operations) 5644152 42 B4 48 payments o tha
Average Trads Payables 4,461.05 4,504_31 creditors by the
!l:ﬂpan'mg Trade Payables + Cloaing Trade Payablas)2] Company and
jTrade Payable Turnover Ratio 12,65 9,48 33,48% | Incraass in turnover
[ 199 ) |
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[ in Lakhs]
Sno. | Particulars Asat hsat % of Changes Remarks
31sf March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 comparsd {0 {mandatory if

procading yaar aration=25%)

th}  |Met Capital Turnover Ratio {in times)
[Turmover { Waorking Capilal]

Turnover (Revenus from Operations) 56 441.52 42,694,458

Warking Capital 8,684.52 12,089.73 in;’::::]lf; iz s
[Current Assets (<) Curranl Liabdities) :
Met Capital Turnover Ratic 6.35 .53 78.89%

(i} MNet Profit Ratio {in parcentags)
[Profit-after Tax f Turnover]

Profit after Tasx 1.423.09 1,052.42
Tumowver {Revenua from Operaticns) 5644152 4269448 Mot Applicatle
Net Profit Ratio 2.52% 2.54% (0649

{0y Return on Capital Employed {in percentadge]
[Earnings Befora Interest & Taxes! Capital Employed]

Earnings Before Interest & Taxes 2.817.82 2,350.12
|Prafit bedore Tax + Finance Costs] Nat Anglicabile
Capital Emplayed 25,781.52 2541963 PP
[Total Equity = Total Borrewings]
Retum on Capital Employed 10.52% G.25% 13.80%
(k1 in per g
[Met Gain ar Investment Invastmeni]
Met Galn on Investment - -
Investment - -
Retum of Invesiment Ratio - - - et Applicabls
|For Anil Kamal Garg & Company For and on the behalf of Board
{Charterad Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Mo, 0041860
|Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
|Parinar Managing Director Whala Time Director cum CFC
|Mambarship No. 078057 BN ; 00316245 DIM ; 02066748
(1Al UDIN: 2207805TANIUWAT319
Mchit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chief Executive Officar Company Secretary
Indora, May 26th, 2022 Burhanpur, May 26th, 2022
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ey

Form AOC-I

Statement containing salient feature of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint venture

(Pursuanit lo first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Part “A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amountsin Lakhs)

Name of Subsidiary Tapti Pipes and Products Limited FZE (Note (i) &{ii))
Reporting period 2021-22
Share capital 6658.49
Reserves & surplus (54.35)
Total assels 755728
Total Liabilities 8953.14
Investments -
| Tumover - e
Profit before taxation (4.04)
Provision for taxation =
Profit after taxation (4.04)
 Proposed Dividend B
% of shareholding 100%
MNote: i) Converled into Indian Rupees at the Exchange rate USD 1=75.8071 INR.
i) The financial statements have been audited by a firm of Charlered Accountants other

than Anil Kamal Garg & Company.
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Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

{AmtinLakh)
Name of Jointly Controlled Entity 1 NIL '
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date _ | 3.03202
2. Shares of Jointly Controlled Entity held by the company on the year end Mot Applicable
Number Not Applicable
Amount of Investment in Jointly Control Entity Mot Applicable
Extend of Holding % Not Applicable
3. Description of how there is significant influence Mot Applicable
4. Reason why the Jointly Controlled Entity is not consolidated Mot Applicable
5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet Mot Applicable
6. Profit / Loss for the year Mot Applicable
i. Considered in Consolidation Mol Applicable
i. Mol Considered in Consolidation Mot Applicable
For: Anil Kamal Garg & Company For Texmo Pipes and Products Limited
Firm Reg No 004186C
Chartered Accountants
Devendra Bansal Sanjay Kumar Agrawal Vijay Prasad Pappu
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director cum CFO
Membership No 078057 (DIN 00316249) (DIN 02066748)
Mohit Agrawal Ajay Shrivastava
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

Date: 26" May 2022
Place: Burhanpur
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